COUNCIL SUMMONS

You are hereby summoned to attend a Meeting of the COUNCIL OF THE CITY
AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA to be held in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre,
Swansea, on Tuesday, 15 July 2014 at 5.00 pm

The following business is proposed to be transacted:

=Y
.

9.a
10.
10.a
1.
12.
12.a
12.b
12.c

13.

Apologies for Absence.
Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

Minutes.

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting
of Council held on 17 June 2014.

Announcements of the Presiding Member.
Announcements of the Leader of the Council.
Public Questions.

Public Presentation - Craigfelen Primary School - Embed
Entrepreneurial Thinking in the Primary Curriculum.

Report of the Leader.
One Swansea Plan and Delivery Framework 2014.

Report of the Cabinet Member for Citizen, Community
Engagement and Democracy.
Membership of Committees.

Report of the Cabinet Member for Learning and Skills.
Home to School Transport Policy - Public Consultation on a New
Proposed Policy.

Councillors' Questions.

For Information Reports. (Not For Discussion)

Councillors Allowances & Expenses 2013-2014.

Written Responses to Questions asked at the Last Ordinary Meeting of
Council.

Scrutiny Dispatches.

Notice of Motion from Councillors JC Bayliss, RC Stewart, DH
Hopkins, R Francis-Davies, AS Lewis, JP Curtice, JEC Harris, D
Phillips, C Richards, JA Raynor and CR Doyle.

Swansea Council recognises that rough sleeping is a problem that
needs considerable resources to resolve. However the Council would
strongly condemn the use of anti-homeless measures (like metallic
spikes or studs) to physically prohibit members of the homeless

3-10

11-15

16 - 17

18 - 112

113 - 122

123 - 128

129 - 130

131 - 132



community from sleeping as inhumane.

Swansea Council would ask the Welsh Government to prohibit their
use in open public spaces (as a means of deterring rough sleeping)
and instead focus it's considerable resources toward achieving a long
term solution to the causes of homelessness in Wales.

Councillors ask officers to work the sentiment of this motion into
supplementary planning guidance to ensure new developments do not
feature such medieval devices.

e

Patrick Arran

Head of Legal, Democratic Services & Procurement
Civic Centre

Swansea

Thursday, 2 July 2014

To: All Members of the Council



Agenda Item 2.

Disclosures of Interest

To receive Disclosures of Interest from Councillors and Officers
Councillors

Councillors Interests are made in accordance with the provisions of the
Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea. You must
disclose orally to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest.

NOTE: You are requested to identify the Agenda Item / Minute No. / Planning
Application No. and Subject Matter to which that interest relates and to enter
all declared interests on the sheet provided for that purpose at the meeting.

1. If you have a Personal Interest as set out in Paragraph 10 of the
Code, you MAY STAY, SPEAK AND VOTE unless it is also a
Prejudicial Interest.

2. If you have a Personal Interest which is also a Prejudicial Interest as
set out in Paragraph 12 of the Code, then subject to point 3 below, you
MUST WITHDRAW from the meeting (unless you have obtained a
dispensation from the Authority’s Standards Committee)

3. Where you have a Prejudicial Interest you may attend the meeting but
only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether
under a statutory right or otherwise. In such a case, you must
withdraw from the meeting immediately after the period for
making representations, answering questions, or giving evidence
relating to the business has ended, and in any event before further
consideration of the business begins, whether or not the public are
allowed to remain in attendance for such consideration (Paragraph 14
of the Code).

4. Where you have agreement from the Monitoring Officer that the
information relating to your Personal Interest is sensitive information,
as set out in Paragraph 16 of the Code of Conduct, your obligation to
disclose such information is replaced with an obligation to disclose the
existence of a personal interest and to confirm that the Monitoring
Officer has agreed that the nature of such personal interest is sensitive
information.

5. If you are relying on a grant of a dispensation by the Standards
Committee, you must, before the matter is under consideration:

i) Disclose orally both the interest concerned and the existence of
the dispensation; and

ii) Before or immediately after the close of the meeting give written
notification to the Authority containing:

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\5\0\A100008B%E8yENd 1wkxjd.doc



a) Details of the prejudicial interest;

b) Details of the business to which the prejudicial interest
relates;

C) Details of, and the date on which, the dispensation was
granted; and

d) Your signature

Officers

Financial Interests

1. If an Officer has a financial interest in any matter which arises for
decision at any meeting to which the Officer is reporting or at which the
Officer is in attendance involving any member of the Council and /or
any third party the Officer shall declare an interest in that matter and
take no part in the consideration or determination of the matter and
shall withdraw from the meeting while that matter is considered. Any
such declaration made in a meeting of a constitutional body shall be
recorded in the minutes of that meeting. No Officer shall make a report
to a meeting for a decision to be made on any matter in which s/he has
a financial interest.

2. A “financial interest” is defined as any interest affecting the financial
position of the Officer, either to his/her benefit or to his/her detriment. It
also includes an interest on the same basis for any member of the
Officers family or a close friend and any company firm or business from
which an Officer or a member of his/her family receives any
remuneration. There is no financial interest for an Officer where a
decision on a report affects all of the Officers of the Council or all of the
officers in a Department or Service.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\5\0\A100008056 BagenRxjd.doc



23.

24.

Agenda Item 3.

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL

HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, SWANSEA ON
TUESDAY, 17 JUNE 2014 AT 5.00 PM

PRESENT: Councillor D H Hopkins (Deputy Presiding Member) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
J C Bayliss T J Hennegan G Owens

J E Burtonshaw C A Holley D Phillips

M C Child P R Hood-Williams J A Raynor

R A Clay B Hopkins T H Rees

U C Clay L James | M Richard
A C S Colburn Y V Jardine C Richards

D W Cole A J Jones N M Ronconi-Woollard
A M Cook J W Jones P B Smith

S E Crouch M H Jones RV Smith

J P Curtice S M Jones R J Stanton
N J Davies E T Kirchner R C Stewart
A M Day A S Lewis D G Sullivan
P Downing D J Lewis G J Tanner

C R Doyle R D Lewis M Theaker

V A Evans P Lloyd C M R W D Thomas
W Evans P M Matthews M Thomas

E W Fitzgerald P M Meara L V Walton

R Francis-Davies J Newbury T M White

F M Gordon B G Owen

J E C Harris

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P M Black, N S Bradley, W J
F Davies, J A Hale, C E Lloyd, K E Marsh, H M Morris, C L Philpott, C Thomas, D W
W Thomas, L G Thomas, L J Tyler-Lloyd and G D Walker.

DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS.

The Head of Legal, Democratic Services and Procurement gave advice regarding
the potential personal and prejudicial interests that Councillors and / Officers may
have on the agenda.

The Head of Democratic Services reminded Councillors and Officers that the

“Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests” sheet should only be completed if
the Councillor / Officer actually had an interest to declare. Nil returns were not

Page 3



25.

26.

Minutes of the Council (17.06.2014)
Contd

required. Councillors and Officers were also informed that any declarable interest
must be made orally and in writing on the sheet.

In accordance with the provisions of the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and
County of Swansea the following interests were declared:

1)

Councillors J C Bayliss and C Richards declared a Personal Interest in Minute
28 “Public Questions”;

2) Councillors R V Smith declared a Personal Interest in Minute 31 “Membership
of Committees”;

3) Councillors M C Child, D W Cole, J P Curtice, J E C Harris, R Francis-Davies,
P R Hood-Williams, R D Lewis and C Richards declared a Personal Interest in
Minute 32 “Amendments to the Council Constitution - Gower Area of
Outstanding Beauty (AONB) Partnership”;

4) Councillors P Downing, R Francis-Davies, P R Hood-Williams, L James, J W
Jones, P M Meara, G Owens, J A Raynor, RV Smith & L V Walton declared a
Personal Interest in Minute 33 “Amendments to the Constitution - Audit
Committee”;

5) Councillor J A Raynor declared a Personal Interest in Minute 36 “Scrutiny
Dispatches”;

6) Councillor R C Stewart declared a Personal Interest in Minute 36 “Notice of
Motion”.

MINUTES.

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the:

1)

2)

Annual Meeting of Council held on 8 May 2014 be approved and signed as a
correct record;

Ceremonial Meeting of Council held on 9 May 2014 be approved and signed
as a correct record subject to Councillor D W W Thomas being deleted and

replaced by Councillor R J Stanton (Lord Mayor) as the person that Chaired
the early part of the meeting.

ANNOUNCEMENTS OF THE PRESIDING MEMBER.

1)

Condolences

a) Eileen Newbury (Deputy Lady Mayoress), Wife of Councillor John
Newbury (Deputy Lord Mayor)

The Deputy Presiding Member referred with sadness to the recent

death of Eileen Newbury (Deputy Lady Mayoress), wife of Councillor
John Newbury (Deputy Lord Mayor);

Page 4



2)

3)

Minutes of the Council (17.06.2014)
Contd

b) Former Councillor Joan T G Peters

The Deputy Presiding Member referred with sadness to the recent
death of former Councillor Joan T G Peters. She had represented the
Oystermouth Electoral Division on Swansea City Council between 1983
and 1988 and the City and County of Swansea between 1995 and
2008.

Former Councillor Joan T G Peters had served as the Regeneration
Cabinet Member and had also been the Conservative Political Group
Leader.

All present stood in silence as a mark of sympathy and respect.
Time to Change Wales Champions

The Deputy Presiding Member stated that the Time to Change Wales
Champions were volunteers who had experience of mental health problems
and are at the heart of the Time to Change Wales campaign, challenging
stigma in their own communities, campaigning in the media and sharing their
experiences of living with mental health problems.

These Champions were recently given an award for their huge achievements
over the past year at the Welsh Council for Voluntary Action (WCVA) Wales
Volunteer of the Year Awards.

The Deputy Presiding Member congratulated the Time to Change Wales
Champions on their award.

Queen’s Birthday Honours 2014

The Deputy Presiding Member congratulated the following citizens and former
citizens of the City and County of Swansea on their recent awards in the New
Year Honours. He stated that the Lord Mayor would be writing to each of the

citizens congratulating them on their awards.

a) Commander of the Order of the British Empire (CBE)
i) Robert Owen Humphreys.
Director, Open University Wales.
For services to Education and voluntary public service in Wales.
b) Officer of the Order of the British Empire (OBE)
i) Councillor Christopher Ashleigh Holley.

Councillor, City and County of Swansea Council.
For political service and service to the community in Swansea.

Page 5



Minutes of the Council (17.06.2014)
Contd

Councillor M H Jones (Deputy Leader of the Liberal Democrat
Political Group) paid tribute to the hard work and dedication of
Councillor C A Holley.

c) Member of the Order of the British Empire (MBE)

i) Gwilym Gwesyn Joseph.
Director, Swansea City Football Club.
For services to Football and the Economy in Swansea.

d)  British Empire Medal (BEM)

i) Vivienne Caroline Sterling Lewis.
For services to the community particularly Young People in
Sketty, Swansea.

i) Denys Howell Jenkins (Denny Twp).
For voluntary and charitable services to the community in South
Wales.

27. ANNOUNCEMENTS OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL.

1) Councillor C A Holley (OBE)

The Leader of the Council congratulated Councillor C A Holley on being
awarded an OBE under the Queen’s Birthday Honours 2014.

2) Jen Wilson, Volunteer of the Year Award

The Leader of the Council congratulated Jen Wilson of Swansea on winning
the Adult Category of the Wales Volunteer of the Year Awards 2014.

He stated that Pianist Jen Wilson has created a unique archive on the history
of Welsh and British women in jazz, the value of which is recognised
worldwide. Jen Wilson founded Jazz Heritage Wales, formally known as The
Women's Jazz Archive nearly 30 years ago.

3) Elba Estate, Gowerton — Ground Rent Review
The Leader of the Council stated that he sympathised and understood the
plight of the residents of the Elba Estate, Gowerton and called upon the Chief

Executive, Jack Straw to give a statement.

The Chief Executive stated that:

i) Officers of the City and County of Swansea are duty bound to enact the
rent review as contained within the lease agreement, and have done
SO.

Page 6



28.

29.

Minutes of the Council (17.06.2014)
Contd

ii) Doing so is in line with the legal duty for the City and County of
Swansea to obtain best value and to follow Council Policy that also
covers this.

iii) Officers of the City and County of Swansea have no discretion to waive
the law or best value.

The Chief Executive then stated that there was a self evident and formal

process:
i) The rent review notice has been issued and now rents have to be
agreed.

ii) Tenants should consider taking independent advice, as the City and
County of Swansea is not allowed to advise.

iii) Tenants should respond to the City and County of Swansea by either
agreeing the rent, or more likely not agreeing it.

iv)  There is an opportunity at that stage to enter into negotiation, but any
discretion has to be exercised by Cabinet in line with its legal duties
and the broader greater good.

V) The matter can then go to formal binding arbitration.

vi)  The new level of rents do not become due until the process is complete.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS.

A number of questions were asked by members of the public. The relevant Cabinet
Member responded accordingly. Those questions requiring a written response are
listed below:

1) Tony Beddow asked the Leader of the Council (in the absence of the
Regeneration Cabinet Member) a question in relation to Minute 34 “Written
Responses to Questions asked at the Last Ordinary Meeting of Council’.

a) ‘Page 57, Response to Question 2. The likely profit of Swansea
Stadium Management Company (SSMC) would appear to be circa
£160,000 at the end of 2014-2015.

What is the estimated share of that profit due to the City and County of
Swansea under the current agreement?”

The Leader of the Council stated that a written response would be provided.

PUBLIC PRESENTATION - TIME TO CHANGE.

Anthony Metcalfe, Programme Manager for Time to Change Wales gave a
presentation to Council on the work of the Time to Change campaign. Time to
Change Wales is the first national campaign to end the stigma and discrimination
faced by people with mental health problems.

The campaign is needed because although mental health problems are very
common, they can still be a taboo subject. People who experience mental illness
often face stigma and discrimination in the workplace, socially and within families.

Page 7



30.

31.

Minutes of the Council (17.06.2014)
Contd

This can make life with a mental health problem more difficult than the symptoms
themselves.

Time to Change Wales want to improve knowledge and understanding about mental
illness and, most importantly of all, get people talking about mental health.

Further information may be found at http://www.timetochangewales.org.uk/en/

The Wellbeing Cabinet Member (Councillor M C Child) thanked him for the
presentation.

NOTICE OF MOTION FROM COUNCILLORS MC CHILD, JE BURTONSHAW, NS
BRADLEY, SE CROUCH, CR DOYLE, W EVANS, D PHILLIPS, C RICHARDS, RC
STEWART & M THEAKER.

The Deputy Presiding Member moved that the following Notice of Motion be brought
forward in the agenda. This was seconded by Councillor M C Child.

The following motion was proposed by Councillor M C Child and seconded by
Councillor D Phillips.

“This Council wishes to recognise the work of the Time to Change Wales campaign
as the first national campaign to encourage people to talk openly about their mental
health. It is hoped that this will assist in bringing an end to the stigma and
discrimination faced by people with mental health problems.

This Council acknowledges the fact that within their lifetime 1 in 4 people will be
affected by mental illness and whilst mental health issues can be classed from mild
to severe, the impact for most sufferers, and their families and friends, can be
absolutely devastating.

This Council supports and signs the Time to Change Wales Organisational Pledge.
This Council will do all it is able to support both the public and its staff in regards to
mental health and the aims of the Time to Change Wales campaign.”
RESOLVED that the Notice of Motion as shown above be approved.

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES.

The Citizen, Community Engagement and Democracy Cabinet Member referred to
the report stating that the Leader of the Council had removed the following
organisations from the Outside Bodies list as they had either been disbanded,
subsumed into the Swansea Bay City Region or it was no longer relevant to send
representatives from the Authority:

Arts Council of Wales — (Mid and West Wales Area Committee);
City Centre Partnership;

Coleg Harlech;

Community Cohesion Fund Grants Panel;

Industrial Common Ownership Fund — Decision Making Panel,

Page 8



32.

Minutes of the Council (17.06.2014)
Contd

Institute of Welsh Affairs;

Oystermouth Castle Management Board;
Shoreline Management Plan;

South Wales Economic Forum;

South West Wales Regional Waste Consortium;
Swansea Bay Partnership;

Wales Council for the Blind;

Welsh Centre for International Affairs;

Wales Home Safety Council.

She also reported that the Leader of the Council had made amendments to the
membership of the following Outside Bodies:

1) Swansea Bay Regional Equality Council (Formerly known as the
Swansea Bay Racial Equality Council)

Remove Councillors Y V Jardine and P Sangha.
Add Councillors J E C Harris and M Theaker.

2) Swansea Council for Voluntary Service

Remove Councillor N M Ronconi-Woollard.
Add Councillor A M Cook.

RESOLVED that the membership of the Council Bodies listed below be amended as
follows:

1) Local Development Plan (LDP) Advisory Group
Remove Councillor G D Walker.
Add Councillor E W Fitzgerald.

AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNCIL CONSTITUTION - GOWER AREA OF
OUTSTANDING BEAUTY (AONB) PARTNERSHIP.

The Presiding Member, Monitoring Officer and Head of Democratic Services jointly
submitted a report which sought to make amendments in order to simplify, improve
and / or add to the Council Constitution in relation to the following area:

1) Parts 3 - Terms of Reference of the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) Partnership.

RESOLVED that:

1) The amended terms of reference for the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) Partnership as outlined in the report be adopted;

2) Any relevant reports being presented to the AONB Partnership at its annual

meeting should also be presented to the Development and Control Committee
for information.

Page 9



33.

34.

35.

36.

Minutes of the Council (17.06.2014)
Contd

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION - AUDIT COMMITTEE.

The Presiding Member, Monitoring Officer and Head of Democratic Services jointly
submitted a report which sought to make amendments in order to simplify, improve
and / or add to the Council Constitution in relation to the following area:

1) Parts 3 - Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee.

RESOLVED that the amended terms of reference for the Audit Committee as
outlined in Appendix 2 of the report be adopted.

COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS.

1) Part A ‘Supplementary Questions’
Four (4) Part A ‘Supplementary Questions’ were submitted. The relevant
Cabinet Member(s) responded by way of written answers contained in the
Council Summons.
No supplementary question s required a written response:

2) Part B ‘Questions not requiring Supplementary Questions’

No Part B ‘Questions not requiring Supplementary Questions’ were submitted.

WRITTEN RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS ASKED AT THE LAST ORDINARY
MEETING OF COUNCIL.

The Head of Legal, Democratic Services and Procurement submitted an information
report setting out the written responses to questions asked at the last Ordinary
Meeting of Council.

SCRUTINY DISPATCHES.

The Chair of the Scrutiny Programme Committee submitted an information report
which provided Council with a progress report on various scrutiny activities.

The meeting ended at 6.33 pm

CHAIR

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 8.a

Report of the Leader
Council - 15 July 2014

ONE SWANSEA PLAN AND DELIVERY FRAMEWORK 2014

Purpose: This report presents the One Swansea Plan 2014
and Delivery Statement.

Policy Framework: Council Constitution.

Reason for Decision: To adopt the One Swansea Plan 2014 as the
overarching strategy for the area.

Consultation: Legal, Finance, Access to Services

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that:

1) The One Swansea Plan and Delivery Statement 2014 are adopted.

Report Author: Dave Mckenna

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley

Legal Officer: Nigel Havard

Access to Services Phil Couch

Officer:

1.0 Background

1.1 The One Swansea Plan was adopted by Council for the first time in
2013. In line with a more flexible, results based approach, the plan is to
be reviewed and updated annually. To this end the needs assessment
for the plan was updated in November 2013 and a consultation process
undertaken earlier this year.

1.2  The updated 2014 version of the plan, along with a delivery statement
showing how the plan will make a difference, was agreed by Swansea
Local Service Board in May. These documents can be found at:
www.swansea.gov.uk/OneSwansea.

1.3  This plan is the overarching strategic plan for Swansea. As the Council
has a strategic leadership role for the area so the One Swansea Plan
should reflect the Council’'s Policy Commitments. At the same time the
One Swansea Plan and the Council’s Corporate Plan should be closely
aligned.

Page 11



1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

At the heart of the plan are six Population Outcomes and 21 linked
Challenges. These are summarised in the table below.

Population Outcomes Challenges

A. Children Have a Good Start in
Life

Low Birth Weight
Domestic Abuse
School Readiness

School Attendance
School Achievement
Adult Qualifications

B. People Learn Successfully

C. Young People and Adults
Have Good Jobs

Youth Unemployment
Economic Inactivity
Average Earnings
Economic Performance

D. People Have a Decent
Standard of Living

Child Poverty
Household Income
Personal Debt

E. People are Healthy, Safe and
Independent

Preventable Early Deaths
Life Expectancy

Older Peoples’ Independence
Crime

F. People Have Good Places to
Live and Work

Public Transport
Carbon Emissions
Biodiversity
Housing Quality

PONSPONSON=2RON2WON2WN =

How Has the Plan Changed?

The purpose of having an annual update of the One Swansea Plan is to
ensure that it can respond and adapt to any important changes. This
year, however, the plan remains broadly the same as the plan published
in 2013. The vision, overall approach and population outcomes, for
example, have not changed.

Some of the details of the plan have, however, been updated to reflect
changes over the last 12 months. The section referring to culture, for
example, has been updated to reflect the Dylan Thomas Centenary.
Safeguarding is another important priority that has come to the fore over
the last 12 months and has been reflected. Similarly, while the 21
challenges remain the same, at least for this year, some aspects, such
as improved indicators, for example, have been altered.

The process of updating the plan reflected:

e The One Swansea Needs Assessment 2013 — This first update of
the strategic needs assessment provides updated data for the
indicators as well as some improvements to the indicators. The full
document can be found at www.swansea.gov.uk/OneSwansea

Page 12



24

3.0

3.1

3.2

e One Swansea Plan Consultation 2014 — This process collected
feedback from the public through Swansea Voices and a separate
online survey and from partner organisations through an online
survey. The findings report can also be found at
www.swansea.gov.uk/OneSwansea

¢ Integrated Impact Assessment — The aim of this assessment,
facilitated by the Council’'s Sustainable Development Unit, is to ensure
that the plan is consistent with a range of policy issues such as
sustainable development, social inclusion, equalities and healthy
cites. A summary of the recommendations made from the
assessment and the responses are attached as an appendix to the
plan.

One advantage of updating the plan annually is that the list of 21
challenges can be adjusted. Challenges that are seen as no longer
important can be replaced by new ones that have become more
pressing. As the plan is relatively new the Local Service Board has
agreed that the challenges remain the same for this year but that the
LSB Research Group is asked to make recommendations about changes
as part of the process of producing the One Swansea Needs
Assessment 2014.

Partnership and Regional Working

The following set of principles for partnership and regional working are
included in the updated plan:

e Swansea LSB holds overall responsibility and accountability for the
delivery of the One Swansea Plan and for the coordination of
partnership working.

e The LSB will recognise and work with a small number of local and
regional ‘delivery partnerships’ that will provide leadership in given
service areas.

e OQutside of the recognised delivery partnerships, partnership working
will be informal, flexible, aligned with priorities and strictly ‘task and
finish’.

e All partnership arrangements outside of the delivery partnerships will
be periodically reviewed by the relevant delivery partnership — when
work is complete or no longer a priority it will end.

As part of this approach the following groups have been recognised as
delivery partnerships by the LSB:

Delivery partnerships that the LSB directs:

Swansea Children and Young People Board
Swansea Healthy City Board

Swansea Economic Regeneration Partnership
Swansea Poverty Forum

Page 13



4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.0

5.1

e Safer Swansea Partnership
Delivery partnerships that inform the work of the LSB:

e Swansea Bay City Region Board
e \Western Bay Executive Programme Board
e Swansea Environmental Forum

Delivery Framework

A wider lesson from this area of work is that ‘delivery is a bigger
challenge than strategy’. Making a difference to high level outcomes
requires the coordination of a wide range of partners and the
engagement of the public. This is a different way of working than is
typical within organisations.

The Delivery Framework is a tool intended to help the LSB to monitor,
focus and coordinate activity around the 21 Challenges in the Plan.
Drawing on lessons learnt from the work on NEETs in particular, it
highlights the need for a single point of leadership and a single
‘coordinating mechanism’ (usually an action plan).

The Delivery Framework briefly sets out for each Challenge:

Aspiration for 2020 A measurable objective - where we want the
indicator for the Challenge to be in 2020

Population Indicator | Where the indicator is now — taken from the

Progress most recent One Swansea Needs Assessment

Key Partnerships and | The most significant partnerships and

Programmes programmes likely to impact on this Challenge
— individual services are not highlighted

Coordinating The partnership action plan or similar that

Mechanism coordinates activity for this Challenge.

Lead The Strategic Partnership (and sub group

where relevant) that is accountable for
coordinating activity

LSB Actions How the LSB will add value to activity to
address this challenge — this could range from
simply highlighting an issue to undertaking a
fundamental system review

The Delivery Framework for 2014 can be found at:
www.swansea.gov.uk/OneSwansea.

Equality and Engagement Implications

The Single Needs Assessment that informs the plan explores patterns of
inequality as well as a number of protected characteristics. The
consultation for the One Swansea Plan 2013 incorporated both an
Integrated Impact Assessment and an Equalities Impact Assessment.

Page 14



52

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

The engagement process will be integral to the success of any actions
emerging from the One Swansea Plan and will need to be further
informed through maintaining both an overall and, where necessary,
individual Equality Impact Assessment.

Legal Implications

The One Swansea Plan has been produced and updated in accordance
with the relevant Welsh Government Guidance: ‘Shared Purpose -
Shared Delivery’

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Procurement will be
consulted in respect of any possible contractual or partnership
arrangements as potentially envisaged by Paragraph 3.1 above

Financial Implications

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.

Background Papers:

e The One Swansea Plan 2013
¢ One Swansea Needs Assessment 2013

All available at: www.swansea.gov.uk/oneswansea

e Shared Purpose — Shared Delivery: Guidance on Integrating
Partnerships and Plans (2012)

Available from www.wales.gov.uk

Appendices: None

Page 15



Agenda Iltem 9.a

Report of the Cabinet Member for Citizen, Community Engagement &
Democracy

Council — 15 July 2014

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES

Purpose: Council approves the nominations / amendments to the
Council Bodies.

Policy Framework: None.

Reason for Decision:  To agree nominations for Committee Membership.
Consultation: Political Groups.

Recommendation: It is recommended that: -

1) The amendments to the Council Bodies listed in paragraph 2 of the report be
approved.

2) The Outside Body listed in Paragraph 3.1 of the report be removed from the list of
Outside Bodies.

Report Author: Gareth Borsden
Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith
Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley
Access to Services N/A

Officer:

1. Introduction

1.1 The Annual Meeting of Council on 8 May 2014, agreed membership of
the various Committees/Boards as reflected in the lists submitted by
the Political Groups.

2. Changes to Council Body Membership

2.1 The Political Groups have indicated that they have changes to Council
Bodies as indicated below.

Area 1 Development Committee
Remove Councillor P Sangha and add Councillor NM Ronconi-Woollard

3. Outside Bodies

3.1 The following organisation is to be removed from the Outside Bodies
list
¢ Religious Education Movement (Wales)
Page 16



4. Financial Implications

4.1  There are no financial implications associated with this report.

5. Legal Implications

5.1  There are no legal implications associated with this report.
Background Papers: Local Government & Housing Act 1989, the Local
Government (Committees & Political Groups) Regulations 1990.

Appendices: None

Page 17



Agenda Item 10.a

Report of the Cabinet Member for Learning and Skills
Council — 15 July 2014

HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT POLICY — PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON A NEW
PROPOSED POLICY

Purpose: To report back on the responses to consultation with
regard to the proposed new Home to School Transport
Policy and transitional support arrangements.

Policy Framework: Current Home to School Transport Policy.
The Welsh Education Strategic Plan.

Reason for Decision: For Council to approve the amended Home to School
Transport Policy recommended by Cabinet following the
meeting on 1% July 2014.

Consultation: Legal, Finance, Transportation & Access to Services

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that;

1) Council note the outcome of the statutory consultation process and the
potential impact on equalities issues, as outlined in the report

2) Council accept the recommendation of Cabinet that two of the original three
proposals in relation to the discretionary areas of provision be approved —
that is: Passenger Assistants and Voluntary Aided School Transport
provision. Post 16 Transport provision to continue without change.

3) That Council approve the amended Home to School Transport Policy
attached at Appendix A.

Report Author: Chris Sivers

Finance Officer: Susan Rees

Legal Officer: Janet Hooper

Access to Sherill Hopkins and Phil Couch

Services Officers:

Page 18



1.2

1.3
1.4

1.5

1.7

1.8

1.9

Financial Context

The Council, in common with all local authorities, needs to take radical action
to respond to the wide range of service and financial pressures that we face,
including the reduction in external grant as a result of the UK austerity
measures.

The scale of the financial, demographic and sustainability challenge requires
the Council to adopt a radically different approach to previous years. An
approach that focuses on:

¢ The core future purpose of the Council

¢ The transformation of services and the model of delivery

e Greater collaboration with other councils and local organisations,
community groups and residents, and above all:

e Sustainable solutions with prevention at the heart

This ambition is set out in Sustainable Swansea — fit for the future.

The Medium Term Financial Plan adopted by Council on 18" February 2014
detailed the forecast budget savings requirements for the Council for the period
2015/16 to 2017/18, together with an indicative funding scenario for each
financial year. Specific details of the individual savings proposals that make up
the above total were included in Appendix ‘A’ of the Medium Term Financial
Plan.

A key element of the budget strategy is the achievement of future year
specific savings proposals across all Services as follows:-

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000 £000
Specific Savings proposals -8,990 -17,143 -18,706

Several of the proposals require further consideration by Cabinet in terms of
implementation. Where this is the case, it has been agreed that further
reports will be brought back to Cabinet during 2014/15 detailing the work
undertaken and decisions required to implement the specific proposals.

It goes without saying that progress against these proposals is essential if the
Council is to achieve the required level of savings to balance future budget
requirements. Consequently, any decision not to proceed with a particular
proposal will result in a shortfall against agreed savings and will lead to a
requirement for additional savings from elsewhere within the Authority.

This report relates to Home to School Transport, contained within the agreed
savings for the People Directorate. The target savings in respect of this service,
and specifically these proposals, are:-

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000 £000
Home to School Transport 100 223 309

By their very nature, and due to statutory guidance that the Council has to take
into account, the realisation of savings (including those to Aided Transport),
whilst protecting existing pupils, have a long lead in period. The potential total
annual savings in relation to all three consultation proposals could be in excess
of £1.1m by 2022/23.

Page 19



1.10

1.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

The financial context facing the Council cannot ‘fetter’ the discretion of the
Authority. It is a clear and compelling driver but as part of the decision making
process Cabinet, and then Council as the ultimate decision maker, has to fully
consider and take into account the responses received through consultation.

Equality Impact Assessments have been completed in respect of all of the
proposed changes. They reflect the views received during the consultation and
are attached as Appendix B.

Background to the Review

The Welsh Government’s Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 (referred to as
“the Measure”) sets out the current statutory duties of Local Authorities with
regard to the provision of home to school transport. Statutory guidance is also
provided by the Welsh Government in the Learner Travel Operational Guidance
2009 document (referred to as “the 2009 Guidance.”).

Cabinet on the 11" February 2014 approved the commencement of
consultation with interested parties in relation to the proposed changes set out
in this report. The report provided further background detail in relation to the
partnership with the former South West Wales Integrated Transport Consortium
(SWWITCH) to produce a Regional Home to School Transport Policy covering
Swansea, Neath Port Talbot, Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire.

The proposed new policy will be simpler and clearer than the current individual
Council policies and covers transport for mainstream and SEN pupils. The
Policy will be supported by more detailed Operational Guidelines which will be
issued to all those involved in the assessment of entitlement and procurement
of school transport. The proposed new policy will take into account current
budget pressures and recognise the need to make changes to discretionary
transport elements.

Significant efficiency and contract savings of at least £660k per annum have
already been delivered by comparison with the equivalent contracts in 2009 (in
addition to mitigation of other inflationary cost drivers), as part of the 3 year
‘One Education Budget’ strategy over recent years, through consistently robust
management of the service and regular re-tendering of taxi contracts, to as far
as possible optimise efficiency of delivery. This represents achieved
cumulative savings of around £2.0m, without any reliance on costly external
consultancy support.

These savings also in part reflect the impact of the improved ‘spread’ of Welsh
medium primary and secondary provision over recent years through the QEd
strategic programme.

Wherever possible the fullest practical use of the vehicles that the Council
operates is ensured before contracting with other operators. Constructive
discussion has taken place with the relevant officers in Education, Social
Services and Transportation which indicates little scope for further savings to
be delivered in this area. Any further detailed work on this would be part of the
wider corporate transport review.

However, further challenging saving targets for 12/13 and 13/14 have proved
unachievable without a change in Council policy and further pressures are
apparent in the current financial year.

National changes to criteria for determining ‘safe’ walking routes to school,

outside the Council’s control, are likely to significantly increase demand and
Page 20



3.2

3.3

therefore costs of free transport provision in the future, as well as undermining
some of the work that has been undertaken to deliver ‘invest to save’ options
through investment in improving walking routes to school.

Statutory Requirements

The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 sets out the legal framework for
home to school transport in Wales. Under section 3 of the Measure, children of
compulsory school age are entitled to free home to school transport when they
live more than 2 miles (for primary age) and 3 miles (for secondary age) from
their nearest suitable school. The walking distance is measured by the shortest
available route. The guidance states that, “a route is considered to be
‘available’ if it is safe for a child without a disability or learning difficulty to walk
the route alone or with an escort if the age of the child would call for such an
escort.” If a route is not ‘available’ then a child is entitled to free transport even
though the distance from home to school is less than the distance limit that
applies to his/her age. The Council will continue to meet these responsibilities
in any future policy.

In deciding whether a School is a suitable School, Local Authorities need to
take into account the child’s age, ability and aptitude, and any learning
difficulties.

Paragraph 1.23 of the 2009 Guidance states:

“1.23 Neither the child’s or parent’s language preference or mother tongue, nor
religious faith or conviction of the child or his or her parent have any bearing on
whether a School is suitable. However, the Measure (section 10) does require
each local authority to promote access to education and training through the
medium of Welsh when exercising their functions under the Measure”.

Section 4 of the Measure also requires a local authority to make other travel
arrangements for children of compulsory school age if the authority judges it is
necessary in order to facilitate a child’s attendance at school. Paragraph 1.18 of
the 2009 Guidance says this section provides the basis for local authorities to
support travel for children if they have particular needs, whether arising from a
learning difficulty, a disability or any other factor which makes particular travel
arrangements necessary to facilitate the child’s attendance.

Part 2 of the 2009 Guidance deals with discretionary transport arrangements.
Paragraph 2.3 of the 2009 Guidance says:

“2.3 Section 6 of the Measure gives a local authority a power to make any
arrangements they think fit to facilitate the travel of learners to and from a place
where they receive education or training. The power applies in relation to a
learner living or studying in the authority’s area. This could include transport for
those under 5 or over 16, or to schools other than the nearest suitable school —
for instance it could include transport to schools with or without a religious
character or to Welsh or English medium schools in cases where the nearest
suitable school has not met parental preference in these respects.

2.4 Local Authorities may provide free transport for travel over a shorter walking
distance than the statutory distances of 2 or 3 miles. When this is the case, the
policy must apply to all pupils in similar circumstances living in the authority’s
area.

Page 21



2.5 If a local authority does make use of the Powers in section 6 of the
Measure, it must ensure that any policies are fair, reasonable and comply with
relevant legislation including equality legislation and the Human Rights Act
1998. Local Authorities must not discriminate unlawfully between learners when
using their section 6 powers.”

Discretionary Areas of Provision

Consultation has taken place on proposed changes to three areas of
discretionary provision namely:

1. The provision of passenger assistants,
2. Transport to Voluntary Aided schools and
3. Post 16 transport.

In the light of the consultation responses and equality impact assessment,
Cabinet recommended on 1st July that only the first two of these proposals
should be approved. Proposal three (post 16 transport provision) should
continue without change as in the current position.

Proposal 1: Passenger Assistants on School Transport Services

4.2

4.3

4.4

Current Policy

The Home to School Transport policy currently states, in respect of pupils with
special educational needs, that:
‘passenger assistants are generally provided on all vehicles as standard’.

For other pupils it states that:
‘passenger assistants are provided on all home to primary school contract
vehicles.’

Proposal on which we have consulted

That the provision of passenger assistants in future is on the basis of a
risk assessment where it is assessed that there would be a significant
risk to passenger safety if a Passenger Assistant was not provided. This
would be for all categories of passengers. This is currently the practice in
around half of the Local Authorities in Wales. For children with statements of
SEN this would be done as part of their annual review. For other pupils this
would be carried out annually when routes are reviewed for the start of the new
academic year.

Key points raised in consultation

The most significant areas of concern highlighted include:
The removal of passenger assistants is detrimental to the safety of pupils

Children on mainstream primary routes in approximately half the Councils in
Wales are currently being transported on routes without passenger assistants
and have been for some time. Before any route has its passenger assistant
removed it will be assessed to ensure that no unacceptable risks are being
placed on the children.

For SEN transport routes, the provision of a passenger assistant would remain
necessary in the majority of cases.

Page 22



For mainstream routes there are a number of situations where specific potential
issues are identified:

1. Routes where children transfer from one vehicle to another

2. Routes where the vehicle stops some distance from the school and the
children are walked into the school.

3. Where pre-school age children are carried

4. Child protection issues of a single adult working with children.

5. Failure of parent/ carer to meet pupils at drop off points.

These issues could be overcome by removing the current option for pre-school
children to buy a seat on school transport, and also by advising schools to
undertake their duty (as outlined in the Learner Travel Operational Guidance
2009 - para. 1.55), to supervise embarkation and disembarkation of the school
transport vehicles. Specifically this states:

The Welsh Assembly Government regards it as good practice that head
teachers ensure that there is supervision of embarkation and disembarkation,
whether on, outside, or near the school premises. The level of supervision will
depend on local circumstances and the age of pupils. The head teacher should
contact the authority immediately about any concerns or matters reported to
him or her.

Under the Measure the Authority is under a duty to assess learner travel needs
and to make travel arrangements. Travel arrangements may include provision
of persons to escort a child when travelling. In making an assessment the
Authority must have regard to the needs of disabled learners, learners with
learning difficulties, the age of child and nature of routes. Transport
arrangements are not suitable if they cause unreasonable level of stress on a
child or are unsafe. In order to comply with the duty under the Measure and to
ensure the continued safety of children travelling to school the Authority will
undertake risk assessments on routes and consider the needs and risks posed.
The risk assessment will include any risk posed by the age of the pupils, any
special educational needs, disabilities, any other areas of vulnerability, and
general standards of behaviour on the route. Any risk identified will be
assessed and a decision made as to whether a passenger assistant should be
provided on that route. This will ensure that the duty under the Measure and
general duty of care is discharged.

The removal of passenger assistants will make journeys too stressful for
children and their parents

Routes will be carefully inspected before any passenger assistants are
removed and possible causes of stress for the passengers will be considered
before a decision is made. By engaging with the children it should be possible
to discover what specific concerns they may have and the council will attempt
to work with them to alleviate these causes of stress. It must be remembered
that about half of the Councils in Wales already transport their primary children
without passenger assistants and we will only remove any passenger assistant
if appropriate after an assessment is carried out.

Safeguarding and child protection concerns for children, particularly on
their way home, and in terms of the vulnerability of the driver, which
would need to be mitigated

All staff that work on school transport services have to be checked through the
Disclosure and Barring Service and approved by the Council prior to

Page 23



4.5

employment. School transport services carrying pupils of secondary school age
do not currently have passenger assistants travelling on them and so the
proposal would be consistent with this approach.

There may be occasions when there is no responsible adult at the drop off point
to collect a primary aged child. A procedure for dealing with this circumstance is
already included in the school transport contract terms and conditions and also
in the School Transport Code of Conduct. Pupils are not allowed off the vehicle
if there is no responsible adult there to meet them.

Safety concerns in terms of ensuring the use of seatbelts, supervision of
children and opportunities for bullying

The size of the vehicle used on the service will be a factor to be considered as
part of the risk assessment process alongside the number and age of pupils as
it would be easier for the driver to supervise a smaller number of pupils on a
minibus or car than on a larger bus or coach.

The potential impact on school admissions and particularly the choices of
pre-school parents

Approximately 20 pupils of pre school age purchase spare seats on school
transport. Most of these are mainstream pupils who would not be able to
purchase seats if this proposal is implemented.

There is no legal requirement for the Council to provide transport for pupils
under statutory school age, but the removal of this facility is likely to be
unpopular with parents who will have to make alternative arrangements to get
their pre school aged children to and from school.

Most of the pre school age pupils who purchase spare seats attend Welsh
Medium or Voluntary Aided provision and therefore the impact of withdrawing
this concession is likely to have a greater impact on these schools than English
medium schools.

It is likely that some parents will select local English Medium mainstream
provision as their pre school aged children will not be able to purchase seats to
travel to Welsh medium or VA schools further away. This will potentially impact
on pupils’ ability to engage in Welsh medium activities at the pre school stage
and language ability in the longer term.

The Guidance for the Measure does not restrict consideration of the effects of a
policy change on the Welsh language to any age group and would be equally
good practice for pre-school as for post-16. Failure to take this into account
raises the prospect of a potential challenge.

The Council does not have the ability to assess routes effectively

The Council employs qualified road safety officers, transport professionals and
health and safety officers and in the case of pupils with SEN employs an officer
with many years’ experience of working with children with the full range of SEN.
This officer also has access to the educational psychology team and the wider
resources of the Additional Learning Needs team if necessary.

Projected Savings

Assuming passenger assistants are paid the minimum wage of just over £6 per
hour, the potential saving on mainstream transport of removing all passenger
assistants would be around £135k per year. Routes will be assessed before

Page 24



4.6

withdrawing passenger assistants and any costs will be met from within the
remaining transport budget.

The income currently generated by the sale of spare seats to pupils of pre
school age is £3,800 per annum. The loss of this income would need to be off
set against these savings leaving a net projected saving of up to £131,200.

Equalities Implications

An EIA Screening Form was previously completed with the agreed outcome
that a full EIA report was required. The completed EIA report is attached
(Appendix B).

The provision of passenger assistants in future would be on the basis of a risk
assessment where it is assessed that there would be a significant risk to
passenger safety if a Passenger Assistant was not provided. This would be for
all categories of passengers.

For children with statements of SEN this would be done as part of their annual
review and for other pupils this would be carried out annually when routes are
reviewed for the start of the new academic year.

The risk assessment proposed would also be subject to an Equality Impact
Assessment.

Proposal 2: Transport to Voluntary Aided Schools (Catholic and Church in

Wales)

4.7

4.8

4.9

Current provision

The Authority currently provides free transport to Voluntary Aided (VA) schools
(Catholic and Church in Wales) based upon the statutory distance criteria
regardless of whether the school is the nearest available school for that child.

The VA school (based on the parental choice made) is effectively deemed to be
the nearest suitable school for the child, and the statutory distance criteria ( 2
miles primary, 3 miles secondary) is then applied. Transport is provided on this
basis to pupils aged 5 to 19 both to schools in the Council’s area and also for
pupils living in Swansea but whose closest faith school is outside the Council’s
area.

Proposal on which we've consulted

That discretionary free transport to Voluntary Aided sector schools would
only be provided (based on the statutory distance criteria) where there is

no nearer mainstream school for that pupil. This will apply to pupils aged

5 to 19 years.

The proposed change would be introduced on a transitional basis, which
means that those pupils in receipt of free transport prior to September 2014
would retain that benefit up to the next point of transition, e.g. a move from
primary to secondary education or when progressing from year 11 to post 16
education.

Pupils with statements of Special Educational Need (SEN) would not be
affected by this proposed policy change as their transport is based upon
distance criteria to their chosen/allocated school.

Key points raised in consultation

The most significant areas of concern highlighted include:
Page 25



Restriction on learner and parental choice, especially for less wealthy
families (Parents / carers with a strong desire for a faith based education for
their children will be unable to send their children to a faith based school
because transport costs are considered to be prohibitive).

The Council is committed to providing high quality schools for all its children
and by deciding to make efficiency savings in the manner proposed it means
that scarce funds can be targeted at preserving this core provision. It cannot be
denied that poorer families may find it more difficult to find the resources to get
their children to a VA school. They will however, have access to a good local
school.

Perceived discrimination on religious grounds and will treat Aided
schools differently than Welsh medium schools

The proposal to remove this transport is not viewed as discriminatory. This is
because the Council is currently treating the voluntary aided sector more
favourably than the other English medium schools and the new policy will treat
both groups equally. It is recognised that this proposal will only impact on the
VA schools and it is regrettable that the financial position of the Council has
made this proposal necessary. The Council can offer assurances that no child
currently in receipt of free transport who is attending a VA school will have their
transport removed for their time at that school.

The Learner Travel Operational Guidance 2009 states (section 1.23):

“Neither the child’s or parents language preference or mother tongue, nor
religious faith or conviction of the child or his or her parent have any bearing on
whether a school is suitable. However the Measure (Section 10) does require
each Local Authority to promote access to education and training through the
medium of Welsh when exercising their functions under the Measure.”

The Learner Travel Operational Guidance 2009 does go on to say in section
2.18:

“Section 9 of the Education Act 1996 places a general duty on local authorities
to have regard to the general principle that pupils are to be educated in
accordance with the wishes of their parents so far as that is compatible with the
provision of effective instruction and training and the avoidance of
unreasonable public expenditure. Consequently, many authorities in Wales
have a policy of providing free transport to pupils attending church schools who
live beyond the walking distances set in the Measure and these policies have
been developed to meet local circumstances and needs. Section 6 of the
Measure will allow local authorities to continue to be able to provide such
transport and Welsh Ministers expect this to be the case.”

The Authority’s interpretation of the above statements, and further examination
of the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure (2008) (the Measure) and the
Operational guidance (2009) concludes that the removal of the discretionary
spend on VA school transport is permissible within the guidance.

Additionally the legal duties outlined in the draft Guidance on learner Travel
Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance states that Local Authorities
must promote access to Welsh medium education. Faith schools are not
included in these duties.

The proposal will cause parents financial difficulties / financially unfair /
general disagreement

Page 26



There may be a cost to parents. This cost is likely to be the same as the cost
for any other parent deciding not to send their child to the nearest mainstream
local school. A good education will be available locally should the parents not
be able to meet the transport costs. \We understand that this may cause
difficulties, hence the phasing in over 6 years.

The proposal goes against Statute i.e. Section 6 of Education Act, or
Learner Travel (Wales) Measure or Operational Guidance, UNCRC, Human
Rights Act, Equality Act 2010

Section 9 of the Education Act places a general duty on local authorities to
have regards to the general principle that pupils are to be educated in
accordance with the wishes of their parent, however this is ‘in so far as that is
compatible with the provision of efficient instruction and training and with the
avoidance of unreasonable public expenditure’. Due to the financial
pressures the Council is currently facing it is considered to be unreasonable to
continue to provide faith based transport which is a discretionary provision
under section 6 of the Measure

Nothing in the proposal contravenes Principle 7 of the United Nation
Convention on the Rights of the Child. This is an entitlement for a child to
receive education which promotes their general culture. It is not an entitlement
to transport.

Also, nothing in the proposal contravenes Article 2 of the European Convention
on Human Rights or any legislation on unlawful discrimination. Article 2 of the
first Protocol guarantees a right to access to education. The Article also
requires all schools to respect parents beliefs. It does not confer an entitlement
to transport.

The Equality Act 2010, Schedule 3, provides an exemption to discrimination on
the grounds of religion or belief in relation to transport to or from school.

Please see response to “The proposal constitutes discrimination on religious
grounds” above which covers the Learner Travel Measure and it's Operational
Guidance.

The proposal will affect the long term viability of the Faith schools

There may be some impact on the number of pupils on roll at Faith schools,
however, most Aided schools are currently over-subscribed. Consequently, the
Council does not envisage any school becoming non-viable as a result of the
proposed transport changes. Furthermore, education provision in the Council is
likely to change over the longer term, especially with regard to secondary
schools.

There may also be a corresponding increase in numbers at other mainstream
schools, providing there are sufficient places. Should there be insufficient
capacity it may be necessary to transport children to the next available school.

Increased traffic congestion across the City

It is thought that the overriding effect of this policy is more likely to be less
travel rather than more. It is true that in the shorter term there may be
increased drop off traffic at some schools, but this will be mitigated by the
transitional implementation of the new policy.

Page 27



410

It is possible that there might be increased numbers of pupils travelling by
public transport, resulting in overloading of public transport vehicles at peak
times but this is difficult to quantify as the numbers of pupils involved are
uncertain, as are their future choice of travel mode.

There could also be areas where there is no public transport available at all or
none available at appropriate times. The areas most affected would be very
rural and the most likely scenario is that pupils will have longer journeys
involving a change of bus, probably in the city centre.

Impact on those Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETS)

It is possible that if pupils are not able to take up the option of faith based
education because of the inconvenience and costs of travelling then some
pupils may be discouraged from attending school. They will however have the
option of attending their local school.

We have a good track record of working with those at risk of becoming NEET
and we would continue to provide support to ensure that students are
supported.

Administrative impact on the Local Authority

There would be a significant increase in administration costs if the Council
chose to in future charge or means test parents for Aided transport, however,
this is not what is being proposed here.

Projected savings

Modelling the savings which would be realised from this change of policy
requires some assumptions to be made:

(1) The spread of pupils across all age ranges in the school remains the
same.

(i) Pupils lose entitlement to free transport at each school life event e.g. at
transition from primary to secondary school.

The costs at September 2013 are estimated to be £806,540 including an
estimated 3% indexation factor which is applied annually from 1 September.
The potential savings have been modelled as pupils drop out during the
transitional period. Passenger numbers will therefore fall and vehicle sizes can
be reduced based upon current costs and the numbers of pupils in each year

group.
Whilst the proposal would be a significant change to policy, using current
attendance and travel records it can be demonstrated that the change will affect

approximately 40% of children at Bishop Vaughan, 60% at St David’s, 34% at
St Joseph’s Cathedral, 26% at St llityd’s and 18% at Christchurch schools.

There would be some increases in transport costs to other schools if pupils
move to alternative mainstream provision but it is anticipated that if the policy
change is implemented from September 2015, a saving of £683,000 might be
delivered by 2022/23. Savings in earlier years will be modest due to the need to
protect existing pupils through the remaining years of their education at their
chosen school until the respective point of transition.

Savings would commence from September 2015 when these could amount to
£22 .5k (part year effect in 15/16). This could rise to £67.7k in 2016/17, £138.4k
in 2017/18, £209.6 in 2018/19, £371.5k in 2019/20, £471.5k in 2020/21 and
£601.7k in 2021/22.

Page 28



4.1

The possibility of means testing pupils for entittement has been considered, but
this would involve considerable extra administration as there would need to be
continual monitoring of entitlement as families incomes change. This would
reduce the potential savings outlined above. In addition pupils who may be
entitled as a result of means testing are likely to be relatively small numbers at
scattered locations across the County. The provision of transport on this basis
is likely to be expensive as taxis and small minibuses would be needed
compared to the current costs of providing transport using buses and minibuses
for larger groups of pupils who live in the same area.

Equalities Implications

An EIA Screening Form was previously completed with the agreed outcome
that a full EIA report was required. The completed EIA report is attached
(Appendix B).

It is recognised that this proposal will only impact on the Voluntary Aided
schools and it is regrettable that the financial position of the Council has made
this proposal necessary. The Council can offer assurances that no child
currently in receipt of free transport who is attending any of these schools
would have their transport removed for the remainder of their time at that
school with the exception of Bishop Vaughan School when pupils move from
compulsory school age to post 16 provison at the same site. The phased
introduction of the change will ensure this. Legal advice states that these
changes do not contravene any statutes including the Equality Act 2010.

The potential saving over time is very significant, although the need to protect
existing pupils means that the full savings could not be realised until 2022/23.

Proposal 3: Financial Assistance for Post 16 Transport — Introduction of a

common charge.

412

The 2013/14 budget of £546k included £321k in financial assistance to Gower
and Neath Colleges, a further £195k in respect of SEN transport, and a further
£29kK in respect of assistance in transport to sixth forms.

Current Policy

School Sixth Forms: Currently all post 16 pupils attending a Swansea school
sixth form who live more than 3 miles from the school are provided with free
home-to-school transport.

Gower College, Swansea: The majority of Swansea students opting to study at
post 16 at Gower College are required to pay between £205 and £220 per
annum towards the cost of their transport. The Local Authority makes an
annual payment to Gower College Swansea of £272k and £49k to NPT College
to subsidise the costs of transport provision for students — a total annual grant
of £321k.

Further Education Colleges outside the City and County of Swansea: Some
post 16 students opt to attend a Further Education (FE) College outside the
City and County of Swansea area i.e. NPT College if a particular course is not
available in the area. Students are provided with a free bus pass to attend
these destinations, but have to make a financial contribution of £100 per annum
towards transport and other college services.

Page 29



413

4.14

Proposal on which we’ve consulted

To seek to introduce a common charge across the City and County of
Swansea with Gower College Swansea for all post 16 students eligible
through distance criteria to the nearest appropriate school except for
those students who still have a statement of special educational needs.
This proposal would apply to English medium, Welsh medium and Voluntary
Aided provision.

The level of charge would need to be set at a level broadly consistent with
charges for College students and also those charges levied by the Council for
the sale of spare seats on contracted School Transport services. Assuming a
charge of around £300 per academic year, this would actually result in a lower
charge for spare seats on school transport services than is currently levied
(£400) and would only marginally affect the overall saving to the Council. This
would equate to £1.58 per day for a return journey of over 3 miles for post
16 learners.

Key points raised in consultation

The most significant areas of concern highlighted include:
The proposed charge is too expensive / financially unfair.

The average cost to the Council of a pupil’s seat on school transport is £750
per year so on this basis the proposed charge of £300 is reasonable. For
families with a low income or for students with a low income living
independently, the Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA) is available to
help with further education costs.

Currently students eligible for transport attending Swansea school sixth forms
are provided with free home-to-school transport. In contrast, students attending
Gower College Swansea have to pay £205 plus an administration fee of £15
per annum towards transport costs. The proposal to introduce a standard rate
of around £300 per student living more than 3 miles from the school or college
destination would seek to ensure equity across the student base.

Charging will be a disincentive to pupils staying on in sixth form.

As explained above, an EMA is available to support students from low income
families. There are already students attending College paying transport costs at
more than £200. The proposal will help towards keeping post 16 students in
education (as opposed to a removal of support altogether).

The proposal discriminates against language and/or religious choice.

The proposal is to introduce a common charge to all post 16 students. We
recognise the possible greater impact on students attending faith and Welsh
medium schools as they have less choice of establishments and therefore
travel further. Presently the students of the Welsh medium and Catholic sixth
forms have enjoyed free transport whereas students attending College are
charged.

There is no evidence that the Authority has paid due attention to Clause
10 of the Measure to promote access to education and training through
the medium of the Welsh Language

When a Council is using its powers under Section 6 of the Measure to offer
discretionary travel arrangements for learners not entitled to free transport
provision, a charge can be made for these arrangements. The Council is

Page 30



415

promoting access to Welsh education by treating the Welsh medium and
English medium post 16 pupils the same, i.e. they will all have to pay the same
charge. The Council is proposing to continue to provide transport for Welsh
Medium provision but a charge will be made. As explained above, an EMA is
available to support students from low income families.

This proposal adversely affects choice

With the new proposed charge, the cost will be equitable for all post 16 across
the borough. Any student living more than three miles from the nearest
provision will pay the same price.

There needs to be concessions for those in receipt of certain benefits /
low income families

The Education Maintenance Allowance remains available for these families and
this provides up to £30 per week during term time for eligible students. The
possibility of means testing pupils for entitlement has been considered, but this
would involve considerable extra administration as there would need to be
continual monitoring of entitlement as families incomes change. This would
reduce the potential savings outlined above.

Will encourage greater student vehicle traffic, congestion and parking
issues

There is no evidence to suggest this might be the case. If students elect to
transport themselves, it is highly likely that the cost of personal transport will
exceed the proposed cost per annum.

Projected Savings

Gower College Swansea receives an annual income from the City and County
of Swansea of £272k. This is a discretionary allowance to provide subsidised
transport for post 16 students going to Gower College Swansea. In addition an
amount of £49k per annum is allocated for post 16 students living in the City
and County of Swansea who attend destinations outside Swansea, the total
annual amount being £321k.

Therefore, a policy change to introduce a charge for post 16 students could
result in savings, once fully implemented of around £321k per annum ie. the
annual payment to the Colleges. During the first year the savings would be
£187,250 — that is 7/12 of the overall grant total for the financial year 2015/16.
The full financial gain of £321k would be made during the financial year
2016/17.

Additional savings would be achieved in relation to students aged 11-16 years
who travel on home-to-school transport to school. The income generated by
the charge of around £300 per student would offset current costs. However, it
would be necessary to put in place administrative support to cope with the
additional workload to administer the charge levied on each eligible individual
student ie. those living more than 3 miles from the school/college destination
and also for those students travelling outside the area in order to pursue a
particular course not being offered within the area. The estimated cost of this
additional support is £10,000 per annum

It could also be possible to introduce a means tested system to assess
eligibility to pay the £300 annual fee; however, the costs anticipated to operate
a system would significantly reduce any potential savings. Eligible students are
in receipt of an Educational Maintenance Allowance as previously stated.

Page 31



4.16 Equalities Implications

An EIA Screening Form was previously completed with the agreed outcome
that a full EIA report was required. The completed EIA report is attached
(Appendix B).

Whilst the potential impact on take up of post 16 education is uncertain and of
concern, the potential saving is significant. The Education Maintenance
Allowance will provide support to those students and families who are eligible to
receive this support. It is recognised that the biggest impact of this change will
be on the Welsh Medium and Voluntary Aided sectors.

There is no duty to provide transport or make transport arrangements for those
over 16. Section 6 of the Learner Travel Measure allows for this discretionary
service to be provided and for it not to be free of charge. In making any change,
regard must be had for the 2009 Learner Travel Operational Guidance.

However, the Measure (section 10) does require each local authority to
promote access to education and training through the medium of Welsh when
exercising their functions under the Measure. There is no further mitigation for
young carers, disabled students without an SEN statement or those
disproportionately affected i.e. Welsh Medium students and Faith students.

How did the Authority consult?

5.1 Consultation took place between Monday 3rd March and Friday 11th April on
the three areas of discretionary transport. We offered response by online
version, tick box proforma, letter, or email and also face to face meetings where
appropriate. All comments and feedback received have been evaluated in order
to be represented to Cabinet in this report and inform the final transport policy.

5.2  During the consultation we engaged with the following stakeholders:

Audience Method

Pupils Pupil questionnaire via email to all School

Councils

Parents/carers Local media, social media, CCS website

Governors Email to all Governing Bodies

Headteachers Email to all Headteachers

The Council’'s Executive Board Email

Cabinet Formal process

All Councillors Email

Trade Unions Email

Evening Post

Press Release

Diocese

Email and meetings as appropriate

Gower College Swansea

Email and invitation to meet

Neath Port-Talbot College

Coleg Sir Gar Email
Welsh Government Email
Estyn Email
AMs Email
MPs Email
School Staff Email, Local Media, Twitter, Social Media,

CCS Website

Page 32




Other Media Press release

Senior Managers in Education Email

All Council Staff Staffnet

Swansea Residents Local Media, CCS website, social media
Local Businesses Local Media, CCS website

Bus Companies and Taxi Operators Email

Neighbouring Authorities — ERW plus | Email
Bridgend and Vale of Glamorgan

RhAG Email
Children’s Commissioner Email
SNAP Cymru Email
Scrutiny Board Email
Out of County Establishments e.g. Email
Heronsbridge School

School Councils Email

5.2 Intotal, 884 people responded to the consultation and their views on the three
proposals were as follows:

| agree with this | disagree with | neither agree Did not
proposal this proposal nor disagree with  respond
this proposal

Passenger 105 431 (49%) 310 38
Assistants
Transport to 89 741 (84%) 39 15
Voluntary Aided
Schools
Charging for Post 62 482 (55%) 300 40

16 Transport

5.3 A summary of the responses received from School Councils is attached at
Appendix C. Detailed responses have also been received from Bishop
Vaughan School and RhAG which provide a good summary on objections to
two of the three proposals (attached as Appendices D and E, respectively). For
the purposes of this report, comments have been summarised into the most
common themes. In summarising the comments, each communication was
reviewed. Some made a single comment on a single aspect/proposal and
others several comments over the course of a multi-page letter.

5.4  The following table summarises the most frequently made comments for each
proposal.

Page 33




PROPOSAL 1 Total comments = 224

Number of
comments for
this category

Removal of passenger assistants is detrimental to safety 70
General agree comments (no specific reason) 7
General neither agree or disagree comments 6
General disagree comments (no specific reason) 136
Removal of passenger assistants will make journeys too stressful 5
for children (and their parents)

Number of

PROPOSAL 2 Total ALL comments = 253

comments for
this category

The Proposal constitutes discrimination on religious grounds 162
There will be a restriction on freedom of choice especially for less 16
wealthy families
The proposal is unfair as Welsh schools are not being treated the 12
same
The proposal will cause parents financial difficulties / financially 59
unfair / general disagreement
The proposal goes against Statute (Use of section 6 of Education 4
Act, or Learner Travel (Wales) Measure or Operational Guidance)

Number of

PROPOSAL 3 Total Comments =125

comments for
this category

The proposed charge is too expensive / financially unfair 9
Charging will be a disincentive to pupils in staying on to sixth form 15
Discriminates against language and / or religious choice 23
Adversely effects choice 73
There needs to be concessions for those in receipt of certain 5

benefits / low income families

6. Implementation Timescales

6.1 It would be possible to implement a changed policy for new pupils / students

only with effect from September 2015, subject to Council agreement of the
proposals at its meeting on the 15" July 2014. This would provide sufficient
time for schools and parents to be notified prior to the new academic year 2015

Page 34




and would enable the Council’s transport policy statement to be amended
accordingly by the due date of 15! October 2014. In this way, changes could
then be implemented from September 2015.

7. Financial Implications

7.1 The estimated potential savings set out within the report, necessarily make a
range of assumptions as to contractual and customer behavioural responses to
the proposed changes in policy. Whatever action is taken to change current
transport policies, the resulting savings are likely to be offset to some extent at
least by the continuing cost pressures and potentially significant implications of
changes in national guidance in relation to available walking routes.

7.2  The table below summarises the potential scale and phasing of savings:

Option 14/15 | 15116 | 16/17 | 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Passenger - £70k | £131k | £131k £131k £131k £131k £131k | £131k

Assistants

Aided - | £22.5k | £67.7k | £138.4k | £209.6k | £371.5k | £471.5k | £601.7k | £683k

Transport

Post 16 - £187k | £321k | £321k | £321k | £321k | £321k | £321k | £321k

Transport

7.3  The existing MTFP cumulatively sets out total transport related savings
requirements (and therefore wider than these specific proposals) of;
15-16 £138k
16-17 £333k
17-18 £1,418k
It is recognised that these ftotal net savings include additional proposals not
specifically addressed at this time by the proposals in this report (especially
around future efficiencies). Nevertheless, the end values are less than required
and flow at a later time than required and so it remains a necessity and
inevitability that, if the Authority is to balance its medium term plan, even on the
basis of current forecast resources (which are likely to deteriorate further as the
public finances come under further strain), all of the existing planned savings
are required by value and on time. Any shortfall will need to be addressed by
compensating alternative savings.

8. Equality and Engagement Implications

8.1 EIA Screening Forms were previously completed for all three proposals with the

agreed outcome that a full EIA report was required. The full EIA reports are
attached (Appendix B). It should be noted that the following information are
areas extracted from each of the EIA reports in relation to some of the impacts
and justification — each EIA should be considered in its entirety for the full detail
of the assessment and impact.

In summary:

Page 35




Proposal 1 was found to be relevant to age, disability, race, religion, sexual
orientation, Welsh language, poverty/social exclusion and carers.

Pupils would only be supervised on their home to school transport journeys by
the driver which could result in a negative impact upon pupil behaviour. In
addition journeys could take longer if drivers have to get in and out of the
vehicle to help children get on and off.

This proposal will not affect SEN pupils who qualify for free transport on
grounds of their specific needs but could affect disabled pupils without a
statement of SEN e.g. those with mobility difficulties.

This proposal could affect pupils who may be at risk of bullying because of their
protected characteristics eg young carers, those of different ethnicities,
disabled pupils, pupils of different (or perceived) sexual orientations, pupils who
don’t speak English or Welsh

Justification: The provision of passenger assistants in future would be on the
basis of a risk assessment where it is assessed that there would be a
significant risk to passenger safety if a Passenger Assistant was not provided.
This would be for all categories of passengers.

For children with statements of SEN this would be done as part of their annual
review and for other pupils this would be carried out annually when routes are
reviewed for the start of the new academic year.

The risk assessment proposed would also be subject to an Equality Impact
Assessment.

Proposal 2 was found to be relevant to age, disability, religion, sex,
poverty/social exclusion, carers and community cohesion.

Some parents wishing their child to receive a faith education may be deterred
from participating if free transport provision is ceased due to increased costs
and less convenient transport arrangements involved in getting to and from the
faith medium school of choice.

There could also be an impact on young carers with disabled parents and their
ability to get to school.

The proposal will not affect SEN pupils who qualify for free transport on the
grounds of their specific needs but could affect disabled pupils without a
statement of SEN eg those with mobility difficulties.

Numbers of pupils attending faith medium schools could potentially fall and
pupils could transfer to alternative maintained schools within the City and
County of Swansea affecting projected pupil numbers used to forecast future
education provision across the local authority area.

It could also impact upon the numbers of pupils attending faith medium schools
and have impact upon falling roles at these schools.

Justification: It is recognised that this proposal would only impact on the
Voluntary Aided schools and it is regrettable that the financial position of the
Council has made this proposal necessary. The Council can offer assurances
that no child currently in receipt of free transport who is attending any of these
schools would have their transport removed for the remainder of their time at
that school. The phased introduction of the change will ensure this. Legal
advice states that these changes do not contravene any statutes including the
Equality Act 2010.

Page 36



(ii)

Proposal 3 was found to be relevant to age, disability, race, religion, sex,
Welsh language, poverty/social exclusion, carers and community cohesion.

£300 per annum would be a barrier to some potential students wishing to
pursue post 16 education options. It is possible that the charge could have an
impact on the long-term viability of 6™ Forms in the area. Young Carers could
also be impacted by the charges leading to them becoming NEET (Not in
Education, Employment or Training).The proposal will not affect SEN pupils
who are still covered by a Statement and qualify for free transport on grounds
of their specific needs, however could affect students who have other
disabilities not addressed by SEN provision. Possible greater impact on
students attending faith and Welsh medium schools as they have less choice of
establishments and therefore travel further.

Justification: Whilst the potential impact on take up of post 16 education is
uncertain and of concern, the potential saving is significant. The Education
Maintenance Allowance will provide support to those students and families who
are eligible to receive this support. There is no duty to provide transport or
make transport arrangements for those over 16. Section 6 of the Learner Travel
Measure allows for this discretionary service to be provided and for it not to be
free of charge. In making any change, regard must be given to the 2009
Learner Travel Operational Guidance. However, the Measure (section 10) does
require each local authority to promote access to education and training
through the medium of Welsh when exercising their functions under the
Measure. There is no further mitigation for young carers, disabled students
without an SEN statement or those disproportionately affected i.e. Welsh
Medium students and Faith students.

Legal Implications

The statutory requirements are set out in the body of the report and confirm that
the Council is given both statutory duties and discretionary powers to provide
transport. The Welsh Government’s Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 (the
Measure) sets out, amongst other things, the duties on Local Authorities to
assess learner travel needs and to make transport arrangements for school
pupils and young people in education or training aged 16-19 in Wales. The
requirements of the Measure and associated Learner Travel Operational
Guidance (the 2009 Guidance) must be followed when formulating the Local
Authority’s Travel Arrangements or making amendments to existing policy.

The 2009 Guidance states that:

“An authority should only change an existing transport policy and / or
arrangements at the beginning of a school year (unless an emergency such as
road works necessitates change). Any changes that reduce discretionary
provision of free school transport should only apply to pupils reaching
compulsory school age or changing school. An authority could be judged to be
acting unreasonably if entitlement to free school transport were withdrawn
during a pupil’s education at a particular school and parents had not been
aware of this possibility at the time their application for admission was
accepted. An authority could also be judged to have acted unreasonably if it
changed other aspects of its arrangements, such as timing of services or pick
up/drop off points, if it failed to give parents adequate and timely notification of
the change.

Page 37



(iif)

If an authority is considering changing its school transport policy, the Welsh
Government recommends that, as a matter of fairness and good practice, there
should be consultation with the schools, parents of pupils, and any other
relevant parties likely to be affected, before a decision is taken.” Consultation
should also take place with pupils.

The 2009 Guidance is Statutory, and the Authority must take it into
consideration when making decisions on reviewing its Policy. There would be a
strong likelihood of a challenge if the Authority chose to ignore it e.g. if it did not
protect existing pupils.

Also, before coming to its decision, the Authority must carry out proper
consultation and give conscientious consideration to the results of the
consultation. A full consultation has been carried out and the responses are
contained within this report for consideration.

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (Public Sector Equality Duty) requires
public authorities to demonstrate in decision making that they have paid 'due
regard' to the need to:

- eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation

- advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it

- foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not

The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion and
belief, sex and sexual orientation. The Authority must have due regard to the
impact of any of the proposals on those with a protected characteristic.

The Authority has a specific duty to publish information to demonstrate how
they have paid due regard to the aims above as part of their decision making.
Undertaking Community and Equality Impact Assessments would be evidence
that the Authority has paid due regard to its legal obligations in making the
decision on the recommendations in this report.

In respect of the 3 proposals regarding the discretionary provision:
Proposal 1 — Passenger Assistants on School Transport Services -

Under the Measure the Authority is under a duty to assess learner travel needs
and to make travel arrangements. Travel arrangements may include provision
of persons to escort a child when travelling. In making an assessment the
Authority must have regard to the needs of disabled learners, learners with
learning difficulties, the age of child and nature of routes. Transport
arrangements are not suitable if they cause unreasonable level of stress on a
child or are unsafe. In order to comply with the duty under the Measure and to
ensure the continued safety of children travelling to school the Authority will
undertake risk assessments on routes and consider the needs and risks posed.
The risk assessment will include any risk posed by the age of the pupils, any
special educational needs, disabilities, any other areas of vulnerability and
general standards of behaviour on the route. Any risk identified will be
assessed and a decision made as to whether a passenger assistant should be
provided on that route. This will ensure that the duty under the Measure and
general duty of care is discharged.

Page 38



Proposal 2 — Transport to Voluntary Aided Schools (Catholic & Church in
Wales)

A full Equality Impact Assessment has been completed. It is considered that the
proposal is not discriminatory. Free transport to faith schools is a discretionary
provision in exercise of the discretionary power under section 6 of the Measure
(unless either section 3 applies by virtue of the relevant walking distance to the
nearest suitable school or section 4 applies by virtue of the Council considering
it necessary in any given case that travel arrangements, including transport,
were necessary to facilitate attendance of a child). As free transport to faith
schools is discretionary, it is possible to withdraw this provision. However, in
order to do this, it is essential that the Authority are satisfied that it has
considered all the matters set out in the 2009 Guidance and in particular
paragraphs 2.18 — 2.20. These paragraphs state:

“Transport to Denominational Schools

2.18 Section 9 of the Education Act 1996 places a general duty on local
authorities to have regard to the general principle that pupils are to be educated
in accordance with the wishes of their parents so far as that is compatible with
the provision of effective instruction and training and the avoidance of
unreasonable public expenditure. Consequently, many authorities in Wales
have a policy of providing free transport to pupils attending church schools who
live beyond the walking distances set in the Measure and these policies have
been developed to meet local circumstances and needs. Section 6 of the
Measure will allow local authorities to continue to be able to provide such
transport and Welsh Ministers expect this to be the case.

2.19 The Welsh Assembly Government, like local authorities, recognise the
value and role of faith based education and want local authorities to continue to
use their discretionary powers to make transport arrangements which take
account of parental preferences for schools with a religious character. This
reflects current policy on entitlement to free transport and Welsh Ministers are
not currently inclined to legislate further on arrangements at local level.
However, if there should be any changes in learner travel arrangements at the
local level, which adversely impacts on choice, then Welsh Ministers will
consider taking action such as further guidance, directions or regulations.

2.20 If an authority provides free or subsidised transport to church schools, it
must be non-discriminatory.”

The Authority must therefore consider whether the withdrawal of free transport
to a faith school complies with the 2009 Guidance and consider in particular
whether it would adversely impact on parental choice but also considering the
avoidance of unreasonable public expenditure. The Authority must also ensure
it complies with paragraph 2.5 of the 2009 Guidance:

“2.5 If a local authority does make use of the powers in section 6 of the
Measure, it must ensure that any policies are fair, reasonable and comply with
relevant legislation including equality legislation and the Human Rights Act
1998. Local Authorities must not discriminate unlawfully between learners when
using their section 6 powers”

As stated in the Report, nothing in the proposal contravenes Principle 7 of the
United Nation Convention on the Rights of the Child. This is an entitlement for
a child to receive education which promotes their general culture. It is not an
entitlement to transport.

Page 39



Also, nothing in the proposal contravenes Article 2 of the European Convention
on Human Rights or any legislation on unlawful discrimination. Article 2 of the
first Protocol guarantees a right to access to education. The Article also
requires all schools to respect parent’s beliefs. It does not confer an entitlement
to transport.

The Equality Act 2010, Schedule 3, provides an exemption to discrimination on
the grounds of religion or belief in relation to transport to or from a school.

In respect of the different treatment of transport to Welsh medium schools, the
Learner Travel Operational Guidance 2009 states at paragraph 1.23:

“‘Neither the child’s or parents language preference or mother tongue, nor
religious faith or conviction of the child or his or her parent have any bearing on
whether a school is suitable. However the Measure (Section 10) does require
each Local Authority to promote access to education and training through the
medium of Welsh when exercising their functions under the Measure.”

It is the view of the Education Department officers that travel assistance is
required to meet the requirements to promote access to education and training
through the medium of Welsh under section 10 of the Measure, and therefore it
follows that Welsh medium transport provision cannot be withdrawn.

However, there is no case in law on the interpretation of the provision in the
Measure and the Guidance and therefore any decision could be open to
challenge by way of Judicial Review.

Proposal 3 — Financial Assistance for Post 16 transport — Introduction of a
Common Charge

Section 3 and 4 of the Measure do not apply to children over compulsory
school age. There is no duty to provide transport or make transport
arrangements for those over 16. Section 6 allows for this discretionary service
to be provided and to charge for it. In making any change, regard must be had
to the 2009 Guidance

v) Any decision by the Council to change its current policy, may be challenged by
way of Judicial Review. Therefore Council will have to ensure that it acts
lawfully. The grounds for Judicial Review are: lllegality; Irrationality; Procedural
unfairness and legitimate expectation.

Background papers
Learner Travel (Wales) Measure (2008) and Operational Guidance (2009)

Appendices
Appendix A: Proposed New Home to School Transport Policy (reflecting
recommendations of Cabinet at meeting on 1% July 2014)

Appendix B: Equality Impact Assessments
Appendix C: Summary of School Council Responses
Appendix D: Detailed response received from Bishop Vaughan RC School

Appendix E: Detailed response received from ‘Parents for Welsh Medium Education’
(RhAG)

Page 40



APPENDIX A

Proposed City and County of Swansea, Home to School Travel Policy

The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 requires Local Authorities to provide home to school
transport for eligible children. Your child will be entitled to receive free school transport if the
following apply:

1. Primary school age pupils:

Of compulsory school age (i) and

Resident in the authority or is looked after by the authority (ii) and

Attending their nearest suitable or designated school (iii) and

Living two miles or more from their school. The distance is measured according to
the shortest available walking route, and may include footpaths. (iv)

2. Secondary school age pupils:

Who are of compulsory school age (v) and

Resident in the authority or looked after by the authority (ii) and

Attending their nearest suitable or designated school (iii) and

Living three miles or more from the school. (iv) The distance is measured by the
shortest available walking route.

3. Other pupils, and who are:

Of compulsory school age; and

Resident in the authority or looked after by the authority; and

Attending their nearest suitable or designated school; but

Who live within the walking distance of their school but whose route is deemed
unavailable because it would be unsafe, even if they were accompanied as
necessary given the age of the child and his/her abilities and any disabilities or
learning difficulties.(vi)

The Local Authority may in wholly exceptional circumstances exercise its discretion to provide
free transport to pupils who do not meet the above criteria. (vii)

Transport arrangements for eligible pupils/learners
Transport arrangements for eligible pupils are in accordance with the Learner Travel (Wales)
Measure 2008 and the Learner Travel Operational Guidance (2009).

The type of transport and any supervision provided will be dependent upon the needs of the
child/learner, and his/her age (viii). The most cost effective and suitable mode(s) of transport
will be used. This could include a ticket for use on a local bus service, a place on a contracted
vehicle, parental allowance or cycle allowance. Transport arrangements and pupils’ transport
needs will be reviewed on a regular basis (ix) to ensure they are suitable and cost effective.

For eligible children transport will be provided from home to school (or college) at the start and
end of the day. It is not provided for part time/lunchtime or travel between school sites. (xi) The
Authority will provide transport from reasonably near the child’s home to reasonably near
school/college. (xii) A child, depending upon their age and ability may be required to walk to a
pick up and set down point.

The Authority may withdraw transport if thep gje gatisfied that a learner has failed to comply
with the Code of Conduct. (xiii)



How to apply

Application forms are available from your child’s school or college, or on City and County of
Swansea’s website. www.swansea.qov.uk

Appeals

If free transport is refused, parents/carers may challenge that decision either if it is thought the
authority has not applied the policy correctly, or because there are exceptional circumstances.

Appeals should be made in writing setting out the reasons for the appeal, and providing copies
of any supporting information. Full details of the Appeals process can be obtained by writing to
the address below:

The Manager School Governor and Student Services
School and Governor Support Unit

Education Department

Civic Centre

SWANSEA SA1 3SN

or by e-mail to: Schoolgovernorunit@swansea.gov.uk

Local Arrangements

Post 16 students

The Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 2008 requires Local Authorities to consider the needs of
learners who are aged 16-19 years; however, there is no requirement for Local Authorities to
provide school or college transport free of charge to any learner who is more than compulsory
school age. The authority, however, uses its discretionary powers and will provide transport for
learners over compulsory school age who meet the criteria of minimum distance or lack of a
safe/ available route to their designated school or college, or special educational need.
transport. No transport will be provided for post 16 learners attending VA schools where there is
nearer mainstream school for that pupil based on the statutory distance criteria. The Council
provides eligible learners with bus passes to travel to their designated school.

The Council delegates funding and responsibility for the provision of post-16 college transport to
the two Further Education colleges.

If the designated school or linked college does not offer the particular course of study that the
student requires, transport will be provided to the nearest school/college that offers the course if
it meets the minimum distance criteria.

Transport to Welsh/English Medium Schools

In considering whether a school is suitable, the Learner Travel \Wales Measure 2008 states that
neither the child’s or parent’s language preference or mother tongue should have any bearing on
whether a school is suitable. However, the measure requires Local Authorities to promote
access to education and training through the medium of Welsh. For this reason, City and
County of Swansea will provide free transport to the nearest suitable school which provides
education through the medium of either Welsh or English provided that the pupil meets the
distance criteria or non availability of a safe walking route. Welsh Government Learner Travel
Operational Guidance (2009) 1.23/ 2.9-2.17.

Transport to Faith Schools

The Learner Travel Wales Measure, Operational Guidance states that the child’s or parent’s
religious faith or conviction should have no bearing on whether a school is suitable. For this
reason City and County of Swansea does not provide free transport to a faith school unless it is
the nearest suitable provision and the distandéageitétia are met or there is no safe/ available

walking route. Learner Travel Operational Guidance (2009) 1.23 2



Transport for learners with Special Educational Needs

Pupils who have a statement of Special Educational Need (or equivalent level of educational
need should Statements be replaced with a different assessment and provision mechanism
following the outcome of any proposals by Welsh Government for ALN reform).

Not all pupils with special educational needs will automatically receive transport and the same
eligibility criteria will apply to children with special educational needs as for all pupils of statutory
school age.

City and County of Swansea recognises that children and young people with special educational
needs are likely to have a range of additional transport needs and these needs may change
during their school careers. For this reason, a child or young person who has a statement who
may meet the criteria for free school transport will be individually considered by the LA to
ascertain their transport requirements. Some children who do not meet the criteria for free
school transport may also be assessed and considered if their special needs suggest that they
may require support with transport to and from school.

Learners with special educational needs will have their transport needs reviewed at the Annual
Review.

Children and Young People who attend Pupil Referral Units, Inclusion Centres, or Tuition
Centres

Free home to school transport is provided for pupils who attend these establishments who meet
the qualifying distances in respect of primary and secondary aged pupils. Such children who
live less than the minimum distance from their nearest suitable provision may also be offered
transport if it is considered necessary for their successful attendance. This will require individual
consideration and use of the LA’s discretionary powers. Any transport provision would be
subject to regular review.

Looked After Children

The Authority has a responsibility as a corporate parent for Looked After Children. All efforts are
made to provide continuity and stability for those children as far as school provision is
concerned. If Social Services decide that the child should continue to attend their normal
school, free home to school transport will be provided to maintain attendance at the child’s
normal school where the carer's home is further than 2 miles away in the case of a primary
school child or 3 miles in the case of a secondary school child. This arrangement will also be
made available for those children who are being cared for at addresses in neighbouring
authorities. However, Social Services should be mindful of the recommended maximum travel
times/distances when deciding the needs of the child. Public transport will be used whenever
possible. See Learner Travel Operational Guidance (2009) 1.30, 1.46, 1.47

Passenger Assistants

Routes will be assessed on an individual basis but passenger assistants will not normally be
provided on mainstream routes for either secondary or primary pupils. Travellers will be
expected to conform to the code of conduct and it will be the responsibility of the parents/carers
to ensure that their child gets onto the bus safely and that the child is met off the bus after
school as necessary. They will however, be employed to support pupils on certain routes and
the decision to employ a passenger assistant on a specific route will depend on a number of
factors in accordance with the Learner Travel Operational Guidance. These include the
individual needs of the pupils, the length and nature of the route etc. See Learner Travel
Operational Guidance (2009) 1.58

Promoting Independent Travel
Page 43



City and County of Swansea supports a number of initiatives which are designed to ensure that
as many of our pupils as possible become confident users of public transport and other
sustainable travel methods such as walking or cycling by the time they leave school.

Absent Parents or Carers

Vulnerable children such as very young children or some children with Special Educational
Needs who have no one to meet them when they arrive at their destination will be kept on the
vehicle so that other children on the route are not delayed. The Authority will be informed by the
driver and arrangements will be made for the child to be collected by their parent or carer at the
end of the route. If a parent or carer cannot be contacted either the Social Services Duty Officer
or police will be contacted. (See SWWITCH Home to School Code of Conduct page 12 or
SWWITCH Special Educational Needs Transport Code of Conduct page 15).

Payment of mileage allowance

Where an entitlement to school transport exists or discretion has been exercised, in certain
circumstances e.g. where it is the most economic option, or if the needs of the child demand it,
the Authority may agree to offer a mileage allowance where the parent/carer of a child/ren
transports the child/ren themselves. If a mileage allowance has been agreed with the parent or
carer to take their child to school, the rate would be for two return journeys per day.

Please note that any agreement would be subject to the parent or carer having a driving licence,
the vehicle having an MOT (if applicable depending on the age of the vehicle) and evidence of
appropriate insurance (either class 1 business use or a letter from their insurers waiving the
need for class 1 business use to transport their child for an allowance).

Sale of Spare Seats on School Transport

School transport is provided taking into account the efficient and effective use of the Authority’s
resources. The LEA will group pupils to share vehicles and this may result in some vehicles
having spare capacity. These additional seats are offered for sale to parents and carers of
children who would not otherwise be entitled to free transport. These seats are offered on a
termly or annual basis. No seats are sold for pre school age pupils.

If during the course of the year, a child starts at the school with an entitlement to free transport
through the statutory criteria of minimum distance or the lack of a safe walking route it could
become necessary to rescind the decision to sell a spare seat if the vehicle is full. The decision
on how this seat is chosen will be taken by the Transport Team in accordance with the Sale of
Spare Seats Scheme. For further information on the purchase of spare seats, please contact
the Transport Team, Civic Centre, Swansea, SA1 3SN.

GUIDANCE NOTES

i. Transport for those under compulsory school age: City and County of Swansea extends
the entitlement to full time pupils below compulsory school age from the commencement of the
academic year in which they achieve their fifth birthday.

ii. Residence: Residence is the child’s permanent home i.e. residence is not temporary such as
staying with relatives on a short term basis.

Transport is provided between home and school only, not for example between child minders’
and school.

Where there are shared custody arrangements/looked after arrangements and the child is
eligible to transport from both addresses (both satisfying the distance criteria, or the route is not
available/ unsafe , etc) transport will be provided if this is a regular, on-going and permanent
arrangement i.e. for more than one term. Application for transport from more than one address

should be supported by evidence of residence.
Page 44



iii. Nearest suitable or designated school: The child must be a registered pupil at the school.
The nearest suitable or designated school includes the named school for a child with special
educational needs or additional needs, a maintained school or a PRU

Transport will not be provided where a parent chooses a more distant school and there is a
place available at a school nearer home.

Note that the nearest school may be in an adjacent authority.

iv. Measurement of two/three miles: The walking distance of two/three miles should be
measured by the shortest available walking route. This may include footpaths.

It is measured from where home meets highway/boundary of the property i.e. end of drive or
private lane to the front or nearest school gate. Note that many schools have large grounds and
if there is a pedestrian entrance to school premises/grounds this may be the nearest gate rather
than the main entrance, if that is useable.

v. Compulsory school age: Transport will be provided for eligible pupils to the end of the
academic year in which the child reaches age 16.

vi. Safety of route/availability of walking route: A walking route is deemed to be available if it
can be walked in relative safety by the child/learner alone or accompanied by an adult, as
necessary, taking into account the nature of the route and the age and abilities of the
child/learner.

The safety of the route should be assessed with reference to the Road Safety GB guidelines to
determine whether a route is unavailable irrespective of whether a parent accompanies a child,
given the age of the child. This takes into account factors such as speed limit, traffic volume etc.

In determining whether a route is available or unavailable, officers will need to consider the
nature of the route, the ability of an adult to accompany and the child’s abilities/age.

There is no particular guidance on personal safety. The case law and the guidance focus solely
on road safety.

The key questions are:
1 Route safety

¢ |s the route safe for any child even if they were unaccompanied?

¢ |s the route safe for a child accompanied as necessary?

e Could the route be improved e.g. new crossing, to make it safe for any child
unaccompanied or accompanied as necessary?

If the answer to these is yes then it will be necessary to consider the ability/disability of a
parent/guardian/carer to accompany and the ability/disability and specific needs of the child and
their age.

2. Adult to accompany as necessary

Even if a parent is working this does not fail to make them available to accompany their
child as necessary. Many parents will say they are unavailable to accompany their child.
Unfortunately the guidance and case law have concluded that just because a parent is working,
the Authority does not have to provide transport.

However, there may be circumstances where an appropriate adult is not available to accompany
the child — for example if the parent is so disabled they themselves are unable to walk the route,

or the authority is already requiring the parent to accompany another sibling to ensure their route
is safe to travel to school. Page 45 5



3. The child’s disabilities/learning difficulties are such that they are unable to walk even
accompanied along a safe route?

e If this is the case, can travel training and/ or support be provided to develop child’s
ability?

e |[f travel training is not appropriate then transport will be required, and the Authority will
need to look at the needs of the child, but review regularly the child’s ability and any
opportunity to train/support them.

vii. Other discretionary circumstances:
The type of transport and entitlement to transport provision should be regularly reviewed.

It is likely there will be some limited discretionary exceptions where free transport will be
provided to pupils who would ordinarily not be entitled. These may include temporary medical
condition, supported by medical (normally at consultant level) evidence that confirms the
conditions, its impact on travel to school and the expected duration of the condition, or where a
child is a young carer and where attendance at school would be unlikely without additional travel
support. Specific discretions will depend on local practice/circumstances.

viii. Suitable transport/specific needs assessment:
The guidance is that transport should be ‘non stressful’ and safe.
Transport should be provided in accordance with the Learner Travel Operational Guidance.

For pupils with additional needs their transport requirements will be assessed on an individual
basis at least annually. This will determine the suitable vehicle, route and need for any
specialist equipment and/or supervision, based on information provided as part of the statutory
assessment process, and / or annual review.

ix. Review of transport arrangements:

For pupils who are applying for transport on the basis of an unavailable/ unsafe route, transport
entitlement and transport needs will be reviewed on an annual basis. For those with special
educational needs this will form part of their Annual Review.

x. Transport to a Residential Placement:

Where the child is in a residential placement transport will be provided at the beginning and the
end of the week/half term or termly as appropriate. , Assistance will be provided with the cost of
one return trip for one adult each half term for visiting purposes and one return trip for the
Annual Review. Reimbursement will be paid either as a mileage allowance or as standard class
public transport fares supported by receipts.

xi. Transport provided for the Am and Pm journey only:

For those eligible to receive free transport, it is provided to and from school or college at the
start and end of the school day. Transport is not provided for part time attendance or for pupils
to attend at other hours for example to attend an evening class. There is also no duty on the
Authority to provide travel during the day or between sites. Transport will not ordinarily be
provided for those on assessment.

xii. Pupils will usually be expected to walk to the nearest pick up point:
The Authority will consider the needs of the child, but it would be expected for parents to
accompany the child as necessary to any pick up point. (see also vii)

xiii. Withdrawal of transport: Page 46



The process for withdrawal of transport is set out in the Welsh Government Travel Behaviour
Code Statutory Guidance 2009

Page 47



FLOW CHART FOR SCHOOL TRANSPORT ENTITLEMENT

Is child resident of authority

E of compulsory school age

& attending nearest suitable
schoaol

Is child Ining over walking
distance?

Is walking route unavailabbe —

even accompanied as
necessany? O child unable to
walk distance evenif sided

Are there any exceptional
arcumstances within local

CTiteria e.g. moving in exam
year, young carer, traveller

Mot entitled to
transport

Entitled 1D ransport — assess
pupil’s individual need re type
of transporty supervision
required

Transport provided miust be:

=  Non siressful e g max
journey time should not
negate benefit of
education

Prosided cost effectively —
duty on authority for
effident use of resounces

From reasonably near
home to reasonably near

Page 48




APPENDIX B

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Report

This form should be completed for each Equality Impact Assessment on a new or existing
function, a reduction or closure of service, any policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project which
has been screened and found relevant to Equality and Diversity.

Please refer to the ‘Equality Impact Assessment Guidance’ while completing this form. If
you would like further guidance please contact the Access to Services Team (see
Guidance for details).

Where do you work?

Service Area: Education

Directorate: People

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

This EIA is being completed for a...

Service/ Policy/
Function Procedure Project Strategy Plan Proposal
X [] [] [] [] []

Please name and describe below...
Home to School Transport (Passenger Assistants)

Only provide passenger assistants on home to school transport services where there is
assessed to be a significant risk to passenger safety if one was not provided.

It was initially screened for relevance to Equality and Diversity on 03/10/2013

It was found to be relevant to...

N TN X T T []
DISADINILY ..o, X Sexual orientation..........coooveverercercereerenn, X
Gender reassignment ...............cccc.covvinnc. [] Welsh [anguage...........ccc.cooeveevrvrecresrenn, X
Marriage & civil partnership ..................... [] Poverty/social eXClusion ................ccc...e...... X
Pregnancy and maternity .......................... [] CaEIS ..o X
RACE ... 4 Community CONESION .............cocevverrrreann. []
Religion or (non-)belief............ccccovverne.. X

Lead Officer (f) Approved by Head of Service

Name: Rhodri Jones Name: Brian Roles

Job title: Stakeholder and Communications Manager Date (dd/mmlyyyy): 13/06/14

Date (dd/mmlyyyy): 11/06/2014

Page 49



Section 1 — Aims (See guidance):

Briefly describe the aims of the function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan,
proposal or project:

What are the aims?
To reduce the provision of passenger assistants on free home to school transport services and
only provide them where there is an identified risk to passenger safety.

Who has responsibility?
Council, Cabinet, Executive Board, Director of People and Chief Education Officer.

Who are the stakeholders?

Pupils who live more than 2 miles from their primary sector school and more than 3 miles from their
secondary sector school qualifying for free home to school transport. Pupils with Special
Educational needs will not be affected by this proposal.

Section 2 - Information about Service Users(See guidance):
Please tick what information you know about your service users and provide details/
evidence of how this information is collected.

AGE .o, 4 RACE ... []
DISADINILY ..o, X Religion or (non-)belief ..........c..cccocvvveennnnee. X
Gender reassignment ...............cccocovve.. [] SEX vt []
Marriage & civil partnership ............c......... ] Sexual orientation..............cccceveeveeicinnn, ]
Pregnancy and maternity ........................ [] Welsh 1anguage...........ccc.coevveevesviecresrnns X
(08T =1 TN []

What information do you know about your service users and how is this information
collected?

Currently passenger assistants are provided on transport for 5 English medium primary, 1
English medium secondary, 20 Welsh medium primary and 17 faith primary contracts.
Passenger assistants are provided to supervise children during their home to school
transport journeys and when they get on and off the vehicles.

Breakdown of School Transport that currently has Passenger Assistants

Route School Vehicle Passenger
Nos. Capacity Assistant
315 | C'church C in W Pri. 16 Yes
317 | C'church C in W Pri. 7 Yes
337 | Pontarddulais Primary 16 Yes
339 | YGG Bryniago 16 Yes
341 YGG Pontybrenin 16 Yes
342 | YGG Pontybrenin 8 Yes
343 | YGG Pontybrenin 35 Yes
344 | YGG Pontybrenin 16 Yes
345 | YGG Pontybrenin 16 Yes
661 YGG Y Login Fach 16 Yes
662 | YGG Y Login Fach 16 Yes
663 | YGG Y Login Fach Pag#650 Yes
664 | YGG Y Login Fach 16 Yes 10




666 | YGG Y Login Fach 16 Yes
670 | StDavid's RC Pri. 16 Yes
671 St David's RC Pri. 16 Yes
672 | StDavid's RC Pri. 47 Yes
673 | St David's RC Pri. 49 Yes
681 YGG Llwynderw 16 Yes
682 | YGG Llwynderw 16 Yes
683 | YGG Llwynderw 16 Yes
684 | YGG Llwynderw 16 Yes
685 | YGG Llwynderw 16 Yes
686 | YGG Brynymor 8 Yes
687 | YGG Brynymor 47 Yes
693 | StJoseph's Cath. Pri. 16 Yes
694 | StJoseph's Cath. Pri. 16 Yes
695 | St Joseph's Cath. Pri. 60 Yes
696 | St Joseph's Cath. Pri. 49 Yes
697 | StJoseph's Cath. Pri. 70 Yes
698 | StJoseph's Cath. Pri. 16 Yes
699 | StJoseph's Cath. Pri. 29 Yes
701 Cila Primary/Olchfa 16 Yes
717 | Llanrhidian Primary 55 Yes
735 | Pennard Primary 16 Yes
751 Knelston Primary 57 Yes
752 | Knelston Primary 53 Yes
814 | Stllityd's Primary 7 Yes
815 | Stllityd's Primary 16 Yes
816 | Stllityd's Primary 33 Yes
829 | YGG Lonlas 16 Yes
840 | YGG Gellionen 16 Yes
Totals 1030
Page 51

11




Any Actions Required?
°

Section 3 - Impact on Protected Characteristics (See guidance):
Please consider the possible impact on the different protected characteristics. This could
be based on service user information, data, consultation and research or professional
experience (e.g. comments and complaints).

Positive Negative Neutral Needs further

investigation
Age m— [ ] X L] L]
Disability — [ ] 4 [] L]
Gender reassignment — ] [] X []
Marriage & civil partnership —mep [ | [] X []
Pregnancy and maternity b [ | [] X []
Race — ] X [] []
Religion or (non-)belief — [ | X [] []
Sex — [ ] [] X []
Sexual orientation — [ | 4 [] []
Welsh language m— || X [] L]
Carers — ] X [] []

Page 52

12




Thinking about your answers above, please explain in detail why this is the case?
Pupils will only be supervised on their home to school transport journeys by the driver
which could result in a negative impact upon pupil behaviour.

Journeys could take longer if drivers have to get in and out of the vehicle to help children
get on and off.

This proposal will not affect SEN pupils who qualify for free transport on grounds of their
specific needs but could affect disabled pupils without a statement of SEN eg those with
mobility difficulties.

This proposal could affect pupils who may be at risk of bullying because of their protected
characteristics eg young carers, those of different ethnicities, disabled pupils, pupils of
different (or perceived) sexual orientations, pupils who don’t speak English or Welsh.

What consultation and engagement has been undertaken (e.g. with the public and/or
members of protected groups) to support your view? Please provide details below.

A full statutory consultation has taken place, as required by Welsh Government. The

following groups were consulted using the recorded method.

Audience Method

Pupils Pupil questionnaire via email to all School
Councils

Parents/carers Local media, social media, CCS website

Governors Email to all Governing Bodies

Headteachers Email to all Headteachers

The Council’'s Executive Board Email

Cabinet Formal process

All Councillors Email

Trade Unions Email

Evening Post

Press Release

Diocese

Email and meetings as appropriate

Gower College Swansea

Neath Port-Talbot College

Email and invitation to meet

Coleg Sir Gar Email

Welsh Government Email

Estyn Email

AMs Email

MPs Email

School Staff Email, Local Media, Twitter, Social Media,
CCS Website

Other Media Press release

Senior Managers in Education Email

All Council Staff Staffnet

Swansea Residents

Local Media, CCS website, social media

Local Businesses

Local Media, CCS website

Bus Companies and Taxi Operators Email
Neighbouring Authorities — ERW plus | Email
Bridgend and Vale of Glamorgan

RhAG Email
Children’s Commissioner Email
SNAP Cymru Email
Scrutiny Board Email
Out of County Establishments e.g. Email
Heronsbridge School

School Councils Email

Page 53

13



In total, 884 people responded to the consultation and their views on this proposal were as

follows:
| agree with this | disagree with | neither agree Did not
proposal this proposal nor disagree with  respond
this proposal
Passenger 105 431 (49%) 310 38
Assistants
Who responded
Parent (63.8%)
Pupil / Student (13.9%)
School / College Staff (9.3%)
Councillor (0.7%)
Governor (2.0%)
Transport Provider (0.0%)
Other, please state (10.3%)
Male 239 (35.3%)
Female 439 (64.7%)

(86.1%) White - British, any other White background

(1.2%) Mixed - White & Black Caribbean, White and Black African, White & Asian, any
other Mixed background

(10.5%)  Asian or Asian British- Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi, any other Asian

Background
(1.5%) Black or Black British - Caribbean, African, any other Black background
(0.7%) Chinese or Other ethnic group
(13.9%) No religion / belief (0.0%) Jewish
(82.4%) Christian (including Church of ~ (0.8%) Muslim

England, Catholic Protestant
and all other Christian
denominations)
(0.0%) Buddhist (0.0%) Sikh
(0.2%) Hindu (2.7%) Prefer not to say

The key points raised in consultation were:

1. The removal of passenger assistants is detrimental to the safety of pupils
Before any route has its passenger assistant removed it will be assessed to ensure that
no unacceptable risks are being placed on the children.

In order to comply with the duty under the Measure and to ensure the continued safety
of children travelling to school the Authority will undertake risk assessments on routes
and consider the needs and risks posed. The risk assessment will include any risk posed
by the age of the pupils, any special educational needs, disabilities, any other areas of
vulnerability, and general standards of behaviour on the route. Any risk identified will be
assessed and a decision made as to whether a passenger assistant should be provided
on that route. This will ensure that the duty under the Measure and general duty of care

is discharged. bage 54
.. age . .
For SEN transport routes, the provision of a passenger assistant would remain

14



necessary in the majority of cases.
The removal of passenger assistants will make journeys too stressful for children and
their parents
Routes will be carefully inspected before any passenger assistants are removed and
possible causes of stress for the passengers and parents will be considered before a
decision is made

2. Safeguarding and child protection concerns for children, particularly on their way home,
and in terms of the vulnerability of the driver, which would need to be mitigated
All staff that work on school transport services have to be checked through the
Disclosure and Barring Service and approved by the Council prior to employment.
School transport services carrying pupils of secondary school age do not currently have
passenger assistants travelling on them and so the proposal would be consistent with
this approach. There may be occasions when there is no responsible adult at the drop
off point to collect a primary aged child. A procedure for dealing with this circumstance is
already included in the school transport contract terms and conditions and also in the
School Transport Code of Conduct. Pupils are not allowed off the vehicle if there is no
responsible adult there to meet them

3. Safety concerns in terms of ensuring the use of seatbelts, supervision of children and
opportunities for bullying
The size of the vehicle used on the service will be a factor to be considered as part of
the risk assessment process alongside the number and age of pupils as it would be
easier for the driver to supervise a smaller number of pupils on a minibus or car than on
a larger bus or coach

4. The potential impact on school admissions and particularly the choices of pre-school
parents
Approximately 20 pupils of pre school age purchase spare seats on school transport.
Most of these are mainstream pupils who would not be able to purchase seats if this
proposal is implemented. There is no legal requirement for the Council to provide
transport for pupils under statutory school age, but the removal of this facility is likely to
be unpopular with parents who will have to make alternative arrangements to get their
pre school aged children to and from school. Most of the pre school age pupils who
purchase spare seats attend Welsh Medium or Voluntary Aided provision and therefore
the impact of withdrawing this concession is likely to have a greater impact on these
schools than English medium schools. The Measure (section 10) does require each
local authority to promote access to education and training through the medium of Welsh
when exercising their functions under the Measure.

5. The Council does not have the ability to assess routes effectively
The Council employs qualified road safety officers, transport professionals and health
and safety officers and in the case of pupils with SEN employs an officer with many
years’ experience of working with children with the full range of SEN. This officer also
has access to the educational psychology team and the wider resources of the
Additional Learning Needs team if necessary

Any actions required (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in
knowledge).

® Monitoring of pupil behaviour on home to school transport as part of the risk assessment
prior to the removal of any passenger assistants.

Page 55

15



Section 4 - Other Impacts:

Please consider how the initiative might address the following issues.

You could base this on service user information, data, consultation and research or
professional experience (e.g. comments and complaints).

Foster good relations between Advance equality of opportunity

different groups between different groups
Elimination of discrimination, Reduction of social exclusion and
harassment and victimisation poverty

(Please see guidance for definitions on the above)

Please explain any possible impact on each of the above.

Potential to impact upon vulnerable pupils on home to school transport journeys as
supervision will be by the driver only.

Risk of driver being distracted (safety issue) and/or driver complaints about the situation.
The proposal will not impact upon poverty as transport will continue to be provided,
however social inclusion/exclusion issues eg potential for bullying, vulnerability on home-
to-school transport could increase.

What work have you already done to improve any of the above?

Is the initiative likely to impact on Community Cohesion (see the guidance for
more information)?

Reduced opportunity for adult intervention on home to school transport journeys to
resolve conflict of pupils.

How will the initiative treat the Welsh language in the same way as the English
language?

Passenger assistants to be removed on all faith, English and Welsh medium home to
school transport services across the Local Authority area. If a driver is not Welsh
speaking and is transporting Welsh speaking pupils who do not speak English they may
be at an increased risk.

Actions (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in knowledge).

® Mitigation to be considered as part of the risk assessment
[

Section 5 - Monitoring arrangements:

Please explain the arrangements in place (or those which will be put in place) to monitor

this function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project:

® Monitoring arrangements: If Cabinet and Council approve the change to the policy
the risk assessments carried out on each of the routes will act as our monitoring
arrangement

Actions: Carry out risk assessment prior to the removal of any passenger assistants.

Page 56

16



Section 6 — Outcomes:
Having completed sections 1-5, please indicate which of the outcomes listed below applies to
your initiative (refer to guidance for further information on this section).

Outcome 1: Continue the initiative... []
Outcome 2: Adjust the initiative... []
Outcome 3:Justify the initiative... X
Outcome 4: Stop and remove the initiative... [] %

For outcome 3, detail the justification for proceeding here:

It is regrettable that the financial position of the Council has made this proposal necessary.
However, the provision of passenger assistants in future will be on the basis of a risk
assessment where it is assessed that there would be a significant risk to passenger safety if a

Passenger Assistant was not provided. This would be for all categories of passengers. This is

currently the practice in around half of the Local Authorities in Wales. For children with

statements of SEN this would be done as part of their annual review. For other pupils this would

be carried out annually when routes are reviewed for the start of the new academic year.

The risk assessment will also be subject to an Equality Impact Assessment.

Section 7 - Publication arrangements:
On completion, please follow this 3-step procedure:

1. Forward this EIA report and action plan to the Access to Services Team for
feedback and approval — accesstoservices@swansea.qov.uk

2. Make any necessary amendments/additions.

3. Provide the final version of this report to the team for publication, including email
approval of the EIA from your Head of Service. The EIA will be published on the
Council’s website - this is a legal requirement.

Page 57

17




Action Plan:

Objective - What are we
going to do and why?

Who will be
responsible for
seeing it is done?

When will it be done
by?

Outcome - How will
we know we have
achieved our

Progress

objective?
Monitoring of pupil Transport Team Ongoing Include as part of route
behaviour on home to risk assessment if the
school transport as part of Policy is approved by
the risk assessment to Councll
consider impact upon
behaviour, health and safety
of travellers.
Carry out Equality Impact Transport Team (with | December 2014 EIA completed and
Assessment on the support from the mitigation put in place
proposed Risk Assessment | Access to Services where possible
& Team)
;Jgiarry out risk assessment Transport Team Ongoing Each route will have

prior to the removal of any
of the passenger assistants

been risk assessed
prior to the removal of
any passenger
assistants

* Please remember to be ‘SMART’ when completing your action plan (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, Timely).

18



Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Report

This form should be completed for each Equality Impact Assessment on a new or existing
function, a reduction or closure of service, any policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project which
has been screened and found relevant to Equality and Diversity.

Please refer to the ‘Equality Impact Assessment Guidance’ while completing this form. If
you would like further guidance please contact the Access to Services Team (see
Guidance for details).

Where do you work?

Service Area: Education

Directorate: People

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

This EIA is being completed for a...

Service/ Policy/
Function Procedure Project Strategy Plan Proposal
X [] [] [] [] []

Please name and describe below...
Home to School Transport (Voluntary Aided Schools)

Only to provide free transport to Voluntary Aided (faith) sector schools where pupils meet
the statutory distance criteria and where there is no nearer Mainstream school.

It was initially screened for relevance to Equality and Diversity on...03/10/2013

It was found to be relevant to...

AGE .o, 4 SEX e 4
DISADIIILY ..o, 4 Sexual orientation...........c.ocoeceeeeceecercerenn. []
Gender reassignment ...............cccocovv.. ] Welsh [anguage...........cco.oovvomvovveeerrceninen, ]
Marriage & civil partnership ...................... ] Poverty/social exclusion ...............ccccceevnen. X
Pregnancy and maternity ......................... ] 21T £ X
RACE ..o [] Community CORESION ............cooevvverrerrn, X
Religion or (non-)belief............ccc.ccooouncne.. X

Lead Officer (f) Approved by Head of Service

Name: Rhodri Jones Name: Brian Roles

Job title: Stakeholder and Communications Manager Date (dd/mmlyyyy): 13/06/14

Date (dd/mmlyyyy): 11/06/2014

Page 59 19



Section 1 — Aims (See guidance):

Briefly describe the aims of the function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan,
proposal or project:

What are the aims?

Only to provide transport to voluntary aided (faith schools) for pupils living more than 2 miles from a
primary sector and 3 miles from a secondary sector voluntary aided school if there is no nearer
alternative mainstream school.

Who has responsibility?
Council, Cabinet, Executive Board, Director of People and Chief Education Officer

Who are the stakeholders
Pupils of parents seeking faith medium education for their children.
Faith medium schools across the City and County of Swansea.

Section 2 - Information about Service Users(See guidance):
Please tick what information you know about your service users and provide details/
evidence of how this information is collected.

AGE .o, 4 RACE ... []
DISADINItY .....voovoveeeee e, [] Religion or (non-)belief .............ccccovvvvcnnae., X
Gender reassignment .............c..ccccoeveee.n. [] SEX e []
Marriage & civil partnership ...................... ] Sexual orientation..............ccccoveveecicinnnn, ]
Pregnancy and maternity ......................... ] Welsh [anguage...........cco.covvevvenveeerrcenien, ]
(08T =1 TR []

What information do you know about your service users and how is this information
collected?

Currently there are 683 pupils aged between 5 and 16 plus a further 113 pupils in sixth form
provision who receive free home to school transport to attend faith medium schools across the
City and County of Swansea.

Further information on each pupil is available on our SIMS system including age, disability, race
and sex. Work is required to match the pupils currently receiving free home to school transport
against the SIMS system. The wider demographic of our faith schools are as follows:

Page 60 20




School WIMD Claiming Those Ethnic
(Welsh Free pupils with Background
Index of School a Statement (not White
Multiple Meals of Special British)
Deprivation) Educational
- Need (SEN)
Percentage
of pupils
living in the
most
deprived
30% of all
areas
Bishop 54.6% 221% 13.5% 20.4%
Vaughan
Christchurch 60.9% 14.1% 20.6% 30.6%
St David’s 17% 3.4% 13.8% 35.9%
St llityd’s 74.5% 26.3% 37.3% 13.2%
St Joseph’s 50.7% 16.3% 25.6% 35%
Cathedral
(Greenhill)
St Joseph’s 17.3% 4.6% 10.6% 21%
Catholic
(Clydach)

Page 61

21




Any Actions Required?
°

Page 62

22




Section 3 - Impact on Protected Characteristics (See guidance):
Please consider the possible impact on the different protected characteristics. This could
be based on service user information, data, consultation and research or professional
experience (e.g. comments and complaints).

Positive Negative Neutral Needs further
investigation
Age m— [ ] X L] L]
Disability — ] X ]
Gender reassignment — ] [] X []
Marriage & civil partnership —memp [ | [] X []
Pregnancy and maternity ~ wemp [ | [] X []
Race — ] [] X []
Religion or (non-)belief — [ | X [] []
Sex — [ ] L] X L]
Sexual orientation — [ | [] 4 []
Welsh language — ] [] X []
Carers — ] X [] []

Page 63 23



Thinking about your answers above, please explain in detail why this is the case?

Some parents wishing their child to receive a faith education may be deterred from
participating if free transport provision is ceased due to increased costs and less convenient
transport arrangements involved in getting to and from the faith medium school of choice.
There could be an impact on young carers with disabled parents and their ability to get to
school.

The proposal will not affect SEN pupils who qualify for free transport on the grounds of their
specific needs but could affect disabled pupils without a statement of SEN eg those with
mobility difficulties.

Numbers of pupils attending faith medium schools could potentially fall and pupils could
transfer to alternative maintained schools within the City and County of Swansea affecting
projected pupil numbers used to forecast future education provision across the local
authority area.

It could also impact upon the numbers of pupils attending faith medium schools and have
impact upon falling roles at these schools.

What consultation and engagement has been undertaken (e.g. with the public and/or
members of protected groups) to support your view? Please provide details below.

A full statutory consultation has taken place, as required by Welsh Government. The
following groups were consulted using the recorded method. In addition to this a number of
the schools that are potentially impacted by this proposal carried out specific consultation

with their pupils and parents.

Audience Method

Pupils Pupil questionnaire via email to all School
Councils

Parents/carers Local media, social media, CCS website

Governors Email to all Governing Bodies

Headteachers Email to all Headteachers

The Council’s Executive Board Email

Cabinet Formal process

All Councillors Email

Trade Unions Email

Evening Post

Press Release

Diocese

Email and meetings as appropriate

Gower College Swansea

Neath Port-Talbot College

Email and invitation to meet

Coleg Sir Gar Email

Welsh Government Email

Estyn Email

AMs Email

MPs Email

School Staff Email, Local Media, Twitter, Social Media,
CCS Website

Other Media Press release

Senior Managers in Education Email

All Council Staff Staffnet

Swansea Residents

Local Media, CCS website, social media

Local Businesses

Local Media, CCS website

Bus Companies and Taxi Operators

Email

Neighbouring Authorities — ERW plus

Email

Page 64

24



Bridgend and Vale of Glamorgan

RhAG Email
Children’s Commissioner Email
SNAP Cymru Email
Scrutiny Board Email
Out of County Establishments e.g. Email
Heronsbridge School

School Councils Email

In total, 884 people responded to the consultation and their views on this proposal were as

follows:
| agree with this | disagree with | neither agree Did not
proposal this proposal nor disagree with  respond
this proposal
Transport to 89 741 (84%) 39 15
Voluntary Aided
Schools
Who responded
Parent (63.8%)
Pupil / Student (13.9%)
School / College Staff (9.3%)
Councillor (0.7%)
Governor (2.0%)
Transport Provider (0.0%)
Other, please state (10.3%)
Male 239 (35.3%)
Female 439 (64.7%)

(86.1%)  White - British, any other White background

(1.2%) Mixed - White & Black Caribbean, White and Black African, White & Asian, any
other Mixed background

(10.5%) Asian or Asian British- Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi, any other Asian
Background

(1.5%) Black or Black British - Caribbean, African, any other Black background

(0.7%) Chinese or Other ethnic group

(13.9%) No religion / belief (0.0%) Jewish
(82.4%) Christian (including Church of ~ (0.8%) Muslim
England, Catholic Protestant
and all other Christian
denominations)
(0.0%) Buddhist (0.0%) Sikh
(0.2%) Hindu (2.7%) Prefer not to say

The key points raised in consultation were as follows and a summary of the Local
Authority’s response follows each point. The full Local Authority response is available in the
main report which is available here (ENTER WEB ADDRESS):

Page 65

25



. Restriction on learner and parental choice, especially for less wealthy families.

It cannot be denied that poorer families may find it more difficult to find the resources
to get their children to a VA school. They will however, have access to a good local
school.

. Perceived discrimination on religious grounds and will treat Aided schools differently
than Welsh medium schools.

The proposal to remove this transport is not viewed as discriminatory. The Council is
currently treating the voluntary aided sector more favourably than the other English
medium schools and the new policy will treat both groups equally. It is recognised
that this proposal will only impact on the VA schools and it is regrettable that the
financial position of the Council has made this proposal necessary. The Council can
offer assurances that no child currently in receipt of free transport who is attending a
VA school will have their transport removed for their time at that school. As such, the
policy is not unlawfully discriminatory, however, the new policy does include the
removal of certain long standing discretionary provisions for faith. However, the
Measure (section 10) does require each local authority to promote access to
education and training through the medium of Welsh when exercising their functions
under the Measure.

. The proposal will cause parents financial difficulties / financially unfair / general
disagreement.

There may be a cost to parents. This cost is likely to be the same as the cost for any
other parent deciding not to send their child to the nearest mainstream local school. A
good education will be available locally should the parents not be able to meet the
transport costs. We understand that this may cause difficulties, hence the phasing in
over 6 years.

. The proposal goes against Statute i.e. Section 6 of Education Act, or Learner Travel
(Wales) Measure or Operational Guidance, UNCRC, Human Rights Act, Equality Act
2010.

The Legal view highlighted in the report assures us that we are not contravening any
of the above statutes.

. The proposal will affect the long term viability of the Faith schools.

There may be some impact on the number of pupils on roll at Faith schools, however,
most Aided schools are currently over-subscribed. Consequently, the Council does
not envisage any school becoming non-viable as a result of the proposed transport
changes.

. Increased traffic congestion across the City

It is thought that the overriding effect of this policy is more likely to be less travel
rather than more. It is true that in the shorter term there may be increased drop off
traffic at some schools, but this will be mitigated by the transitional implementation of
the new policy

. Impact on NEETS

It is possible that if pupils are not able to take up the option of faith based education
because of the inconvenience and costs of travelling then some pupils may be
discouraged from attending school. They will however have the option of attending
their local school

. Administrative impact on the Local Authority

There would be a significant increase in administration costs if the Council chose to
in future charge or means test parents for Aided transport, however, this is not what
is being proposed here

Page 66

26



Any actions required (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in
knowledge).

® Monitor numbers at all Faith Schools to review impact of the policy (if approved)

® (Consider the impact on young carers and disabled pupils (those without SEN) and what
mitigation (if any) could be put in place

Section 4 - Other Impacts:

Please consider how the initiative might address the following issues.

You could base this on service user information, data, consultation and research or
professional experience (e.g. comments and complaints).

Foster good relations between Advance equality of opportunity

different groups between different groups
Elimination of discrimination, Reduction of social exclusion and
harassment and victimisation poverty

(Please see guidance for definitions on the above)

Please explain any possible impact on each of the above.

It is possible that families wishing a faith education for their children who are
disadvantaged by poverty will not be able to afford transport costs for their children and
will therefore have to seek a place at the local mainstream school as an alternative.
Additional pupils will need to travel on public transport which is less convenient and in
some cases there may not be capacity on buses to accommodate additional pupils at
peak times, it is also possible that the timings of public transport would not fit with school
start and finish times. Families could be disadvantaged by reduced equality of
opportunity.

Potential for conflict between the Local Authority and Diocese representatives.

The Diocese is hugely supportive of the poverty agenda and provide financial support to
a number of initiatives in deprived areas. There is a risk of damage to both the
relationship and the initiatives in the future if this proposal goes ahead.

Pupils who would be unable to travel to a faith school as a result of the changes due to
eg carer responsibilities or low income would need to consider attending a local
mainstream school which would be closer to their home this would be a reduction in the
equality of opportunity in terms of choice of Education available to pupils and their
families.

What work have you already done to improve any of the above?

Is the initiative likely to impact on Community Cohesion (see the guidance for
more information)?
The following issues are considered pertinent to this proposal:

¢ Not everybody has an equal chance to take part

¢ Not everybody gets equal use of services

e People feeling left out or isolated

e Potential to impact upon Christian community

How will the initiative treat the Welsh language in the same way as the English
language?There are no Welsh medium faith schools in Swansea. No impact is
therefore anticipated.

Page 67

27



Actions (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in knowledge).

® |nvestigate timings of public transport on routes to faith schools.

*Unfortunately, due to the nature of the proposal, no further action is possible to
mitigate the potential impacts identified above.

Section 5 - Monitoring arrangements:
Please explain the arrangements in place (or those which will be put in place) to monitor
this function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project:

Monitoring arrangements: If Cabinet and Council approve the change to the policy
there will be regular monitoring of the impact on pupil numbers at these schools.

Actions: Ongoing monitoring of pupil numbers at all faith schools.

Section 6 — Outcomes:
Having completed sections 1-5, please indicate which of the outcomes listed below applies to
your initiative (refer to guidance for further information on this section).

Outcome 1: Continue the initiative... []
Outcome 2: Adjust the initiative... []
Outcome 3:Justify the initiative... X
Outcome 4: Stop and remove the initiative... [] %

For outcome 3, detail the justification for proceeding here:

It is recognised that this proposal will only impact on the Voluntary Aided schools and it is regrettable that
the financial position of the Council has made this proposal necessary. The Council can offer assurances
that no child currently in receipt of free transport who is attending any of these schools will have their
transport removed for the remainder of their time at that school. The phased introduction of the change will
ensure this. Legal advice states that these changes do not contravene any statutes including the
Equality Act 2010.

Section 7 - Publication arrangements:
On completion, please follow this 3-step procedure:

4. Forward this EIA report and action plan to the Access to Services Team for
feedback and approval — accesstoservices@swansea.qov.uk

5. Make any necessary amendments/additions.

6. Provide the final version of this report to the team for publication, including email
approval of the EIA from your Head of Service. The EIA will be published on the
Council’s website - this is a legal requirement.

Page 68 28



Action Plan:

Objective - What are we
going to do and why?

Who will be
responsible for
seeing it is done?

When will it be done
by?

Outcome - How will
we know we have
achieved our

Progress

objective?

Monitor numbers at all Faith | Education Department | Annually

Schools to review impact of

the policy (if approved)

Consider the impact on Education Department | December 2014 Young Carers and

young carers and disabled disabled pupils (those

pupils and what mitigation without SEN) identified

(if any) could be put in place and mitigation
considered and
implemented where

) .

o possible

Jnvestigate timings of public | Transport Department | December 2014 Routes assessed and

“Qransport on routes to faith
schools

matched against faith
schools to identify any

gaps

* Please remember to be ‘SMART’ when completing your action plan (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, Timely).

29



Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Report

This form should be completed for each Equality Impact Assessment on a new or existing
function, a reduction or closure of service, any policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project which
has been screened and found relevant to Equality and Diversity.

Please refer to the ‘Equality Impact Assessment Guidance’ while completing this form. If
you would like further guidance please contact the Access to Services Team (see
Guidance for details).

Where do you work?

Service Area: Education

Directorate: People

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

This EIA is being completed for a...

Service/ Policy/
Function Procedure Project Strategy Plan Proposal
X [] [] [] [] []

Please name and describe below...
Home to School Transport (post-16)

Remove free transport provision for post 16 students at Swansea schools and Gower
College Swansea and introduce contributory payment.

It was initially screened for relevance to Equality and Diversity on 03/10/2013

It was found to be relevant to...

N N X SEX vt X
DISADINILY ..o, X Sexual orientation..........cooeveverercercererenn, []
Gender reassignment ...............cccocovvn.. ] Welsh [anguage...........cco.oovvomvovveeerrceninen, X
Marriage & civil partnership ...................... ] Poverty/social exclusion ..............cccccceevnen. X
Pregnancy and maternity ........................ [] CaEIS ..o X
RACE ... 4 Community CONESION .............cocevrerrerrennen. 4
Religion or (non-)belief............ccc.ccooonncne.. X

Lead Officer (f) Approved by Head of Service

Name: Rhodri Jones Name: Brian Roles

Job title: Stakeholder and Communications Manager Date (dd/mml/yyyy): 13/06/14

Date (dd/mmlyyyy): 11/06/2014

Page 70 30



Section 1 — Aims (See guidance):

Briefly describe the aims of the function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan,
proposal or project:

What are the aims?
To remove provision of free transport for post 16 education and to introduce a contribution of £300
per student per annum for travel on transport provided by the Council

Who has responsibility?
Council, Cabinet, Executive Board, Director of People and Chief Education Officer

Who are the stakeholders?
Post 16 students, Swansea schools, Gower College Swansea, Neath Port Talbot College,
Bridgend College, Coleg Sir Gar and University of Wales Trinity Saint David.

Section 2 - Information about Service Users(See guidance):
Please tick what information you know about your service users and provide details/
evidence of how this information is collected.

N TN X RACE ... []
DISADINILY ..o, X Religion or (non-)belief ..........c..cccocvvveennenee. ]
Gender reassignment ...............cccocovve.. [] SEX vt []
Marriage & civil partnership .................... ] Sexual orientation..............cc..cocoevervcerrennnn. ]
Pregnancy and maternity ......................... ] Welsh [anguage...........cco.oovvomvonveeerecesinen, ]
(0811 T []

What information do you know about your service users and how is this information
collected?

Currently there are 1,582 students attending Swansea sixth form school provision of which
525 are eligible for free transport and 4,631 students attending Gower College Swansea of
which 1,953 are eligible for free transport. This figure includes 113 pupils who attend sixth
form provision in Voluntary Aided schools. Numbers also include some pupils with SEN but
any post 16 students who have a Statement of Special Educational Need may be awarded
specific transport entitlement as part of their Statement. This will not change under the
proposals.

Further information on each pupil is available on our SIMS system including age, disability,
race and sex. The wider demographic of our 6™ Forms are as follows:

School WIMD (in the Those with a Ethnic Background (not

most deprived Statement of Special White British)

30% of all areas) | Educational Need

Whole School (SEN) - Whole School

Y12 Y13

Bishop Gore 46.2% 22.1% 39.3% | 36%
Gowerton 23.2% 25.2% 8% 4.8%
Morriston 43.1% 34.3% 10.9% | 13.2%
Olchfa 12% 10.5% 14.7% | 13.7%
Bishop Vaughan | 54.6% 13.5% 16.5% | 21.9%
Bryn Tawe 32.7% 21.5% 1.9% |0.9%
Gwyr 15.3% 15.7% 1.6% | 0%

Page 71 31




Any Actions Required?
® Source demographic data for those attending Gower College Swansea
® Source geographical data for those attending 6" Forms

Page 72

32




Section 3 - Impact on Protected Characteristics (See guidance):
Please consider the possible impact on the different protected characteristics. This could
be based on service user information, data, consultation and research or professional
experience (e.g. comments and complaints).

Positive Negative Neutral Needs further
investigation
Age m— [ ] X L] L]
Disability — ] X ]
Gender reassignment — ] [] X []
Marriage & civil partnership —memp [ | [] X []
Pregnancy and maternity ~ wemp [ | [] X []
Race — ] [] X []
Religion or (non-)belief — [ | X [] []
Sex — [ ] L] X L]
Sexual orientation — [ | [] 4 []
Welsh language — ] X [] []
Carers — ] X [] []

Page 73 33



Thinking about your answers above, please explain in detail why this is the case?
£300 per annum would be a barrier to some potential students wishing to pursue post 16
education options. It is possible that the charge could have an impact on the long-term
viability of 6™ Forms in the area. Young Carers could also be impacted by the charges
leading to them becoming NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training).The proposal
will not affect SEN pupils who are still covered by a Statement and qualify for free transport
on grounds of their specific needs, however could affect students who have other disabilities
not addressed by SEN provision. Possible greater impact on students attending faith and
Welsh medium schools as they have less choice of establishments and therefore travel
further.

What consultation and engagement has been undertaken (e.g. with the public and/or
members of protected groups) to support your view? Please provide details below.

A full statutory consultation has taken place, as required by Welsh Government.

The following groups were consulted using the recorded method. In addition to this a
number of the schools and colleges that are potentially impacted by this proposal carried
out specific consultation with their pupils, parents and students. RhAG (Rhieni dros Addysg
Gymraeg) also carried out a survey (the findings of which are reported back in the Cabinet

report).

Audience Method

Pupils Pupil questionnaire via email to all School
Councils

Parents/carers Local media, social media, CCS website

Governors Email to all Governing Bodies

Headteachers Email to all Headteachers

The Council’'s Executive Board Email

Cabinet Formal process

All Councillors Email

Trade Unions Email

Evening Post

Press Release

Diocese

Email and meetings as appropriate

Gower College Swansea

Neath Port-Talbot College

Email and invitation to meet

Coleg Sir Gar Email

Welsh Government Email

Estyn Email

AMs Email

MPs Email

School Staff Email, Local Media, Twitter, Social Media,
CCS Website

Other Media Press release

Senior Managers in Education Email

All Council Staff Staffnet

Swansea Residents

Local Media, CCS website, social media

Local Businesses

Local Media, CCS website

Bus Companies and Taxi Operators Email
Neighbouring Authorities — ERW plus | Email
Bridgend and Vale of Glamorgan

RhAG Email
Children’s Commissioner Email

Page 74

34



SNAP Cymru Email
Scrutiny Board Email
Out of County Establishments e.g. Email
Heronsbridge School

School Councils Email

In total, 884 people responded to the consultation and their views on this proposal were as

follows:
| agree with this | disagree with | neither agree Did not
proposal this proposal nor disagree with  respond
this proposal

Charging for 62 482 (55%) 300 40

Post 16

Transport

Who responded

Parent (63.8%)

Pupil / Student (13.9%)

School / College Staff (9.3%)

Councillor (0.7%)

Governor (2.0%)

Transport Provider (0.0%)

Other, please state (10.3%)

Male 239 (35.3%)

Female 439 (64.7%)

(86.1%)  White - British, any other White background

(1.2%) Mixed - White & Black Caribbean, White and Black African, White & Asian, any
other Mixed background

(10.5%) Asian or Asian British- Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi, any other Asian
Background

(1.5%) Black or Black British - Caribbean, African, any other Black background

(0.7%) Chinese or Other ethnic group

(13.9%) No religion / belief (0.0%) Jewish
(82.4%) Christian (including Church of ~ (0.8%) Muslim
England, Catholic Protestant
and all other Christian
denominations)
(0.0%) Buddhist (0.0%) Sikh
(0.2%) Hindu (2.7%) Prefer not to say

The key points raised in consultation were as follows and a summary of the Local
Authority’s response follows each point. The full Local Authority response is available in the
main report which is available here (ENTER WEB ADDRESS):

1. The proposed charge is too expensive / financially unfair.
The average cost to the Council of a pupil’s seat on school transport is £750 per year so

Page 75

35



on this basis the proposed charge of £300 is reasonable. For families with a low income
or for students with a low income living independently, the Education Maintenance
Allowance (EMA) is available to help with further education costs

Charging will be a disincentive to pupils staying on in sixth form.

EMA is available to support students from low income families. There are already
students attending College paying transport costs at more than £200. The proposal will
help towards keeping post 16 students in education (as opposed to a removal of support
altogether).

The proposal discriminates against language and/or religious choice.

We recognise the possible greater impact on students attending faith and Welsh medium
schools as they have less choice of establishments and therefore travel further.

Currently the students of the Welsh medium and Catholic sixth forms receive free
transport whereas students attending College are charged.

There is no evidence that the Authority has paid due attention to Clause 10 of the
Measure to promote access to education and training through the medium of the Welsh
Language.

When a Council is using its powers under Section 6 of the Measure to offer discretionary
travel arrangements for learners not entitled to free transport provision, a charge can be
made for these arrangements. The Council is promoting access to Welsh education by
treating the Welsh medium and English medium post 16 pupils the same, i.e. they will all
have to pay the same charge. The Council is proposing to continue to provide transport
for Welsh Medium provision but a charge will be made.

This proposal adversely affects choice

With the new proposed charge, the cost will be equitable for all post 16 across the
borough. Any student living more than three miles from the nearest provision will pay
the same price

There needs to be concessions for those in receipt of certain benefits / low income
families

The Education Maintenance Allowance remains available for these families and this
provides up to £30 per week during term time for eligible students. The possibility of
means testing pupils for entitlement has been considered, but this would involve
considerable extra administration as there would need to be continual monitoring of
entitlement as families incomes change

Will encourage greater student vehicle traffic, congestion and parking issues

There is no evidence to suggest this might be the case. If students elect to transport
themselves, it is highly likely that the cost of personal transport will exceed the proposed
cost per annum

Any actions required (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in
knowledge).

If the proposal goes ahead, more detailed monitoring of NEETS (not in education,
employment or training) would be necessary compared to previous years to assess if a
higher number of the post 16 population have opted out of further education
opportunities as a result of increased costs. This would also monitor against the
protected characteristics.

Page 76

36



Section 4 - Other Impacts:
Please consider how the initiative might address the following issues.

You could base this on service user information, data, consultation and research or

professional experience (e.g. comments and complaints).

Foster good relations between Advance equality of opportunity

different groups between different groups
Elimination of discrimination, Reduction of social exclusion and
harassment and victimisation poverty

(Please see guidance for definitions on the above)

Please explain any possible impact on each of the above.

This proposal could result in inequality for post 16 students disadvantaged by poverty
who will not be able to afford to pay the contribution in order to engage in further
education opportunities. However, the proposal will mean that there will be the same
charge for post 16 students accessing transport to school or college.

In addition, the proposal could impact upon social exclusion and inability to compete in
the workplace at a later stage and therefore be a threat to individuals who are trying to
break cycles of family poverty.

If the proposal goes ahead it could further increase the inequality gap in attainment, life
chances, education opportunities, social mobility which contradicts the Council’s priority
to tackle poverty.

The only post 16 provision in Swansea East is at Morriston Comprehensive School,
therefore there could be a disproportionate impact in this area.

What work have you already done to improve any of the above?
For students from families on a low income, the Education Maintenance Allowance is
available to assist with these costs.
Is the initiative likely to impact on Community Cohesion (see the guidance for
more information)?
The following issues are considered pertinent:
¢ not everybody has an equal chance to take part
not everybody gets equal use of services
people feeling left out or isolated
poverty can lead to poor community cohesion
potential for a higher demand on public services

How will the initiative treat the Welsh language in the same way as the English
language?

All post 16 students will be affected regardless of whether they attend an English
medium or Welsh medium or faith provision. Possible greater impact on students
attending Welsh medium schools as they have less choice of establishments and
therefore travel further.

Actions (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in knowledge).

® *Unfortunately, due to the nature of the proposal, no further action is possible to
mitigate the potential impacts identified above.

Page 77

37



Section 5 - Monitoring arrangements:
Please explain the arrangements in place (or those which will be put in place) to monitor
this function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project:

Monitoring arrangements: If Cabinet and Council approve the change to the policy
there will be regular monitoring of the impact on post-16 student numbers and the
number of youngsters who are NEET

Actions: Ongoing monitoring of post-16 numbers and NEETS

Section 6 — Outcomes:
Having completed sections 1-5, please indicate which of the outcomes listed below applies to
your initiative (refer to guidance for further information on this section).

%

Outcome 1: Continue the initiative...
Outcome 2: Adjust the initiative...

Outcome 3: Justify the initiative...

Outcome 4: Stop and remove the initiative...

Should this be an Outcome 4?

X

Section 7 - Publication arrangements:
On completion, please follow this 3-step procedure:

7. Forward this EIA report and action plan to the Access to Services Team for
feedback and approval — accesstoservices@swansea.qov.uk

8. Make any necessary amendments/additions.

9. Provide the final version of this report to the team for publication, including email
approval of the EIA from your Head of Service. The EIA will be published on the
Council’s website - this is a legal requirement.

For outcome 3, detail the justification for proceeding here:

Whilst the potential impact on take up of post 16 education is uncertain and of concern, the
potential saving is significant. The Education Maintenance Allowance will provide support to
those students and families who are eligible to receive this support. There is no duty to provide
transport or make transport arrangements for those over 16. Section 6 of the Learner Travel
Measure allows for this discretionary service to be provided and for it not to be free of charge. In
making any change, regard must be given to the 2009 Learner Travel Operational Guidance.
However, the Measure (section 10) does require each local authority to promote access to
education and training through the medium of Welsh when exercising their functions under the
Measure. There is no further mitigation for young carers, disabled students without an SEN
statement or those disproportionately affected i.e. Welsh Medium students and Faith students. .

Page 78 38



Action Plan:

Objective - What are we
going to do and why?

Who will be
responsible for
seeing it is done?

When will it be done
by?

Outcome - How will
we know we have
achieved our
objective?

Progress

Source demographic data for | Education Department | September 2014 Full breakdown

those attending Gower available of the

College Swansea student’ demographics

Source geographical data for | Transport Department | July 2014 Full breakdown

those attending 6™ Forms Education Department available of location
students are currently
travelling from

If the proposal goes ahead, Education Department | Annually No increase in the

_Umonitoring of NEETS (not in
2education, employment or
%raining) would be necessary
“Compared to previous years
to assess if a higher number
of the post 16 population
have opted out of further
education opportunities as a
result of increased costs

number of NEETS 16-
18

Action taken to reduce
the number of NEETS
16-18 if an increase is
evidenced

* Please remember to be ‘SMART’ when completing your action plan (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, Timely).

39



APPENDIX C

School Councils Responses

Terrace Road Primary

20 children on school council (Years 2-6)

¢ We think that passenger assistance should stay for safety reasons. They are a reassuring
link person especially for primary aged children. These assistants sometimes bring the
children into school and collect them from the yard at the end of the school day and this is
a good thing. They ensure that parents are less worried about their children’s safety.

¢ We think that there should be free transport to all schools not just religious schools.

¢ We think that everyone should pay the same amount to go to any college. This would
mean more choice of where and what to study. It must be fair for everyone.

¢ We think that every school should have their own mini bus. We should walk to school
because it saves petrol, there would be less pollution and you wouldn’t get fat. Cycle
lanes to school would be a great idea too.

Ysqgol Gynradd Gymraeg Bryniago

14 Children on school council.

¢ We strongly believe that passenger assistance should stay on every bus that is travelling
to a school. For example what if the bus goes on fire? Or what if a child is ill on the bus?
The bus driver can’t ensure that everybody is safe and well. Pupils may not wear
seatbelts. If there are a lot of buses, how will the pupils know that they are on the correct
bus? What if someone opens the fire door? It could cause a huge accident.

e As we attend a Welsh school, there are no welsh schools near to us so free school
transport is a must. The City and County of Swansea should provide transport to all
primary and secondary schools. A lot of parents work and are unable to take their
children to school.

e \We disagree with the proposal stopping free school transport for over 16’s for
college/sixth form because it is unfair. What if they don’t have enough money? Then they
would have to finish with their education. We believe that 3 miles is a long way to walk
with all of your school stuff such as files and books etc.

e Finally without free school transport a lot of pupils would not be able to get to school
which would mean no education.

Ysqgol Pen-y-Bryn

12 children on school council.

e \We think you should keep escorts for certain people. Some people rely on the
escorts. Some escorts and drivers do not sit in the back or wear seatbelts. Some
escorts ignore us and won'’t speak to us.

¢ We do not think we should pay for our transport. We would have to spend all our
EMA money on transport. We would lose our independence. We use our EMA
money to pay for our school trips and socialising with friends.

e Some further comments on school transport: they are either too late or too early,
my driver smokes inside my taxi before | get in the taxi, | don’t like some of the
people | am in the taxi with, | am in the taxi for a long time because there are lots
of people on the taxi.

Page 80 40



St Joseph’s Cathedral Primary

20 children on school council.

e 20 out of 20 disagree with the proposal to stop school passenger assistants for the
reasons below. Because of the size of the bus some children may not behave well
because there is no one to supervise them.

e Seatbelts might be taken off and the little ones might walk around the bus or if the
seatbelt is jammed or doesn’t work there is no one to help the children sort this
problem out when seatbelts are the law.

e [fitis noisy the driver may lose concentration and crash the bus. Children could
get hurt and there is no one to help them. Also if the bus crashes by accident and
the driver is hurt there is no one to calm the children down or get the children off
the bus safely.

¢ |[f there are younger children they might open windows and stick their hands out
and get hurt.

e The guides sometimes have to pass important messages onto our parents from
the teachers or the school, for example if we are unwell or have been naughty.

We also disagree with the second proposal that free school transport will be
stopped to Catholic schools because:

¢ My parents want me to have a Catholic education because this is our faith. We
believe that it is unfair that we cannot go to a church school.

e The other schools close to where we live are not Catholic and this is very important
to our family and the reason that they chose the school.

e | come to this school because my parents think that this is a safe, good school and
teaches us the Catholic faith.

¢ |t means that our school numbers will fall because everyone on the school council
lives closer to another school and then the school will get smaller and smaller and
some jobs might also have to be cut.

e |[f our parents are living in different houses how do they then agree on the school
that we go to? It could cause arguments.

e |t is discriminatory against our religion. Welsh schools are not more important than
faith schools. Why should they have school buses and we don’t?

Regarding the proposal to take away free transport to post 16 students we
disagree and feel that you are making it unfair for poor families to attend college.

¢ They might have to go out and get a job instead of being able to stay in school to
learn and have the chance to get better jobs and have better futures. You are
taking peoples decisions and the right to have an education away.

Gwyrosydd Primary School

12 children on school council

¢ We think there should be passenger assistants on the bus because children might
distract the driver — this could cause an accident.

¢ |n regards to stopping free school transport to Catholic schools we think that you
could ask for a small donation once a week.

e \We believe regarding post 16 education that it will be fair to pay the same amount.

Page 81 41



Lastly we think that children have the right to an education and the council should
help children get to school.

Dunvant Primary

24 children on school council

We disagree with the proposal to stop passenger assistance on school buses
because someone might feel ill and need help. We were shocked to hear that you
would think about removing the assistants from the buses because we wouldn’t
feel safe without them.

There may be trouble with bullying

Some children may need a grown up to feel safe-somebody they know.

We also need someone to check seatbelts.

We disagree with the 2" proposal to stop free school transport to Catholic schools
because:

We think all schools should be treated the same because it's not fair for some to
be paid for and not others.

In regard to the 3™ proposal to stop post 16 education we think they should help
because going to college is important.

Bishop Vaughan

Sixth Form Committee:

We understand that cuts need to be made, however we believe that the financial
cuts proposed would have dramatic and negative effects on the community as a
whole.

We see this as discrimination against the children who attend this school because
they’ve chosen, with the legal rights they have, to attend a Catholic school which
will support and nurture the faith they have chosen to follow.

We would like to know why has the council decided to take away the funding to
provide buses to the thousands of children (40%) of Bishop Vaughan pupils
attending Catholic school while those in Welsh-medium schools have been
allowed to keep the same service even if they have a closer school to attend.

In taking away this service you are infringing on their rights, as parents, to decide
which school they should send their children to. They may end up sending them to
a school that they’re less happy wish in order to avoid the sum of up to £400 per
child, per year.

A lot of the schools population come from deprived background and 20% of the
pupils at Bishop Vaughan qualify for free school meals so with this additional cost
they may not have the funds for breakfast and dinner meals either.

Dangers of global warming- there will be more cars on the road if parents are
forced to take their children, which will lead to more emissions that the council are
supposed to be working to reduce. Very few bus routes would be suitable and
most would require multiple bus changes which is impractical, costly and unsafe.
Also concerned about charging buses for all post 16 pupils. With this additional
charge future generations will choose to not attend post 16 education in either a
school or Catholic school community as many parents would expect them to pay.

Page 82 42



Since the work in post 16 education is tough it is not always possible to work for
long periods to earn enough to cover the bus fees-especially when most jobs are
minimum wage.

e Carmarthenshire council have withdrawn from instating similar policies (which we
also object to) which means that there are clearly some real concerns with the
structure of plans and the local community would not benefit from the changes.

Townhill Community School

14 pupils on school council

We think that it would be very difficult for the bus driver to keep an eye on all the children
if some children are misbehaving. Also, children could take their seatbelts off and the
driver wouldn’t know.

We feel that older children shouldn’t need an assistant as they should be able to be
sensible on a bus.

In response to the proposal to stop free school transport to Catholic schools the children
felt that there were lots of schools in our area so they would be able to walk to either
Comprehensive school. However, they did say you could get a public bus to school
instead if you went to a school further away from your home.

Regarding the proposal to change post-16 education fees for colleges and sixth forms
some of the children felt it was fair for both to pay.

However, if the sixth form is chosen because it is closer to their house then they shouldn’t
have to pay.

Most of the children felt that school transport should be free because children need to go
to school and that there should be a bus provided for each school.

They also said that for some of them, even though they go to our school they

have moved out of the area but still travel back and forth every day because they don’t

want to move schools.

Bishop Vaughan

Number of pupils on school council not stated

As individuals we have the basic right to practise our faith. If your remove free school
transport from Bishop Vaughan School, one of our most fundamental principles as a
Catholic school is endangered. Many Catholic families will not be able to afford to pay for
school transport for their son/daughter. Our reputation consists of our catholic faith
accepting all those who choose to come here and if this is changed, our faith’s ethos is
not as widely spread in the city and cannot serve its greater purpose. If free school
transport is removed then our basic human right to practise a religion of our choice is
undermined.

Not providing free school transport will have a huge impact on all families who want to go
to any catholic school. This will affect families of all sizes, big or small, as the cost of
around £390 will all add up, depending on the number of children in the family. Sadly, not
all families can afford this and this will then lead to the fragmentation of our Catholic
community.

Future generations of Catholic families will also be affected, and are likely to go to a
closer non-Catholic school. Removal of the free transport will therefore also affect the
future generations’ opportunity to practise the Catholic faith and grow in a Christian

Page 83 43



lifestyle. So if you take the free transport away now, it will not only effect the current youth
but will leave a legacy for the Catholic Community of Swansea.

¢ We strongly feel that depriving Catholic Schools of free transport is an appalling act of
discrimination. This will effect individuals dramatically. This will be stopping them from
fully practising their faith. Do you really think this is right? Why should we be affected just
because we are Catholic?

e \We understand that you are only thinking of applying this rule to Catholic Schools and not
to Welsh Schools. We believe that the current proposals are wholly unfair and on balance
the financial savings are at a large social cost for the city of Swansea. We urge you to
reconsider the current plan to remove free school transport.

St Joseph’s Catholic Primary

Number of pupils on school council: 17

e \We need to continue having a guide on the bus to help us on and off the bus. Also a
person we can tell if we are feeling unwell or having problems that can be sorted without
the driver having to stop and increasing our journey time.

¢ We are a Rights Respecting School and so fully believe that we have the Right to our
own religion and have an education in our religion. We are a Christian Country and
should be allowed free transport to those schools, just as we are Welsh and would have
free transport to a Welsh Medium School.

e If the proposals go ahead to charge for post-16 transport to sixth forms then it will be an
additional cost to parents who have chosen to keep their children in 6" form because they
cannot afford to send their children to college. If there was a charge imposed there would
be fewer children from deprived backgrounds being given the chance of Higher
Education.

e Transport to our schools is vital important to ensure these schools that have
been fought for, for many years continue to thrive and flourish.

Gowerton Comprehensive

Number on school council: 14

¢ |n response to the first issues re passenger assistants. We believe that we need
someone at all times for the following reasons: stop misbehaving, stop them opening
windows, ensure seat belts are worn, prevent any other dangers.

e Regarding the proposal to remove free school transport to the Catholic and church of
Wales schools we disapprove because Catholic religion is important in Wales as it is our
national heritage. Therefore it is unfair to ask pupils to pay/find their own way, purely due
to religious belief. Maybe they should co-ordinate one route to cover most pupils. It would
reduce traffic and environmental problems.

¢ In response to the proposal to remove post-16 free transport to sixth form pupils who live
more than 3 miles from their school we think that they are all in full time education and
with the cost of university etc increasing-should allow them to save up! Also prevent them
driving their own cars.

¢ We would like to add that buses are always breaking down and have inconsistent arrival
times. Pupils who live ‘closer’ to school but outside of catchment have to pay very
expensive travel expenses. Also we believe that there should be CCTV on
comprehensive buses.

Page 84 44



Ysqgol Gyfun Gwyr

Number on school council: 14

From the point of view of the younger pupils in the school we understand that passenger
assistants are important in order to ensure confidence for the passenger. Despite this we
understand that this costs a lot of money and on the assumption that most primary school
pupils wouldn’t travel without their parents then we do not consider this proposal to be
unreasonable.

In regards to the 2" proposal- to stop proving free school transport we are completely
against this proposal as we are a school with pupils coming from all parts of Swansea as
we have a large catchment area. Therefore we believe that this will affect our brothers
and sisters that will study here in the future.

Regarding the proposal to stop post-16 education transport to sixth forms we do not
believe that this is a good idea for us as pupils who will be attending the sixth form class
in future. Most of the pupils at Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr live more than 3 miles from the school.
Therefore we believe that if there was a charge to attend a Welsh sixth form then pupils
would chose to attend an English sixth form within the 3 mile radius. This proposal is
disadvantageous to Welsh schools and to some it shows a tendency to favour English
medium schools.

We believe that school transport is extremely important because of our choice of school
which has a large catchment area and many pupils travel 3 miles or further. We have
pupils travelling from as far as Pontarddulais or Oxwich. During these tough economic
times we believe that it is unfair to ask parents and children to pay for transport. Primary
and Secondary education is not for the elite and we need to ensure that this continues.

Pontarddulais Comprehensive

No on school council: 15

Regarding the proposal to remove a passenger assistant we believe that if there are very
young children then there needs to be an assistant on board. Pupils usually travel to
primary with parents or walk. It seems ok but if something went wrong with say a 5 year
old, it would be said: why was there no supervision?

We believe that the proposal to stop free school transport seems sensible.

We think that the proposal to remove post-16 education sounds fair, as college is the
same as sixth form.

We would like to add that the safety is compromised on secondary school transport as
there is no assistant. Pupils can misbehave on the busses, getting out of seats, throwing
things around. This makes it unsafe. One time, the driver had to stop on the hard
shoulder.

Page 85 45



APPENDIX D

Response to the Home to School Transport Policy Proposals

Bishop Vaughan School is most strongly opposed to these proposals for severa
reasons. These include:

1} the impact upon leamer and parental choice and rights

2} the particularly significant impact upon leamer and parental choice for
those facing some measure of deprivation

3} the disparity betwean provision for Welsh-medium schools and that for
denominational schools

4} our observations regarding the financial savings to be made
3} the potential effect upon MEETS in the Local Authonty
6} further practical consequences for the Local Authority

1} The impact upon leamer and parental chodice and rights

The inewitable cutcome of this proposal will be a reduciion in parental choice,
and in the long term, a possible reduction in the diversity of educational provision
withim $he Local Acthority. Medther natonal nor lecal elected members have &
mandate fram the electorate fo dio this.

It has been recognised since e debate on the 1844 Educaton Act, that schools
with religicus character will, in many metances, have a natural catchment area of

much larger size tham community schools. This is reflecied in the provision of the
Education Act 1824 which is still in the Statute Book.

The UM dedclarafion on the Rights of the Child states:
Principle T

The chitd i5 entitied o receive education, which shall be free and
compulsory, al least in the elemeniary Hages. He shall be given an
education which promodes his general cuffure and ensbies him on 3 basiz
of equal opporfundy, fo develop his sbilifies, his individus! judgement, and
his sense of moral and social responsibility, and fo become a wseful
member of socely. The best nferests of the chid shall be the guiding
principle of those responsile for his educsfion and guidance; that
responsibilify a5 in the firsf pface with his parents.

Page 86 46



The Ewopean Convention of Human Rights as incorporated in the Human
Rights Act 1288 states:

Article 2

MNo person should be denied the rghl fo educafion. In the exercise of any
funchions which & assumes in relabon fo educstion and o teaching, the
Stafe shall respect the mght of parenis o ensure such education and
teachimg in conformify with their own refigious and phiosophical

These instruments oufne the concept that parents are foremost educators of
their children and that the state should be a facilitator to ensure that all children
as far as practicable can be educated in accordance with thesr parents’ religious

and philesophical convictions.

The proposal o discontinue discrefionary provision of free transport for the VA
secior places at nsk the whode concept of parents being in a posibon to educate
their children according to their beliefs and convictions.

The particularly significant impact upon leamer and parental choice for
those facing some measure of deprivation

VA schools seree some of the mast depnved and disadvantaged communities,
achieving good acadermc outcomes. It is a Welsh Government pricrity to reduce
the impact of poverty on educational acheevernent. This proposal places
significant and fundarmental obstacles to some children atiending schools which
help them cvercome the impact of deprivation. R means some parents will have
to substitste personal housshold financal considerations for fundamental beliefs
and comwictions regarding thew children's schooling.

Cathiofic schools were sef up in partnership with Local Authorities as part of ther
prosssion to serve 3 particular community. The removal of dedicated transport
locsens their partnership amangement and the histoncal radiion on which it was
based.

Thes tradiion incudes such tenets of the Catholic Church as:

Farenfs a5 well a3 thase who ake their place are obliged and enjoy the
rght o aeducale fheir offspring; Catholic parends alzo have the duly and
the right fo salect those means and nsffutions through which they can
provide move sufably for the Catholic educsfion of the chidren acconding
fo local circumsiances.

Farents also have the right fo make use of those aids fo be fumizhed by
chvil sociefy which they need in order to obfain Catholic educafion for their
children.

Page 87

47



it is necessary that parents enjoy frue freedom in sefecting schools, the
Chrishan fadhiwl must therefore be concermed that ol sociely
acknowiedge this freedom for parents and also safeguard i with B=
resources in sccord with distribuffve jushice.

It s very important to remernber that Catholic families paid to have Cathofic
schools budt, often funding 25% or more of the bulding costs, and that Catholic
parents cumently hawve to find 15% of the capial costs of Catholic schods. I
other words, Catholic schools already cost Catholic parents money, money
which they were glad to contribute to ensure a Catholic education. This proposal
means an extra financial burden on Catholic famibes - a burden that other

families kving less than three miles from their appropriate pnmary or secondany
schoofs, would not have to find. Cathofic parents have already paid tax to

prowide schools — Catholic, Welsh Medium, and other — and then had to find a
further 25% and later 15% on top of that.

It is therefore the case that Catholic parents will be charged twice for a nght
enshrined in the 1844 Education Act and hitherto supponted by the partnership n

school provision between the Local Authority and the Diocese.

Plainly, leamers facing economic disadvantage and deprivabon will not be able
to sustain the fmancial burdens imposed by these proposals and will not enjoy
the same choices regarding faith educaton as their more affluent peers. This s
unacceptable on every level and senously contradicts the commitments made by
the Welsh Government to reduce the impact of poverty.

The dispanty between provision for Welsh-medium schools and that for
denominational schools

We would draw your attention to page 51 of the 'Proposed Guadance on Learner
Trawvel Statutory Provision and Operationa Guidance” document Here, in
oufining the current measures o place, it states in paragraph 5.7 that

if parents enact ther parental preference and choose a leamng
esfablishment which 5 not the nearest sudable school or relevant place of
ieamimg for their childjren), local suthombes are noi legally bound fo
provide fransport aithough they do have power fo make provision on a
discretionary basis under sechion & of the Measure.

This reflects paragraph 126 of the Leamer Traval Operational Guidance:

If the schood 5 not the nearesf sulable school the pupd generally does
not have a night fo free school transport even i they fve beyond walling
disfance. in such cases, parents are responsibie for making their own
transport amangementds, slfhowgh an authonty has discretion {usimg is

Page 88



4)

powers under sechon 6 of the Measwre) o provide free or assisfed
transport for such pupis.

In danfying what constitutes exercise of parental preference, paragraph 5.8 of
the "Proposed Guidance on Leamer Travel Statutory Provision and Operational
Gusdance document siates:

if a parent chooses a school for their child on grounds of [anguage or
denominabonal preference and that school is not the nearest sutable
school as agreed by the refevant local authordy, then this consitules the
gxercise of parenial preferance.

if it s conceded that choosing a schoof for esther language or faith-basad
reasons constfute an exercise of parenial preference, then the positon where
Local Authonties wse ther discretionary “power” to fund one set of parental
preferences whilst removing prosision for another set of parental preferences is
most contentious and, we would argue, an ndefensible position.

Paragraph 2.12 makes reference o the fact that:

The Weish Aszembly Government, like local suthorties, recognise the
value and role of faith based educafion and want local authonties fo
confimie fo wse their discrebionary powers fo make fransport
arrangements which take accownt of parental preferances for schoods with
a refigious characher.

This consuftation, sadly and telngly, makes no reference to the contnbution of
faith schools being valued.

Paragraph 2.5 of the Learner Trawvel Operationad Guidance clearly states that:

if a local authonty does make use of the powers in sechon & of the
Meazure, # must ensure thaf any policies are fair, reasonabie, and compily
with relevant legislzfon nouding equaliy legisiation and the Human
Rights Act 1998, Local suthonbes must nof disciminafe unfawilly
between learners when wsing ther secion & powers.

We would argue, therefore, that making financal prowson for one set of
parental preferences and remowing provision for another is subiect to legal
challenge under the Equality Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 1208

Our observations regarding the financial savings to be made

While we contest the proposals for their infringements of the nghts of leamers,
we misst also point out at this early stage a number of practica! consderations
fior the Local Authority. Thess proposals can not produce the desred outcomes

Page 89

49



in terms of savngs to the Lozal Authonty, and will senously mpact upon the
success achisved in areas of key importance to the Authonty.

The proposals relating to prowision for Voluntary Aided schools aim 1o achieve
s3vings of the foflowing sums, these having besn projected by the LA and
representng the maximum possible savings n each given year

£22 Bk in 2015-148, E6T 7k m 201617, £138 4k in 2017-18 and rising 10 2
maxirram of E6E3k in 2022-23. The phased introducton dictates that savings will
be modest for 3 considerable period, yet costs associated with this proposal will
be immediate and significant.

It was agreed at 2 recent meeting of the working group calfed o consider these
proposals that rermoval of transport provision, with ds asseciated requiremsant
that families pay up to £400 p.a. for each s=at will require the employment of teo
adrranistrative assistants fo manage the payment system, allfocations, contracts,
etc. The salanes, on-costs, eic, wil be in excess of £40k pa., thus resultng n a
lzss in the first year, and the rather indefensible position for several years to
coeme of money being diverted from where i is trefy needed and can justfiably
be spent to be spent instead on administration.

The potential effect upon NEETS in the Local Authority

The great successes that the Authority has been able to report with reducing
MEETS figures, mcreasing leamer choice and the Swansea Guarantes are
jeopardised by the threats to post-16 transport provision. Here it is absolutely
inewitable that @ proporton of ieamers will not continue to post-16 education i
faced with the need to pay £E200 p.a (although at the working group the fgure
was actually calculated as being up to £400 p.a. ) for transport costs alone to
acoess it The burden of this goes beyond the proportion of pupés in receipt of
EMA, the famifizs of whom already find the additional cosfs associated wath
remaining in education difficelt o bear. We are often faced with She very real
concems of families about their inabdity to pay the cne-off LCAS fee of E28 in
order to make applications to universities. i has been 3 suctess on the
Authorty's part and on that of post-18 schoods to keep such student= in
education in order to allow themn to fulf their potential and make a meaningful
coninbution to society as they progress. We have no doubt whatzosver that the
riurner of NEETS post-16 wil rise if transport provision is removed.

Linking 1o point 4 abowe, we would ask what the cost to the Authonty of each
MEET pupil is; we are aware that the cumulative costs of identiying, racking and
engagng them are exdremsly high. These costs, added to those of the
adrnimistration posts, maks these proposals mpractical. We also suppest that
this undermines e work of the Swansea Guarantee which, while cosiy, has
been efectve. The insvitable efects upon leamers in Swansea mean not only
unnecessany spendng on increased levels of NEETS in the years ahead, but
also that the spending on this project to date has been, at least o some degres,
wasted, as the NEETS figures will go on o demonsirate negative trends.

Page 90

50



We urge you 1o look also at the consequences for learner chaosce: fewer leamers
remaining in post-16 education will mean smaller numbers in options classes.
With the significant budgetary cuts facing schools, thes of course means that
these subjects wil be not be offered. Effective parinership working between the
schools and colleges across Swansaa means that staffing and resources are
carrenty being used to optimum effect Removing subjects, therefore, in any one
of thess schools namows leamer choice not only within the schodl itself but for
leamers across Swansea, who benefit from being able to access these courses.
Im our own case, for example, we work closely in partnership with Momiston
Comprehensive. Should Sixth Form dasses in certain subjects be cut because
of a falling roll post-16, Bishop Waughan leamers will have 3 namower choice of
pathways, and this will atso limdt the choices for Momston stedents. it will not be
straightiorwardly the case that these leamers will instead apply to the colleges.
Transport costs will be prohibitve there also, whilst most students accessing
Bishop WYaughan cowrses from our partner school are within walking distance or
make use of their own school’s minibus service. Certain groups of leamers,
therefors, whom we have been able to keep n education due o the accessibility
of their post- 16 education, and due to the continuity offered by the school
owercoming many of their concems regarding their ability to confinue in
education, will no longer find it possible to contnue their leaming post-16. With
no institutions offering funded transport. many will choose to leave education at
this lewet; it is fair to say that a percentage of these young people will be unable
to find employment or training cpportunities and will therefore becomes NEET.

Further practical consequences for the Local Authority

We further contend that these proposals do nof consider the ineviable
conseguent effects. 1t is the case that ower 20% of Bishop Vaughan's pupds
qualify for free school meals, Plainly, those families, and indeed many who are
perhaps just above the threshold for qualifying for these, will be unable to pay up
to £400 pa. for transport for each child using it. With ower 40% of pupils cumently
using the school transport, there is the potential fior up to 40% of those cumently
on roll having to transfer to what is described in the proposals as the ‘nearest

mainstream schood'. We are aware that there is not the scope for lange numbers
of leamers being accommodated elsewhere - quite apart from the concems that
this raises about leamer choice and the position that this sets up with families
only being able to acoess education 3t a faith school © they are sufficiently
affluent to pay fior it.

While there is nof scope, then, to accommod ate these learmers in other Swansea
schools, this school, with the staffing and provision aready in place, will face
making staff cuts when numbers inevitably fall, and namrowing provision, 3
concem highlighted in sechon 5, sbowe. Further, it is Bkely that dus to the smafer
nurniers of pupds using even those fransport services that they will then hawve to

Page 91

51



pay for. some private hire companies and/or service routes will either not be abls
to provide transport due to the losses that they will incur or will set higher

charges for dong so. This further limits access and choice for 3l leamers, not
only those unable fo pay for the transport.

We would add that those pupls able to remain at Bishop Vaughan but denied
bransport will in some cases make use of private transport, where able to do so,
with the conseguent environmental and rescurcing concams that are associated
with this. The environmental mplicatons of this proposal need o be considered
carefully, especally in the context of carbon reduction tangets.

We ask therefore that a detaded costing of the actua sawvings that might be
made is wndertaken; we ask for a realistic projection of the costs of the
adrrenistration that will b= reguired i curment prowvision is removed; we ask that
the likely expenditure for increased numbers of NEETS 15 assessed. With the
potental savings balanced against these costs, we belisve that it will be deemed
as not being in the Authonty’s interest to further consides these proposals,
particularfy when considered within the context of the negative impact upon
leamer choice and the additional concems putfmed above.

We feel that the savings to be made cannot possibly be used as
justification for narmrowing provision, as justification for discrimination
against one set of parental preferences whilst funding another and as
justification for increasing — confrany to the Welsh Government's priornities
— the barriers presented by poverty.

In light of the abowe concems we contest the proposals wholsheartedly.

Page 92

52



APPENDIX E

TRANSPORT
AND POST-16 WELSH MEDIUM EDUCATION

A review of the effect of charging for transport for pupils to attend
post-16 Welsh medium education in Swansea

Hafan Language Consultancy

Parents for Welsh Medium Education (RhAG) ‘ﬁdq

With the assistance of Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Gwyr and YGG Bryn Tawe
April 2014
Contact:
Heini Gruffudd, Secretary of Swansea RhAG
2 Lon Rhianfa, Ffynhonne, Swansea SA1 6DJ heini@gruffudd.org 01792 455410

Page 93 53



CONTENTS

CONCLUSIONS
FINDINGS
1. Background
2. Geography 4
3. Survey method
4. Responses
5. Place of residence and method of travel to school
6. Distance from school
7. Desire to receive post-16 Welsh medium education
8. Willingness to pay
9. Desire to receive post-16 Welsh medium education

10. Post-16 English medium establishments and other establishments

and willingness to pay for school transport

11. Parents' comments and social deprivation

GRAPHS

Graph 1 How GWyr pupils travel to school
Graph 2 How Bryn Tawe pupils travel to school
Graph 3 GWwyr pupils' distance from school
Graph 4 Bryn Tawe pupils' distance from school

L 1 N W A

12
14
14

Graph 5 Desire to receive post-16 education at Ysgol Gwyr

Graph 6 Desire to receive post-16 education at Ysgol Bryn Tawe

Graph 7 Willingness to pay for transport for post-16 education at Ysgol Gwyr

Graph 8 Willingness to pay for transport for post-16 education at Ysgol Bryn Tawe 11
Graph 9 Desire to continue in post-16 Welsh medium education and pay £300

for school bus transport to Ysgol GWwyr

Graph 10 Desire to continue in post-16 Welsh medium education and pay £300 for
school bus transport to Ysgol Bryn Tawe

CHARTS
Chart 1 Distance from school and desire to receive post-16 education at the school
Chart 2 Distance from school and desire to receive post-16 education at the school

APPENDIX A Parents' Comments

Page 94

o 0 0 I



CONCLUSIONS

1.

An annual charge of £300 for transporting post-16 pupils to Gwyr and Bryn Tawe will probably mean the

end of viable post-16 education at these schools.

Charging for transport will disproportionately affect those receiving post-16 education through the medium

of Welsh in the county. This will affect 8 out of 10 pupils attending GWwyr and Bryn Tawe.

Charging for school transport will penalise those from less affluent backgrounds more than anyone else, and

mean that pupils from poorer backgrounds will be unable to continue in Welsh medium education.

Post-16 English medium education is much more accessible for the majority of pupils, therefore a charge of

£300 puts Welsh medium education at a clear disadvantage.

The county has not investigated the effect charging for school transport will have on post-16 Welsh medium

education, on post-16 education in general or on less affluent families.

The Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 2008 places a duty on local authorities to arrange transport to schools
whose aim is to promote Welsh medium education. The proposal currently being discussed would have the

opposite effect, and be very harmful to Welsh medium education.

Findings

1.

There is a very strong desire among Gwyr and Bryn Tawe pupils to continue their post-16 education at these

schools.

If their parents had to pay £300 a year for transport to a post-16 Welsh medium setting, only 19% would
definitely send their children to these schools, with a further 19% saying they would probably choose this

option.

Effective transport is vital for ensuring equality for Welsh medium education, as the majority of pupils who

choose this option live at some distance from the provision.

A higher percentage of pupils travel by bus to Welsh medium schools than to English medium schools,
therefore the effect of charging £300 for transport costs would be more detrimental to Welsh medium

education than to English medium education.
Parents are generally concerned that their children's education would suffer.
Parents are worried that their financial circumstances would mean they could not afford the school bus.

A number of pupils live within walking distance from English medium post-16 provision and requiring them
to pay £300 to attend a Welsh medium establishment would put Welsh medium education at a significant

disadvantage.

81% of survey respondents said their children depended on the bus to travel to GWwyr and Bryn Tawe, with

three quarters of pupils living more than 3 miles from their school.

There is no convenient public bus service to Gwyr and Bryn Tawe, therefore the vast majority of pupils

Page 95 55



depend on school buses provided by the authority.

1. Background

In February 2013, Swansea County Council launched a public consultation on transport to school or college for
post-16 pupils. The proposal under discussion is to charge £300 a year for transport to post-16 education in the
county.

It is apparent that the authority has not investigated the effect charging for school buses to post-16 education would
have on:

e  Welsh medium education

e Low income families

¢ Remaining in post-16 education in general.

The Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 2008 allows local authorities to pay travel costs in full or partially for pupils
where there is no statutory obligation to provide free travel. Part of the authority's duty is to provide transport
which does not cause unreasonable levels of long-term stress for pupils which would prevent them from taking
advantage of the education provided.

Clause 10 of the Measure states:

Promoting access to education and training through the medium of the Welsh language
Each local authority and the Welsh Ministers must promote access to education andtraining through the
medium of the Welsh language when exercising functions underthis Measure.

There is no evidence that the authority has paid due attention to this clause, and no consideration has been given to
how the present proposal would promote education through the medium of Welsh.

2. Geography

The county of Swansea is fairly compact compared with some other counties in Wales. The distance from west to
east is about 15 miles and about 9 miles from north to south.

The population is concentrated in the urban area of Swansea with its extremely busy roads and traffic, which has a
bearing on ease of walking to an educational establishment.

The county has some more remote areas, including the Gower peninsula and some parts of the north.

Ysgol Gwyr takes pupils from primary schools within 3 miles, such as Pontybrenin and Login Fach and others
which are further away such as Bryn-y-mor, LIwynderw and Bryn lago.

Ysgol Bryn Tawe pupils come from primary schools within 3 miles, such as Tirdeunaw and Felindre, as well as
others which are further than 3 miles such as Gellionnen and Lon-las.

Consequently, a considerable proportion of pupils of both schools live more than 3 miles from the school.
3. Survey method

We decided to carry out a survey which would seek the following information from respondents:
1. School year of the pupil

Place of residence

Approximate distance from school

Method of travel to school

Desire to receive post-16 education at the school

The sum the parent would be willing to pay for school transport

SATNANE ol N

Page 96 56



7. The pupil's right to free school meals
8. The likelihood of returning for post-16 education at the schools if a charge of £300 were levied.

Parents were also asked how they felt about the idea of charging £300 a year for school transport.

We are grateful for the co-operation of Ysgol Gyfun GWwyr and Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe in conducting the
survey. The completed questionnaires were processed using SPSS software which enabled us to compare different
variables.

The following report outlines the main findings which arose from the questionnaires and includes additional
comments from 98 parents.

4. Responses

Responses were received from 62 parents of Ysgol Gyfun GWwyr pupils and 71 responses from parents of pupils at
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe. The parents' responses reflected the location of their homes, with a higher
number received from those who live further from the school.

It could be that the response rate was greater from those who already have an interest in the subject, which is a
common occurrence with such questionnaires. This may mean that there is some degree of bias in the responses
towards those who wish to continue post-16 education through the medium of Welsh or those who are generally
interested in Welsh medium education. Having said that, the clear patterns which emerged from the responses
demonstrate that there is a keen interest in the issue and considerations which must be taken on board.

5. Place of residence and method of travel to school

5.1 Ysgol Gyfun GWyr
Respondents’ children attended the following schools:

Percentage Number
Pontybrenin 13% 8
Bryn lago 29% 18
Login Fach 5% 3
Llwynderw 18% 11
Bryn-y-mor 34% 21

The comparatively high response from Bryn lago, LIwynderw and Bryn-y-mér reflects the concern of parents who
live more than 3 miles from their child's school.

The majority of respondents said their child travelled to school by bus:

Percentage Number
Car 3% 2
School bus 92% 57
Service bus 5% 3

58 respondents said their child was entitled to free school transport. This is one more than the number who travel by
bus but it would be fair to conclude that free school bus travel is essential for most pupils to get to school.

Graph 1 How GWyr pupils travel to school

Page 97 57



SUTMYND

Bear
Hbws ysgol
DObws cyhoeddus

Method of Transport [translator’s note — unable to edit graph key. Green represents school bus, beige
service bus and blue car]

5.2 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe

Respondents' children attended the following schools:
Percentage Number

Tirdeunaw 13% 9
Loén-las 61% 43
Gellionnen 21% 15

The comparatively high response from Lon-las reflects the concern of parents who live more than 3 miles from
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe.

The majority of respondents said their child travelled to school by bus:

Percentage Number
Car 24% 17
School bus 72% 51

The percentage who travel by car is greater than for Ysgol Gyfun GWwyr, probably because a higher percentage live
within 3 miles of the school. 51 (72%) respondents said that their child was entitled to free school transport. It is fair
to conclude that free school transport is essential for the majority to travel to school.

Page 98 58



Graph 2 How Bryn Tawe pupils travel to school
SUTMYND

B cerdded
Hcar
Clbws ysgol
Maral

[Beige represents school bus, green car, purple other and blue walking]

Conclusion:

Welsh medium education at Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr and Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe depends, to a great extent,

on the provision of a school bus.

6 Distance from school
6.2 Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr

77% of respondents live more than 3 miles from the school:

Percentage
Less than 2 miles 1.6%
2-3 miles 11%
3-4 miles 16%
4-5 miles 19%
More than 5 miles 52%

Distance patterns are very different from overall

Number
1

7

10

12

32

patterns in the county; in general, the vast majority of pupils in

English medium education live within 3 miles of their comprehensive school.

To ensure that access to Welsh medium education is as convenient as access to English medium education, there

needs to be easy access to transport.

Page 99 59



Graph 3 Ysgol GWwyr pupils' distance from school
PELLTER

Wiom
Hz-am
O3-am
W4is5m
Clmwy na 5m

Distance [ Yellow represents more than 5 miles; purple 4-5 miles; beige 3-4 miles; green 2-3 miles; blue
1-2 miles]

6.3 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe
68% of respondents live more than 3 miles from the school:

Percentage Number

Less than 2 miles 15.56% 11
2-3 miles 17% 12
3-4 miles 21% 15
4-5 miles 18% 13
More than 5 miles 28% 20

Distance patterns are very different from overall patterns in the county; in general, the vast majority of pupils in
English medium education live within 3 miles of their comprehensive school.

To ensure that access to Welsh medium education is as convenient as access to English medium education, there
needs to be easy access to transport.

Graph 4 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe pupils’ distance from school

PELLTER

Ehyd1m
Hi1-zm
Oz3m
W34m
O45m

W mwy na sm

Distance [Red represents more than 5 miles; purple 3-4 miles; yellow 4-5 miles; beige 2-3 miles; blue one
mile or less; green 1-2 miles]

Page 100 60



Conclusion:

Among the respondents, a high percentage of pupils at Welsh medium comprehensive schools in Swansea live more
than 3 miles from their school and are eligible for free transport to statutory education. Taking both schools into
account, 77% of pupils live more than 3 miles away. Approximately three quarters of pupils at both schools will be
affected by the authority's decision to charge for transport to post-16 education.

7 Desire to receive post-16 Welsh medium education

7.1 Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr
There was a very positive response to the question enquiring about the desire to receive post-16 education through
the medium of Welsh. 76% said yes, definitely, and 21% said they would probably wish to receive Welsh medium

education.

Graph 5 Desire to receive post-16 education at Ysgol Gwyr

AMADD16

| yn bendant
B mwy nathebya
a posibl

[Blue represents definitely; green probably; beige possibly]

As will be shown further on, this positive pattern will be wiped out by the introduction of a charge for school
transport.

It can be seen that the desire to receive post-16 education at GWwyr does not diminish according to distance between
home and school. Of the 32 who live more than 5 miles away, 29 said they would definitely wish to receive post-16
education at the school.

Page 101 61



Chart 1 Distance from school and desire to receive post-16 education at the school

Bar Chart

20 AMADDTB

[ v bendant
I mwy na thebyg
I posibl

204

Count

1 2-3m

-2m 3-4m 4-5m mwy na Sm

PELLTER

[Blue equals definitely; green probably; beige possibly]

7.2 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe

There was a very positive response to the question enquiring about the desire to receive post-16 education through
the medium of Welsh. 60% said yes, definitely, and 14% said they would probably wish to receive Welsh medium
education. A further 21% said they would possibly want to receive Welsh medium education.

Graph 6 Desire to receive post-16 education at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe

AMADD16

| yn bendant
B mwy nathebyg
| posibl
na
[ Missing

[Blue equals definitely; green probably; beige possibly; purple no; yellow missing]

As will be shown further on, this positive pattern will be wiped out by the introduction of a charge for school
transport.

Page 102 62



It can be seen that the desire to receive post-16 education at Bryn Tawe does not diminish according to distance
between home and school. Of the 33 who live more than 4 miles away, 24 said they would definitely wish to
receive post-16 education at the school.

Chart 2 Distance from school and desire to receive post-16 education at the school

Bar Chart

AMADD1E

W yn bendant

E mwy na thebyg
12 .5 I posikl

na

10.0

757

Count

hye 1m 1-2m 2-3m 3-4m 4-5m mwy na Ssm
PELLTER

[Blue equals definitely; green equals probably; beige equals possibly; purple equals no]

Conclusion:

Desire to receive post-16 education is as great among pupils who live some distance from the schools as it is
among pupils who live nearby, if not greater. The authority's decision to introduce a charge for pupils in post-16
education will affect those who live further away from the schools.

8 Willingness to pay

8.1 Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr

It was evident that asking parents who have always received free transport to pay £300 for transport to post-16
education has provoked a very negative reaction. The survey enquired about their willingness to pay other sums,
including less than £100, £100, £200 or £300.

69% said they were unwilling or unable to pay at all.

Percentage Number
Willing to pay £300 6.5% 4
Willing to pay £200 6.5% 4
Willing to pay £100 10% 6
Willing to pay less than £100  6.5% 4
Unwilling to pay anything 69% 43

Page 103

63



Graph 7 Willingness to pay for transport for post-16 education at Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr

MAINTTALU

M z300

B z200
Ox100
WLiaina £100
CIoim

= Missing

Willingness to pay [yellow equals nothing; purple equals less than £100; beige equals £100; green equals
£200; purple equals £300; red equals answer missing]

8.2 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe

It was evident that asking parents who have always received free transport for post-16 education to pay £300 for
transport to post-16 education has provoked a very negative reaction. The survey enquired about their willingness
to pay other sums, including less than £100, £100, £200 or £300.

57% said they were unwilling or unable to pay at all.

Percentage
Willing to pay £300 4.5%
Willing to pay £200 11%
Willing to pay £100 11%
Willing to pay less than £100  17%
Unwilling to pay anything 57%

Number
3

7

7

11

37

Graph 8 Willingness to pay for transport for post-16 education at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe

MAINTTALU

B 300

Ee200

Oetoo

M Ligina £100
Dirn

m Missing

Willingness to pay [yellow equals nothing; purple equals less than £100; beige equals £100; green equals
£200; blue equals £300; red equals answer missing]|

Page 104 64



Conclusion:
Of 100 respondents with children at both schools who live more than 3 miles at the school, 70 were unwilling or
unable to pay anything.

The authority might wish to discuss to what extent asking parents to pay a substantial sum for a service which has
always been free has provoked a negative reaction which could have been avoided with a more gradual
introduction. It is clear that parents are strongly opposed to the idea, with more than 6 out of 10 refusing to pay or
unable to pay and 7 out of 10 who live more than 3 miles from the school giving the same response.

9 Desire to receive post-16 Welsh medium education and
willingness to pay for school transport

There was a steep drop in the desire to receive post-16 education through the medium of Welsh when faced with the
sums required to pay.

10.1 Ysgol Gyfun GWyr

There is a clear reduction in the desire to receive post-16 education through the medium of Welsh when faced with
the requirement to pay £300 for transport. The percentage who would definitely choose this has changed from 76%
to 23%. The other 18% say that they would probably continue. We can predict that the number who choose to
continue will be reduced by half at best. It appears that it would be difficult to sustain viable post-16 provision
through the medium of Welsh at Bryn Tawe without free school transport.

The table below shows the number of parents who would choose to send their children to Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr if they
had to pay £300 for school transport.

Percentage Number
Would definitely continue 23% 14
Probably 18% 11
Possibly 15% 24
Would not continue 31% 19

Page 105 65



Graph 9 Desire to continue in post-16 Welsh medium education and willingness to pay for school transport,
Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr

OSTRICHANT

B ¥n bendart

E bhwy nathebyg
OPosibl

Hua

Cnissing

[Blue equals definitely; purple equals no; green equals probably; beige equals possibly; yellow equals
answer missing]

10.2 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe

There is a clear reduction in the desire to receive post-16 education through the medium of Welsh when faced with
the requirement to pay £300 for transport. The percentage who would definitely choose this option has changed
from 60% to 14%. The other 19% say that they would probably continue. We can predict that the number who
choose to continue will be reduced by half at best. It appears that it would be difficult to sustain viable post-16
provision through the medium of Welsh at Bryn Tawe without free school transport.

The table below shows the number of parents who would choose to send their children to Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg
Bryn Tawe if they had to pay £300 for school transport.

Percentage Number
Would definitely continue 14% 9
Probably 19% 12
Possibly 30% 19
Would not continue 36% 23

Page 106 66



Graph 10 Desire to continue in post-16 Welsh medium education and willingness to pay £300 for school bus
transport to Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bryn Tawe

OSTRICHANT

B vn bendart

B Mwy na thebyg
Orosibl

BEra

O missing

[purple equals no; beige equals possibly; green equals probably; blue equals definitely; yellow equals

answer missing]

Conclusion:

Taking both schools into account, 19% said they would definitely want their child to receive post-16 education at
the school if they had to pay and another 19% said they would probably choose this option. We can predict that the
number who would be able to continue with their post-16 education through the medium of Welsh would be halved
and the provision would be at risk in Swansea.

11 Post-16 English medium establishments and other
establishments

There is ample provision of post-16 education through the medium of English in Swansea, particularly in the west
of the city. This means that a comparatively low percentage of pupils in west Swansea would pay for transport to
post-16 education as there are post-16 educational establishments within reasonable walking distance.

On the other hand, pupils in east Swansea are more likely to need to travel by bus to post-16 education. East
Swansea is a more deprived area than west Swansea and the requirement to pay £300 for transport is likely to have
a detrimental effect on pupils in that area. This would reinforce disadvantages already existing in east Swansea.

12 Parents' comments and social deprivation

Parents’ comments centred on 4 main themes:

Disadvantage to Welsh medium education
Impact on those from less affluent backgrounds
The harmful effect on education

Lack of savings

B W N —

Page 107 67



Parents mentioned the personal difficulties they would face in paying for transport in the current economic
recession. These parents are not necessarily unemployed, but are earning a comparatively low income and an
additional charge, where there are cheaper options available, would mean they would be unable to send their
children to Welsh medium schools.

Parents are very aware of the effect this will have on the Welsh language and on the promotion of education in
general.

Parents' comments raised issues which are regarded as social deprivation. This includes income deprivation but
also involves work, health and education deprivation. Distance from education facilities is one of the factors used
to measure social deprivation. The authority appears not to have considered these factors in proposing to charge for
educational transport. It is possible to predict that the present plan will increase social deprivation in remote areas of
the county, particularly among those already considered to be suffering from income and work deprivation.

Parents' comments can be read in Appendix A.

Page 108 68



APPENDIX A

This outlines parents' responses to the proposal to charge £300 for transport to post-16 education.

COMMENTS OF PARENTS WHOSE CHILDREN ATTEND YSGOL GYFUN GWYR
Disadvantage to Welsh medium education

1.

2.

o

7.

8.
9.

Unfortunately there are only two Welsh medium schools in Swansea and therefore travel
is essential.

We have 5 children who are all in Welsh medium education. It would cost us £10000 to
put them through 6™ form in Gwyr. This would be a reason to reconsider whether they
should remain in Welsh schools.

We live within walking distance of Tycoch college and my daughter could attend
education provision for free. This would be disappointing as we would prefer her to have
education through the medium of Welsh.

This is very unfair as it is impossible to walk to any Welsh medium secondary school from
Uplands.

This will affect our decision on the next stage.

10% Council tax rise this year... my salary is only rising by 1%. College might be an
option to consider instead.

There will clearly be a reduction in the number of pupils in Welsh medium secondary
education. Lack of equal opportunities

A £300 charge would be very discouraging. We have Gower College on our doorstep.
Where is equal opportunities?

10. This will mean big losses for Welsh medium education as people choose English schools

11.

N =

9.

which are closer to home.
Distance from school should not disadvantage the pupil.

Impact on the less affluent
We only have one wage coming to our household. Money is tight enough.

. The current climate is causing concern for everyone, charging will only cause more stress

and hardship.

We have two children that this would affect (£600 p.a.).. will have a detrimental affect on
our family — ultimately their education.

| will be retired with a reduced income by then. Charging will place pressure on my
reduced income.

Honestly would not be able to afford it, he would have to go to somewhere else where
that is cheaper/free. | am a single parent and can'’t afford the extra expense.

I’'m barely surviving financially as it is. To pay for school bus on top of that would be
impossible.

The extra charge would be too much for many people to afford.

The charge could have a real impact on low incomes and may put some parents off
sending their children to sixth form.

This charge would definitely put a financial strain on me.

10.We are a low income family, this is too much as we have 1 other child who we will also

11

have to pay for.

. There is only one salary coming into the house so | feel that this is a high cost for me to

pay each year.

12.1 won't be able to afford more.
13. Prohibitively expensive for some.

Page 109 69



14.The result of the £300 charge would mean that my son would be unlikely to be taking the
bus to school.

15.1 have twins in this year and it would cost us £600 which we cannot afford

16. It will most likely discourage lower income households’ pupils from attending sixth form.
Do you really believe this will benefit the education system?

17.1t gives the impression that only those who can afford to pay for transport will be able to
continue with post-16 education.

18.We are encouraging young people to continue with education but also placing hurdles for
some who will find this charge for transport unacceptable.

19.1 could not afford it.

20.A lot of families will not be able to pay this and it will no doubt deter some pupils from
going to 6™ form.

21.Prohibitively expensive for some families, especially if more than one young person.

22.This would have a huge effect.. any pay rise that | have will completely disappear.

Harmful effect on education
1. 1 do feel that the council has a moral obligation to support the choice of education we

have made for our children.

| strongly believe that children are entitled to free post-16 education.

Is likely to stop children from entering the 6™ form.

4. The charge would have a significant impact on my son going to 6™ form. | am being held
to ransom to educate my child.

5. Would be disappointed due to zero encouragement to continue in education... it's hard
enough for the age group to find their place in society now.

6. | disagree with the principle of charging for education, which is basically what this charge

amounts to.

Education is paramount. The cost would adversely affect education.

We do not feel that even a nominal cost for school transport is justified for a state school.

Feels as though the child is being punished for wanting to stay on in school.

0 Education should be free.

w N

—“-°.°°.\‘

Lack of savings
. The bus is running anyway.
. If there is going to be a free bus supplied for the younger pupils of the school, | don’t see
why 6th form pupils should be singled out and discriminated against.
3. Why should parents have to pay for a seat on a school bus that is already transporting
children to Gwyr in the lower school?

N =

COMMENTS OF PARENTS WHOSE CHILDREN ATTEND YSGOL GYFUN GYMRAEG BRYN
TAWE
Disadvantage to Welsh medium education

1 | have two boys who will overlap in post-16 education, paying £600 will significantly influence our decision
as to where

Charging for transport will have a detrimental affect on post-16 Welsh medium education in this area.
Unfair as she attends the nearest Welsh medium school.

This move jeopardizes 6th form Welsh medium education.

v b W N

It would certainly be a struggle to find £300 each year and we would have to consider other options i.e.
college etc.

Not everyone will be able to afford to pay, so will remove their children from Welsh medium education.
Just can’t afford it, | have to take a massive pay cut Alternative option to attend Neath College if we have

Page 110 70



10

10
11

12

13
14

15
16
17
18

o U~ W N

to pay.

| would have to consider a different 6th form.

Not having to pay for the bus was a major factor in our choice of secondary school.
| could not afford to pay and would have no choice to change to a closer school.

Impact on the less affluent

Financially difficult.

| have 2 children at Bryn Tawe at the moment. | cannot afford to pay for them to travel on the school
bus... to add another cost ... would mean cutbacks at home with food or heating.

| am a single parent with the added cost of school Transport will cost a small fortune to keep J... in further
education in 6th form.

It's a bit expensive. £200 would be more reasonable.

The £300 yearly fee would have a great impact on our household budget. I'm afraid we simply could not
afford it.

My husband and | wouldn’t be able to afford to send him.

This could be a problem, particularly with more than one child in the sixth form.

| feel the charge is discriminating sixth formers who are still in full timed education.. why isn’t this the
same as Neath Port Talbot - £100

We would not be able to afford to pay £300.

| will not be able to afford £300 a year for a school bus.

I’'m not in a financial position to pay for school Transport at the moment as it is.. [it] would mean less
money for food or heating at home.

| would envisage that this amount would cause financial hardship to some families especially where they
have more than one child in 6th form.

I will have 2 children in post 16 education at the school and £600 is beyond my budget.

| am in a bracket whereby our disposable income is rapidly sinking.. by the economic restraints placed
upon most working people.

Not all people can afford it, people are penalised if they can’t afford it.

As a single parent | would find paying this amount out of income would not be ideal.

Excessive.

Can’t afford it.

Harmful effect on education

| would love my child to continue till the very end, but would not be able to afford to pay £300 a year to
get her there.

Would not be able to afford £300/year so my child would go without further education.

Would think twice about going to 6th form.

There should not be a charge on educating children.

It makes 6th form education impossible for my household budget.

These children should be encouraged to attend further education - some will see this sum as a barrier for
their children and there's a risk that they won't attend college or the sixth form as a result.

With the cost of living going up, we as many others are, will find it very difficult to find an extra £300 on
top of our outgoings which may result in my child not being able to carry on with his education.

Lack of savings

By continuing to create larger and larger schools where all other costs can be reduced, except transport,
therefore transport costs should be seen as a necessary consequence.

Page 111 [



Page 112

72



Agenda Item 11.

COUNCILLORS’ QUESTIONS
PART A - SUPPLEMENTARIES

Councillors JW Jones, CA Holley & J Newbury

In response to a question on the District Regeneration Area Grant (Council 15"
April) it stated that applications were invited by established local business
networks and originated from Businesses and Entrepreneurs who were mainly
already receiving business advice from Welsh Government’s “Business Wales”
support providers. Will the Cabinet Member tell us why this selection method
was used and give a breakdown of successful businesses who received this
grant.

Response of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration

This was small scale funding and could therefore only assist a limited number of
existing businesses and new business starts. Applicants were required to
submit an application form and business proposal in support of their request.
Assistance in developing the supporting documentation can be obtained free of
charge from one or more of Welsh Government’s ‘Business Wales.” providers.
Not all applicants required this assistance and some came direct to officers
administering the scheme. For the majority of new businesses however the help
of Business Wales saves a great deal of time and as they have already
demonstrated their commitment to starting a business by becoming clients of
Business Wales, this particular conduit to the business community is
considered to be valid.

Forty one applications for start-up finance were originally approved although in
the final analysis only thirty two of the successful applicants claimed their grant
of up to £500. The other nine deciding either not to start their business at this
time or not make the required purchases and claim their grant. The total amount
awarded to new business was £15,544 .45

Applications were also accepted from existing businesses and seventeen
applications for grant assistance of between £1000 - £5000 were approved.
Sixteen of the successful applicants claimed their grant with the final amount
awarded and claimed in this category being £35,444.82.

The total amount awarded being £50,989.27 among 48 new and existing
businesses.

A list of those businesses supported is below:

No Business Name Grant Claimed
1 AGM Electrical Contractors 500.00

2 Ant's Console and PC services 500.00

3 Fforestfach Vehicle Repairs 500.00

4 Kick StartPT 379.00

Page 113



5 Coden Solutions Ltd 500.00
6 Walford-Richards Designs 500.00
7 St James Restoration 500.00
8 CL James Accountants 500.00
9 Eliminator Pest Control 500.00
10 Clever Paws Ltd 500.00
11 Creative Curriculum 500.00
12 Mail Boxes etc 500.00
13 Confidimus 500.00
14 XD Studios 478.78
15 Locksmiths 500.00
16 Photography 500.00
17 Rowanvale Books 500.00
18 Mimosa Services 500.00
19 Churchill Associates 500.00
20 Elements Sports Therapy 500.00
21 Elbow Grease Cleaning 500.00
22 Swansea Artisan Cakes 500.00
2 Compags BookKeepna & | soo0c
24 Little Dragon Designs 500.00
25 Malabar Aaanaa 500.00
26 Mayfly 500.00
27 Dynaset 500.00

Page 114




28 PR Food Specialists Ltd 500.00
29 Café Del Mar 500.00
30 Right Recruit Ltd 500.00
31 Andy's Motorcycle Services 500.00
32 GreenTech Heating 500.00
Existing Businesses
1 Wolfestone Translation £5,000.00
2 Work Wales recruitment £4,130.00
3 Welsh Green Business Centre £3,710.00
4 Cedi Cottages £955.00
5 Olives & Oils £1,606.00
6 SA Flyers £2,228.96
7 G & T Transport £1,809.52
8 Stardust Boutique £2,460.69
9 Mark Jermin Mgt £940.00
10 Stephen Kent &Co £1,498.03
11 Bowstones Holiday Lets £1,612.50
12 Cater Clean Supplies £3,247.02
13 Envirascape Ltd £2,222.50
14 Excell Ltd £2,427.50
15 Bako Wales £1,039.00
16 Bionema Ltd £1,000.00

Page 115




Councillors CA Holley, MH Jones & JW Jones
Will the Leader/Cabinet Member tell Council how much money has been spent
in Target Areas in the financial year 2013/2014.

Response of the Cabinet Member for Target Areas.

As Councillors will know the Council does not budget for Council Services on an
area basis nor does it record actual expenditure on that basis.

To that extent it would not be possible to detail expenditure on core and routine
services on a target area basis.

Notwithstanding this, the following is an indication of specific expenditure
incurred within target areas over and above normal service provision but or
as a consequence of, not necessarily directly related to Council’s Target Area
Policy :-

Service area Expenditure description Value (£)
Children and Young Cluster training and 2,000
People awareness event —

UNHRC - 100 staff from 8
schools attended and all 8
schools have registered
with UNICEF, all have had
further training, 6 have an
action plan to achieve
level 1 status and 1 has
achieved that status.
Youth Services Townhill Youth Support 14,000
Centre — upgrade to
furniture, set up of IT suite,
Technocamps summer
programme

Blaenymaes Youth 10,500
Support Centre. Upgrade
to furniture and
Technocamps summer
programme
ICT/Education LIFE programme 80,467
expenditure including
Purchase/lease of
hardware and Specialist
teaching support

ICT infrastructure 180,000
investment in target area
schools

Housing HRA Capital programme — | 8,691,000

work in respect of
achieving the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard
2013/14

Page 116




Nature conservation team | Environmental works 13,000
around the Pantycelyn
Road Hillside Wildlife
corridor
Leisure Services New/upgraded play 250,000
facilities
Mobile Play Equipment 165,000
New skatepark equipment 30,000
Brynmelin park 20,000
Economic Regeneration 136 participants on 362,000
Workways programme
2013/14
Beyond Bricks and Mortar 25,000
— target area placements
Highways Road resurfacing 220,000
Footway works 238,000
Traffic Management 52,000
Speed limit introduction 25,000
Tackling poverty small North West 16,921
grants programme Cluster/Penderry 12,727
West Cluster/Townhill
Capital Grant — Topic 12,000
House 7,500
Revenue costs — Topic
House

In addition there has been a range of other additional and targeted works and
activities including:

Safe Routes to Schools in Townhill

Wi Fi access points installed to 6 Community Centres

Additional Parenting Programmes

Team Around the family co-ordinator post

Restorative Practice work

Additional benefits and poverty training courses to staff working in Target Areas
Bringing allotments back into use

Councillors AM Day, JW Jones, MH Jones, PM Meara & J Newbury

We note with interest that many areas of City Parks and rural grass verges
have not been mowed as frequently as in previous years. We understand this is
due to the adoption locally of the Wales Action Plan for Pollinators. While the
intention is supported by us all, could the relevant Cabinet member(s) tell
Council.

1. As this is a change of Council Policy, where was the decision taken to
implement the Plan locally.

2. What specific areas of City Parks and grass verges will therefore not be
mowed, what criteria were applied to the selection of these areas and who took
the decision about which areas were selected.

3. What risk assessments were undertaken in the decision making especially
for those suffering from Hayfever.

4. Whether the decisions were entirely based on environmental considerations?
5. In the light of the considerable number of enquiries local Councillors have
had, what efforts have been made to inform the public of the introduction of

Page 117




these measures and the reasons for their introduction.
Response of the Cabinet Member for Place

This is not a change to Council Policy but is an imaginative proposal which aims
to promote wildlife bio-diversity in an urban landscape whilst at the same time
supporting the budget reductions required of the Council during this period of
significant change.

Sections of more than 30 parks around the City are being left un-mown as part
of a scheme which it's hoped will encourage more wildlife and insects to return
as well as create havens for bees and other pollinators.

The move comes in response to a Welsh Government call to promote
biodiversity and in the wake of Swansea Council’s hugely-successful wild flower
initiative launched last year which attracted hundreds of positive comments
from residents and visitors alike.

It's also a creative way to help manage the Council’s parks budget which has
seen a reduction in the amount of money available for grass cutting.

Parks which have seen sections given over to meadow include Singleton Park,
Morriston Park, Ravenhill Park and Garden Village Recreation Ground.

This is a pilot project to create meadowland in an urban environment. There are
clear benefits for local flora and fauna but we are very keen to know what
residents think so we look at how we can amend and improve the programme in
the future.

The wild flowers initiative last year was a terrific success and apart from
creating a blaze of colour in unexpected places we're also expecting it to help
promote bio-diversity as well.

The Council looks after more than 130 parks and open spaces in the City and
none of the 32 areas chosen will be given over entirely to meadowland. It does
mean that grass in the chosen sections will not be close-mown during the
growing season to create habitats for pollinators and other insect life.

Uncut areas will be monitored throughout the year with comments and feedback
from local residents being recorded and used in the decision-making process
for the scheme in future years. The meadowland will be cut during the winter
months which will help native wild flowers and grasses to develop.

Swansea is gaining a reputation for its commitment to sustainability, the
environment and biodiversity. Other councils across the UK have been doing
similar things in their parks and open spaces and there are other economic
benefits arising from this initiative, for example pollinating insects like bees and
butterflies contribute millions of pounds annually to the crop market.

The Welsh Government’s Wales Action Plan for Pollinators launched last year
called on local councils to do their bit to promote biodiversity in towns, cities and
developed areas by reviewing how we manage roadside verges, parks and
public green space.

Page 118




No park will be given over entirely to meadow because it's important that there
is also space for local communities for play and other activities, but this is a
bold and imaginative move that will support the environment and biodiversity
and, ultimately, help grow the food we eat.

A similar project is being undertaken on Rural and Urban verges across the
City.

A full list of parks and open spaces across Swansea taking part in the
biodiversity initiative are included below:

Gors Playing Fields; Singleton Park; West Cross Woodlands; Ravenhill Park;
Graig Y Coed Playing Fields; Caer Gynydd amenity area; Stepney Street
outdoor site; Manselton Quarry; Cwm Level Playing Fields; Normandy Road
amenity area; Rear of Wychtree Street; White Rock outdoor site; Wychtree
Riverside amenity area; Maesteg Park; Broadway Field; Plasmarl outdoor site;
Blaen y Maes Playing Fields; Jeffreys Court outdoor site; Mynydd Newydd
Playing Fields; Golden Grove Park; Valeo outdoor site; Parc y Werin; Loughor
Castle; Garden Village Recreation Ground; Woodland Terrace outdoor site,
Gowerton; Glyncollen House; Trallwn Playing Fields; Tircanol Playing Fields;
Martins Field; Tower Playground; Morriston Park.

There have been a number of press releases on this initiative and the intention
is to continue with providing information to the media on the project and to
encourage comments from all parties to support our plans for the future of the
scheme.

Councillors PM Meara, AM Day & TH Rees
Why is “More Poetry Needed” and how much did the mural cost.

Response of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration

“More Poetry Is Needed” is an ‘Art Across The City’ artwork by Turner Prize
winning artist Jeremy Deller that has been commissioned by Locws
International for the Dylan Thomas 100 Festival. Jeremy Deller is an award-
winning artist who represented Great Britain at the prestigious Venice Biennale
in 2013 and ranks as one of the most exciting artists of his generation. Deller
was invited to make an artistic response to Thomas’ life and work and he
presented the idea of a bold statement in support of poetry. “More Poetry Is
Needed’ is the largest permanent artwork by Deller globally and has helped
raise the profile of Swansea as a cultural destination. It has proved very popular
with the general public and in particular young people, many of whom have
used the artwork as inspiration for their own artistic endeavours through the
Locws International ‘Education and Outreach Programme’. The artwork has
also inspired many local people to write their own lines of poetry for the “Tawe
Mega Poem”, an online poem initiated by Locws International that allows
anybody to contribute their own lines. The poem currently stands at over 1,400
lines. “More Poetry Is Needed” has been paid for exclusively by a Dylan
Thomas 100 grant from the Welsh Government administered by the Arts
Council of Wales. The mural cost £7,200 which covered artist fees, cost of
scaffolding, labour and materials.

Page 119




PART B -

1.

Councillors AM Day, MH Jones & CA Holley

The latest statistics published by the Welsh Assembly
(http://wales.gov.uk/docs/statistics/2014/140430-young-people-not-education-
employment-training-year-31-december-2013-en.pdf) show that the percentage
of NEETs in Swansea for each of the 3 last years (2011, 2012 and 2013) have
been 3.1%, 3.2% and 3.9% Can the Cabinet Member for Learning and Skills
explain this disappointing trend, especially as the figures for Wales over the last
three years have reduced from 4.4% to 3.7% meaning that Swansea is now
worse than the Welsh average.

Response of the Cabinet Member for Learning & Skills

Swansea has witnessed a year on year reduction in NEETs and Unknowns
combined since 2005 until 2011. In 2011 the ‘makeup’ of the NEET group was
analysed and the targets reviewed.

As a result it was recognised that due to the nature of the core NEET group, the
barriers they are faced with and the current mix of post 16 provision on offer,
the challenge is to sustain the approx. 3% achieved in 2011 whilst longer term
solutions were developed i.e. Swansea Guarantee. The Swansea Guarantee is
our commitment to giving all young people an offer of further education or
training after completing year 11.

The NEET figures published by Welsh Government are the result of the
Careers Wales, Year 11 Leaver Destination Survey snapshot taken annually on
31st October. In 2013, the snapshot was taken on or around the 17th
November by which time the Swansea data included young people who had
dropped out of college. On 31st October the NEET figure was 3.2% compared
to 3.9% on 17th November.

The published NEET figures across other local authorities do not include young
people whose status is ‘unknown’ — Swansea has been successful in
ascertaining the whereabouts of 100% of the cohort since 2009, as a result its
NEET data is more accurate. When the ‘unknowns’ are taken into account —
Swansea remains at 3.9% in 2013, below the All Wales average of 4.5%.

The exchange of learner ‘drop out’ data by Gower College Swansea and
Careers Wales happens on a bi-weekly basis to ensure young people are
followed up and offered the support they need to re-engage in Education,
Employment or Training. This is a local arrangement that has been highlighted
as good practice by Welsh Government. Until this type of data exchange is
common practice across Wales the Swansea NEET figure is not comparable to
other Local Authority areas. However, the Swansea NEET figure is comparable
to previous years on a local level.

Page 120




Councillors AM Day, PM Black & PM Meara

Can the relevant Cabinet Member give Council the following information relating
to the allocation of Disabled Parking Permits (Blue Badges) —

a. the number of new applications for Permits for each of the years 2010, 2011,
2012 and 2013;

b. the number of new applications approved and the number rejected in each of
those years;

c. the number of applications for renewals for Permits for each of the years
2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013;

d. the number of applications for renewals approved and the number rejected in
each of those years;

e. the number of applications due for renewal in each of the years 2014, 2015
and 2016.

Response of the Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources

Please note we cannot differentiate between new Blue Badge applications and
applications from persons who have had a badge previously.

No of No of Blue No of Blue No of
Blue Badge Badges Badges Badges due
Year Applications Issued Refusals to Expire

2010 6809 6487 322
2011 6733 6331 402
2012 6329 5758 571
2013 6243 5564 679
2014 6686
2015 5440
2016 5240

There is no automatic right if renewal in respect if blue badge applications
which are issued for a maximum period of three years.

Blue badge applications are considered alongside detailed guidance issued by
the Welsh Government. A number of our decisions have been reviewed by
Welsh Government Officials and on 10 December 2013 they visited this Council
to confirm that the Blue Badge service was being administered correctly in
accordance with Welsh Government guidance. They validated the decisions
made on all cases they reviewed.

Page 121




Councillors AM Day, PM Black, MH Jones & PM Meara
What measures are in place to evaluate the effectiveness of the Budget
allocation for the Dylan Thomas Centenary Celebrations.

Response of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration

The Dylan Thomas 2014 centenary celebrations has adopted a collaborative
approach which ensures that the City & County of Swansea and its partners at
local, regional and national level maximise the opportunities that present
themselves throughout the year. The product and promotion of and for the year
will also further strengthen Swansea’s status as Wales’ City of Culture.

Dylan Thomas related events and activities have been organised at various
Council cultural venues as well as other key arts venues in Swansea and South
West Wales. This has, also created a significant level of interest both online and
locally, nationally be evidenced now that the celebrations are well underway.

The Swansea/Abertawe Dylan Thomas 2014 Event Plan includes a set of
objectives and targets which are monitored on a regular basis. The locally
supported projects will also have a set of monitoring and evaluation data that is
a requirement of the funding provided.

The type of specific actions that are monitored to ensure that the campaign is
effective include

¢ An increase of visitors to the Dylan Thomas Exhibition
¢ |[ncrease in ticket sales to events at venues throughout the City
¢ Increased number of unique web visits

e An evaluation of the increased visitor numbers of visitors to the city
during the Centenary year and the economic impact of these visits.

This information will be collated by the Council Officer co-ordinating the DT2014
and presented as part of the output report post 31 December 2014.

Some of the successes so far include the highly visible street branding at key
strategic locations, branding on Council livery, the development of
Dylanthomas.com and a varied and ever growing events programme at the
Dylan Thomas Centre and other venues in the City. The fact that the Council
was able to host the inaugural UK and worldwide Notebooks exhibition (on
temporary loan from Buffalo University) at the Dylan Thomas centre has been
one of the highlights of the programme so far. The Council was also successful
in securing Heritage Lottery Funding (total project cost of £1.2m) which will
include a new exhibition permanent exhibition at the Dylan Thomas Centre
along with a Learning and Engagement programme. This will be re-launched at
the end of October to coincide with the centenary of the poet’s birthday.

Page 122




Agenda Iltem 12.a

Report of the Head of Democratic Services
Council - 15 July 2014

COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCES & EXPENSES 2013-2014

Purpose: The report presents the amount of allowances and expenses paid to each
Councillor during 2013-2014 under the Councillors Allowances Scheme. There is a
legal requirement to publish these amounts annually.

Report Author: Huw Evans

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley

FOR INFORMATION

1. Introduction

1.1 The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales (IRPW) operates under
the provisions of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and the
Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Regulations made under the
powers contained in the Measure.

1.2 Each year the IRPW must publish an Annual Report which sets out the
type and levels of payments that Authorities may or must make available
to their Councillors and Co-opted Members. Details of the latest IRPW
Annual Report and other information may be viewed on their website.
http://wales.gov.uk/irpwsub/home/?lang=en

1.3  The Councillors Allowances Scheme as laid out in Part 6 of the Council
Constitution sets out a framework for the payment of allowances and
expenses to Councillors.

1.4 Expenses paid represent reimbursement to Councillors for the cost of
travel and subsistence they incurred in performing their approved duties.

1.5 Appendix A refers to amounts paid to the Councillors during 2013-2014.

1.6 Appendix B shows the total amount paid to its Statutory Co-optees.
Statutory Co-optees are defined by the Independent Remuneration Panel
for Wales as the Chair of the Standards Committee, Chair of the
Community / Town Councils Standards Sub Committee, Co-opted
Members of Standards Committee and Education Overview and Scrutiny.

Page 123



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

Explanation of Headings

Basic Salary is paid to Councillors who do not receive a Civic Salary or
Senior Salary.

Civic Salary is paid to the Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor only.

Senior Salary is paid to the posts identified by Council i.e. Leader of the
Council, Deputy Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members, Chairs of
Committees. Additionally, the Leader of the Largest Opposition Political
Group automatically receives a Senior Salary providing he has 10% of
the total number of CCS Councillors within his Political Group.

The ICT Allowance is set at a maximum of £800 over a period of 4 years
(2013-2017).

The Broadband and Telephone Allowance is set at £25 per month,
however this amount is split as £15 Broadband per month and £10
Telephone per month.

In addition, qualifying members (Cabinet Members, Chair of Council /
Presiding Member and Leader of the Largest Opposition Political Group)
also receive a £25 mobile telephone allowance per month. The
“Telephone” heading therefore incorporates the total sum being claimed
for both the £10 element of the Broadband and Telephone Allowance in
addition to any Mobile Telephone Allowance claimed.

Travel P.card — these costs relate to any travel costs incurred using the
Corporate Purchasing Card (P.card) e.g. rail travel, flights, oyster-card
usage, etc.

Travel ISIS - these costs are based on Councillors Travel and
Subsistence expense claim forms paid under the CCS software system
(ISIS).

Subsistence P.card — these costs relate to any subsistence costs
incurred using the Corporate Purchasing Card (P.card) e.g. hotel
accommodation, conference costs, etc.

Subsistence ISIS — these costs relate to any claims for subsistence
using the Councillors Travel and Subsistence expense claim forms paid
under the CCS software system (ISIS).

Car Parking Permit re-claim relates to any Councillor who has re-
claimed the amount they pay for their Car Parking Permit.

Attendance Allowance is paid to Councillors who claim for the

reimbursement of necessary costs for the care of dependent children and
adults (provided by informal or formal carers).

Page 124



3. Financial Implications

3.1 The amounts payable were paid from within existing budget. The
expenses element of the report covers the period 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2014, whilst the Allowances element of the report cover the
Municipal year (i.e. Annual Meeting of Council to following years Annual
Meeting of Council).

4. Legal Implications

4.1 This report is consistent with the provisions of The Local Government
(Wales) Measure 2011 and the Independent Remuneration Panel of
Wales.

Background Papers: None.

Appendix A: Councillors Allowances & Expenses 2013-2014;
Appendix B: Co-opted Members Allowances & Expenses 2013-2014.

Page 125



92T abed

Appendix A

Appendix A
COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCES & EXPENSES 2013-2014
ALLOWANCES EXPENSES NOTES
Councillor Salary ICT Broadband | Telephone Total Travel Travel Subsistence | Subsistence | Car parking | Attendance Total Grand Total
Allowances P.card ISIS P.card ISIS permit Allowance Expenses (TA& TE)
(TA) re-claim (TE)
Basic Civic Senior
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Bayliss, John 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Black, Peter Malcolm 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00
Bradley, Nicholas Stuart 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 800.00 0.00 300.00 33,000.00 117.35 24.20 141.67 72.38 0.00 0.00 355.60 33,355.60
Burtonshaw, June Elizabeth 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 617.95 187.91 407.10 33,112.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33,112.96
Child, Mark Clive 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 0.00 0.00 407.10 32,307.10 164.10 67.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 231.30 32,538.40
Clay, Uta 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 185.00 187.91 107.10 13,655.01 0.00 550.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 550.05 14,205.06
Clay, Bob 9,775.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,775.03 0.00 150.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150.30 9,925.33| Elected 4/7/2013
Colburn, Anthony Charles Saunders 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00
Cole, David 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Cook, Ann 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 778.95 187.91 107.10 14,248.96 0.00 392.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 392.85 14,641.81
Crouch, Sybil 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 579.00 0.00 300.00 32,779.00 25.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.60 32,804.60
Curtice, Jan 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 639.00 187.91 107.10 14,109.01 0.00 642.70 76.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 719.36 14,828.37
Davies, William John 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Davies, Nick 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 135.00 0.00 13,310.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,310.00
Day, Arthur Michael 0.00 0.00| 21,910.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 22,205.01 0.00 317.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 317.90 22,522.91
Downing, Philip * 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 904.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 904.95 14,374.96
Doyle, Christopher Ryland 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 544.89 0.00 300.00 32,744.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,744.89
Evans, Mandy 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 1.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.80 13,176.80
Evans, William 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 0.00 187.91 407.10 32,495.01 0.00 856.50 84.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 940.50 33,435.51
Fitzgerald, Elizabeth Wendy 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Francis-Davies, Robert 0.00 0.00]{ 21,910.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 22,205.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22,205.01
Gordon, Fiona 8,783.36 0.00 7,303.32 42.00 187.91 100.00 16,416.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,416.59
Hale, Joe 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00
Harris, ClIr Jane 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 703.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 703.35 14,173.36
Hennegan, Terry 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 42.03 187.91 107.10 13,512.04 0.00 148.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 148.50 13,660.54
Holley, Christopher 0.00 0.00| 21,910.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 22,210.00 0.00 113.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113.85 22,323.85
Hood-Williams, Paxton Richard 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Hopkins, Beverley 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.65 107.10 13,442.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,442.75
Hopkins, David Henry 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00
James, Dennis Henry 0.00 1,976.25 0.00 0.00 21.13 0.00 1,997.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,997.38|Deceased 29/04/2013
James, Lynda 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00
Jardine, Yvonne 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Jones, Andrew 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 559.00 187.91 107.10 14,029.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,029.01
Jones, Jeff William 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.65 107.10 13,442.75 0.00 380.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 380.70 13,823.45
Jones, Mary Helen 11,758.37 0.00 2,355.91 35.00 67.91 0.00 14,217.19 0.00 315.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 315.00 14,532.19
Jones, Susan Mary 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 550.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 550.35 14,020.36
Kirchner, Erika Theresa 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 199.00 160.65 107.10 13,641.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,641.75
Lewis, Andrea 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 187.91 107.10 14,270.01 0.00 78.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.75 14,348.76
Lewis, David 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Lewis, Richard David 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 67.91 0.00 13,242.91 0.00 932.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 932.85 14,175.76
Lloyd, Clive 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Lloyd, Paul 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 299.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 299.35 13,769.36
Marsh, Keith Edmund 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 13,275.00 0.00 600.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.30 13,875.30
Matthews, Penny 0.00 0.00| 21,910.00 304.99 187.91 107.10 22,510.00 0.00 387.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387.45 22,897.45
Meara, Paul Michael 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Morris, Hazel Mary 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 758.98 187.91 107.10 14,228.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,228.99
Newbury, John * 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 337.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 337.95 13,807.96
Owen, Byron George 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 147.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 147.60 13,617.61
Owen, Geraint 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 99.00 0.00 99.00 13,274.00
Phillips, David * 0.00 0.00| 52,700.00 0.00 187.91 407.10 53,295.01 725.38 18.60 921.32 11.25 0.00 0.00 1,676.55 54,971.56
Philpott, Cheryl Lynne 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Raynor, Jennifer 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Rees, Thomas Huw 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 21.65 187.91 107.10 13,491.66 0.00 149.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 149.40 13,641.06
Richard, loan Merritt 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 168.00 187.91 107.10 13,638.01 0.00 246.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 246.60 13,884.61
Richards, Julie Christine 0.00 0.00{ 37,100.00 0.00 187.91 407.10 37,695.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37,695.01
Ronconi-Woollard, Neil 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 0.00 13,362.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,362.91
Sangha, Pearleen 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00
Smith, Paulette 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 361.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 361.35 13,831.36
Smith, Robert 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Stanton, Rosina June 0.00| 23,148.33 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 23,443.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,443.34




12T 9bed

Appendix A

COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCES & EXPENSES 2013-2014

ALLOWANCES EXPENSES NOTES
Councillor Salary ICT Broadband | Telephone Total Travel Travel Subsistence | Subsistence | Car parking | Attendance Total Grand Total
Allowances P.card ISIS P.card ISIS permit Allowance Expenses (TA & TE)
(TA) re-claim (TE)
Basic Civic Senior
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Stewart, Robert Charles 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 0.00 187.91 407.10 32,495.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,495.01
Sullivan, David Gareth 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 578.94 67.91 0.00 13,821.85 0.00 96.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 96.30 13,918.15
Tanner, Gloria 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 320.09 187.91 107.10 13,790.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,790.10
Theaker, Mitchell 0.00 0.00| 31,900.00 0.00 187.91 407.10 32,495.01 0.00 383.25 76.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 459.91 32,954.92
Thomas, Ceinwen 1,416.67| 16,461.63 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 18,173.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,173.31
Thomas, Desmond 8,783.36 0.00 7,303.32 52.98 187.91 407.10 16,734.67 0.00 24.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24.75 16,759.42
Thomas, Lewis Graham 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Thomas, Mark 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 366.76 187.91 107.10 13,836.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,836.77
Thomas, Crawshay Miles 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 13,975.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,975.00
Tyler-Lloyd, Linda 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
Walker, Gordon 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,175.00 359.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 359.22 13,534.22
Walton, Lesley 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 40.40 187.91 107.10 13,510.41 0.00 67.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 67.50 13,577.91
White, Mike 13,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.91 107.10 13,470.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,470.01
TOTALS 1,245,056.65 1,391.65 1,300.31 99.00 2,790.96 1,247,847.61
* Notes:

1) Downing, Philip. The full amount paid was £962.10; however £57.15 of this was re-claimed from CCS Local Government Pension Scheme. As such CCS only paid £904.95. This was a Travel Expense.
2) Newbury, John. The full amount paid was £345.15; however £7.20 of this was re-claimed from CCS Local Government Pension Scheme. As such CCS only paid £337.95. This was a Travel Expense.
3) Phillips, David. The full amount paid was £2,338.80; however £662.25 of this was re-claimed from the Local Government Association (LGA). As such CCS only paid £1,676.55. This was a Travel and Subsistence Expense.




82T abed

Appendix B

Appendix B

Co-optees Allowances & Expenses 2013-2014

Name Position Term of Office Allowance Travel Subsistence Total
£ £ £ £
Anderson-Thomas, David [Education Scrutiny (Ordinary) 14.03.2014 to 13.03.2017 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Burgess, Jill Standards Committee (Ordinary) 19.10.2012 to 18.10.2018 693.00 40.50 0.00 733.50
Everest, Christine Education Scrutiny (Ordinary) 03.12.2012 to 15.01.2014 792.00 0.00 0.00 792.00
Gomes, Jennifer Standards Committee (Ordinary) 05.12.2008 to 04.12.2016 990.00 76.50 0.00 1066.50
Howells, Meirion Standards Committee (Ordinary) 01.08.2008 to 31.07.2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Joiner, Sarah Education Scrutiny (Ordinary) 08.07.2013 to 07.07.2017 1188.00 0.00 0.00 1188.00
Novis, Adrian Standards Committee (Chair) 22.02.2005 to 21.02.2015 966.00 18.00 0.00 984.00
Thomas, Alan Audit Committee (Chair) 27.11.2012 to 04.05.2017 1664.00 64.35 0.00 1728.35
Walton, Clive Community Town Council Standards Sub 22.02.2005 to 21.02.2015 1442.00 25.20 0.00 1467.20
Committee (Chair) & Standards Committee
(Ordinary)
TOTAL 7735.00 224.55 0.00] 7959.55




Agenda Iltem 12.b

Report of the Head of Legal, Democratic Services & Procurement
Council — 15 July 2014

WRITTEN RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS ASKED AT THE LAST
ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

The report provides an update on the responses to Questions asked during
the last Ordinary Meeting of Council on 15 April & 17 June 2014.

FOR INFORMATION

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 It was agreed at Council on 8 April 2010 that a standing item be
added to the Council Summons entitled “Written Responses to
Questions Asked at the Last Ordinary Meeting of Council’.

1.2 A “For Information” report will be compiled by the Democratic
Services Team collating all written responses from the last
Ordinary Meeting of Council and placed in the Agenda Pack;

1.3 Any consequential amendments be made to the Council
Constitution.

2. RESPONSES

2.1 Responses to questions asked during the last ordinary meeting of

Council are included as Appendix A.
Background Papers: None

Appendices: Appendix A (Questions & Responses)

Page 129



Appendix A

Providing Council with Written Responses to Questions at Council —
15 April & 17 June 2014

Mr Tony Beddow asked the Cabinet Member for Regeneration
Question

Page 57, Response to Question 2. The likely profit of Swansea Stadium
Management Company (SSMC) would appear to be circa £160,000 at the end
of 2014-2015.

What is the estimated share of that profit due to the City and County of
Swansea under the current agreement.

Response of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration

The Council has no automatic right to a share of profits from the Company.
Any share which would be equal to one-third of any total distribution made
is entirely dependent on the Board passing a resolution to distribute profits.

Mrs L Davies asked the Head of Legal, Democratic Services and
Procurement

Questions

In relation to Minute 225 “Members Indemnity for Code of Conduct
Complaints Hearings”.

Page 109, Paragraph 4.2, Legal Implications states:

“It remains the case that where an indemnity is provided and the Member is
not successful in the matter, the indemnity must be repaid as per the Form of
Indemnity”.

a) How many Councillors have applied for indemnities?
b) What is the total amount paid out to each claim?
¢) How many indemnity claims have been repaid?

Response of the Head of Legal, Democratic Services and Procurement

a) One councillor has made a full application for an indemnity from Standards
Committee.

b) The total amount paid out was £5000 plus VAT in relation to a breach of
code of conduct claim.

c) None. Following the outcome of the above claim the matter was again
considered by the Standards Committee. The Committee did not consider

reimbursement of the above amount was appropriate in the circumstances.

Page 130



Scrutiny Dispatches

City & County of Swansea - June 2014

Scrutiny enables councillors who are not in the cabinet to examine the quality and effectiveness of
services and policies, hold decision makers to account and make recommendations for improvement

Annual scrutiny work planning conference

(Lead: Councillor Mike Day)
Scrutiny councillors recently got together to explore topics for the work programme over the
coming year. A Scrutiny Work Planning Conference took place on 12 May and was attended by
21 scrutiny councillors. At the conference councillors shared views about the scrutiny work
programme and identified priorities for the year ahead. Councillors were asked to give thought to
whether a particular topic merited in-depth inquiry, required monitoring, or could be dealt with
through a ‘one-off’ discussion. As a starting point, suggestions that had been gathered from the
annual councillor survey, cabinet members, officers, the public and partners were discussed.
Ideas suggested were also cross referenced with the priorities in the One Swansea Plan
(Swansea’s Single Integrated Plan). A number of additional topics also emerged from the debate.

From the consultation the topics that gained most support were:
» Corporate Building & Property Services

* Governance of Schools

» Corporate Culture / Co-operative Council

e Sustainability

» Services for those with Learning Difficulties

* Target Areas

* Mental Health Services

* Obesity / Lifestyle

» School Readiness

* Roads / Roadworks / Highway Maintenance

* Young Carers

* Western Bay Health and Social Care Programme

The Scrutiny Programme Committee, taking into account feedback from the conference, will put
together a scrutiny work programme for the year. The programme is guided by the overriding
principle that the work of scrutiny should be strategic and significant, focussed on issues of
concern, and represent a good use of scrutiny time and resources.

The Committee will also consider a report at each of their meetings that will enable the committee
to maintain an overview of all scrutiny activities to ensure that the work programme is co-
ordinated and effective. In particular the committee will monitor progress of work undertaken by
the informal Panels and Working Groups and findings to ensure that this work is effective and has
the required visibility.

Gypsy & traveller site provision — scrutiny review of process

(Lead: ClIr Robert Smith)
Special meetings of the Scrutiny Programme Committee are continuing in order to develop
understanding of the process that was followed in the search for a second Gypsy & Traveller Site,
culminating in the report to Council last October. The committee has now taken in evidence from
officers and a number of councillors and members of the public who have wanted the opportunity
to bring certain matters to the committee’s attention. The committee will take stock of its work so
far, determine next steps in evidence gathering, before drawing the review to a close, with
conclusions and recommendations on the pan%%5f3?nd learning points for the future.



Good Scrutiny? Good Question!

(Lead: Councillor Mike Day)
A report of the Auditor General for Wales called ‘Good Scrutiny? Good Question!” was published
on the 29 May 2014. The report concluded that ‘Local government scrutiny in Wales is improving
but councils need to do more to develop consistently rigorous scrutiny to increase public
accountability in decision making. Councils demonstrated a genuine commitment to learning and
improvement throughout the course of the study, and in many councils scrutiny practice at
committees has improved. However many challenges remain.

In summary the report found that:

* Scrutiny practice is improving, but the impact that scrutiny is having is not always
clearly evident

* Whilst a majority of councils consider that there is a supportive environment for scrutiny,
some lack of clarity of roles and responsibilities can limit the effectiveness with which scrutiny
holds the executive to account

» Better planning, more effective chairing, and improvements to the range, quality and use of
information are required to improve scrutiny across councils in Wales

* In general, council scrutiny is not always fully aligned with other council improvement
processes, nor builds on external audit, inspection and review; and

* More effective engagement with the public and partners will improve scrutiny and increase
public accountability.

The report makes nine recommendations, including:

* Further developing scrutiny forward work programmes

* Ensuring that scrutiny draws effectively on the work of audit, inspection and regulation
e Undertaking regular self-evaluation of scrutiny

The full report can be accessed at: www.wao.gov.uk/publications.

Schools Performance Panel focusing on the key issue S

The Schools Performance Panel met on the 29 April to assess their year and plan for the year
ahead. The Panel highlighted the key issues it would like to focus on over the coming 12 months.
It also agreed to make more use of case studies as examples to performance, and seek more
insight from the public and meet in a school setting. Some of the topics the Panel has scheduled
include: EOTAS Pathways and Behaviour Strategy, ensuring consistency in teacher and
classroom assessments, and schools use of the Pupil Deprivation Grant.

Cabinet responds to economic inactivity inquiry rec ommendations

(Lead: Councillor Chris Holley)
Cabinet formally responded to the Economic Inactivity Scrutiny Inquiry report on 3 June. The
inquiry considered how well the council and partners were tackling economic inactivity in our
communities. Cabinet has accepted the report and provided an action plan to implement
recommendations. The Inquiry Panel will monitor the action plan over the next year and report
back to the Scrutiny Programme Committee its view about progress and the impact of the inquiry.

Connect with Scrutiny:
Room 3.3.7, Civic Centre, Swansea. SA1 3SN (Tel. 01792 637732)

Web: www.swansea.gov.uk/scrutiny Twitter: @swanseascrutiny

Email: scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk Blog: www.swanseascrutiny.co.uk
Like us on Facebook: www.facebook.com/swanseascrutiny

Page 132



	Agenda
	2. Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.
	3. Minutes.
	8.a One Swansea Plan and Delivery Framework 2014.
	9.a Membership of Committees.
	10.a Home to School Transport Policy - Public Consultation on a New Proposed Policy.
	Home to School Transport Report - Appendices

	11. Councillors' Questions.
	12.a Councillors Allowances & Expenses 2013-2014.
	Councillors Allowances spreadsheet 2013-2014 (appendices)
	Combined Current Councillors

	copted Allowances spreadsheet 2013-2014 (appendices)

	12.b Written Responses to Questions asked at the Last Ordinary Meeting of Council.
	Responses to Council Questions Append

	12.c Scrutiny Dispatches.

